% o

N

YORK

CEITY QF

COUNCIL @
N\

/

Notice of a public meeting of

Planning Committee B

To: Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Melly (Vice-Chair), Craghill,
Crawshaw, Daubeney, Fisher, Galvin, Orrell and Perrett

Date: Thursday, 1 September 2022

Time: 4.30 pm

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West

Offices (F045)

AGENDA

1. Declarations of Interest
At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they
might have in respect of business on this agenda, if they have
not already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.

2. Minutes (Pages 1 - 6)
To approve and sign the minutes of the last Planning Committee B
meeting held on 11 August 2022.

3. Public Participation

At this point in the meeting members of the public who have
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may speak
on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the committee.
Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the
management of public participation at our meetings. The deadline
for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Tuesday, 30 August
2022.



b)

To register to speak please visit
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill out an online
registration form. If you have any questions about the registration
form or the meeting, please contact the relevant Democracy Officer,
on the details at the foot of the agenda.

Webcasting of Public Meetings

Please note that, subject to available resources, this public meeting
will be webcast including any registered public speakers who have
given their permission. The public meeting can be viewed live and
on demand at www.york.gov.uk/webcasts .

During coronavirus, we have made some changes to how we are
running council meetings. See our coronavirus updates
www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy for more information on
meetings and decisions.

Plans List
This item invites Members to determine the following planning
applications:

Former Storage Facility Site, Derwent Valley (Pages 7 - 34)
Industrial Estate, Dunnington, York
[21/02601/FULM]

Erection of storage and distribution warehouse (Use Class B8) and
office building including associated car parking, perimeter security
fencing and new vehicular access from Chessingham Park.
[Osbaldwick and Derwent Ward]

Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road, (Pages 35 - 52)
Upper Poppleton, York [22/00794/FUL]

Installation of timber clad container for use as security cabin.
Construction of gravel path. [Rural West York Ward]

Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA (Pages 53 - 84)
[22/00788/FUL]

Redevelopment of Stoneyard, including demolition of mason’s
workshop, erection of roof structure and mezzanine floor and
reordering of existing buildings and uses to provide internal and
external workshops, storage and offices. [Guildhall Ward]


http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy

d) Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA (Pages 85 - 112)
[22/00789/LBC]

Listed Building Consent application for internal and external alterations
including re-development of Stoneyard, including demolition of
mason’s workshop, erection of roof structure and mezzanine floor and
reordering of existing buildings and uses to provide internal and
external workshops, storage and offices. [Guildhall Ward]

e) The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ (Pages 113 - 166)
[22/00803/FUL]

Conversion of existing garages and erection of new building to
apprentice’s accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary storage
after demolition of greenhouse, potting shed and garden structures.
[Guildhall Ward]

f) The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ (Pages 167 - 202)
[22/00804/LBC]

Listed Building Consent application for internal and external alterations
to include conversion of existing garages and erection of new block to
create apprentice’s accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary
storage after demolition of greenhouse, potting shed and garden
structures. [Guildhall Ward]

5. Urgent Business
Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the
Local Government Act 1972.

Democracy Officer:
Jane Meller

Contact details:
e Telephone: (01904) 555209
e Email; jane.meller@york.gov.uk



mailto:jane.meller@york.gov.uk

For more information about any of the following please contact the
Democratic Services Officer responsible for servicing this meeting:

Registering to speak

Business of the meeting

Any special arrangements

Copies of reports and

For receiving reports in other formats

Contact details are set out above.

This information can be provided in your own language.
EPEAEMNESRHEEREIESS (cantonese)
g2 ©T AT e o (@O AN | (Bengali)

Ta informacja moze by¢ dostarczona w twoim

wiasnym jezyku. (Palish)

Bu bilgiyi kendi dilinizde almaniz miimkiindiir. (Turkish)
G e ) G < T (Ura)
@ (01904) 551550




Page 1 Agenda Item 2

City of York Council Committee Minutes
Meeting Planning Committee B

Date 11 August 2022

Present Councillors Hollyer (Chair), Melly (Vice-Chair),

Daubeney, Fisher, Orrell, Looker (Substitute for Clir
Crawshaw) and Douglas (Substitute for Clir Perrett)

Apologies Councillors Crawshaw, Craghill, Galvin and Perrett

In Attendance Sandra Branigan (Senior Solicitor)
Mark Baldry (Development Manager Officer)
Jonathan Kenyon (Development Manager Officer)
lan Stokes (Principal Development Control
Engineer)

7. Declarations of Interest (16:33)

Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any
disclosable pecuniary interests or other registrable interests that
they might have in the business on the agenda, if they had not
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests. None were
declared.

8. Minutes (16:34)

Resolved: Subject to the checking of the timings of the agenda items, that

the minutes of the last meeting held on 8 June 2022 were approved and to

signed by the Chair as a correct record at a later date.

9. Public Participation (16:34)

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak at the meeting
under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme.

10. Plans List (16:34)

Members considered a schedule of reports of the Development Manager,
relating to the following planning applications, outlining the proposals and



Page 2

relevant policy considerations and setting out the views of consultees and
officers.

11. Land to the east of Middlewood Close, Rufforth
[21/02661/FULM] (16:34)

Members considered a major full application from Rob Martin for the
erection of 21 dwellings and associated works on land to the east of
Middlewood Close, Rufforth, York.

The Development Management Officers gave a presentation on the
application detailing the site plan, aerial photographs, and access roads.

[ClIr Douglas arrived at 16:37].

The Development Management Officers then gave a verbal update on the
application noting that additional objections and comments had been
received. They explained the location of the location of the site and the
updated recommendation to approve the application subject to:

1. Referral of the application to the Secretary of State under the
requirements of The Town and Country Planning (Consultation)
(England) Direction 2021, and should the application not be called in
by the Secretary of State then:

2. Approve the application subject to the planning obligations and
conditions set out below; and

3. The Head of Planning and Development Services to be given
delegated authority to finalise the terns and details of the Section 106
obligations and conditions.

In response to Member questions, Officers clarified that:

e There were no traffic calming measures on the site and there was
sufficient parking on the site for each dwelling.

e A condition would require a dilapidation survey.

e Air source heat pumps were being indicated to be used to meet the
requirements of CC1.

e There was now a requirement (under Building Regulations) for all
dwellings with a drive to have EV charging.

e Regarding local amenities, there was a school adjacent to the site
and a village shop with a post office within it.

e Officers were confident that approval of this application would not
lead to a precedent with regard development of this nature within the
Green Belt.



Page 3

e Housing officers had examined and were satisfied with the mix of
housing.

o Officers explained why members were advised against refusal on
prematurity grounds (in respect of NPPF paragraph 49)

Public Speakers

Daniel Russell, neighbour to the site, spoke in objection to the

application. He explained that his family lived next door to the site. He
noted that the application being in Green Belt land was undisputed and if
approved it would set a precedent for development to the east of the site.
Regarding his horse riding facility next to the site, he explained that if the
development went ahead this would impact the amenity and utility of the
land and to move the riding area would cost £100k. When asked whether
he had concerns about the construction or development itself he noted that
they would be deemed a safety risk. He was also asked if his concerns
could be mitigated and explained that there needed to be distance between
the development and the horse riding facility.

Peter Rollings (Chairman of Rufforth with Knapton Parish Council)
spoke on the application on behalf of the Parish Council. He explained that
whilst the Parish Council did not object to the application they had a
number of concerns, which included the application setting a precedent by
being considered before the adoption of the Local Plan. He explained that
the site was allocated for housing in the neighbourhood plan. The aim of
this was to meet housing needs whilst retaining the rural character of the
village. He noted that the Parish Council had requested a separate
entrance to the school and had concerns about the shared highway. He
also asked for drainage to take water away from the site and requested a
commitment from the council to resurface the road. In response to Member
guestions, he explained that:
e The Parish Council had met with the landowner and as part of those
discussions agreed the criteria for the housing.
¢ In Rufforth there was 400 houses and the Parish Council was looing
to increase this by 7-10%. In the village there was a shop, bus every
two hours and no doctor’s surgery. The village needed houses that
people could afford to buy.

Mark Lane, agent for the applicant, spoke in support of the application. He
noted the site allocation for housing in the draft Local Plan. He noted that
there had been no material objections to the housing allocation and that the
neighbourhood plan group were in support of housing on the site. He
added that amendments had been made following consultation and that the
development would provide a range of housing, including affordable
housing. He noted that the existing trees and hedgerows would be
retained. He was then asked and explained that:



Page 4

e He was the agent for the site.

e The existing hedge and tree boundaries were to be retained.

e The mitigations being made so there were no problems with
drainage. He noted that drainage had been agreed with technical
consultees.

Members then asked Officers further questions to which the responded
that:
e Feedback had been sought from Public Protection regarding
agricultural uses in isolation of each other.
e There were no technical issues with the application outstanding.
¢ At the final stage of the Local Plan examination the inspectors may
change the proposed boundaries.
e The horse riding facility was domestic.
e The neighbourhood plan states that many houses in the village were
4 bedroom houses and the preferred housing mix in development
proposals were in favour of 2 and 3 bedroom homes. The plan had
not allocated sites for housing as the Local Plan had not been
adopted but it does state there is local support for residential
development of this site
e The neighbourhood plan would have been driven by consultation.

[At this point a Member explained the public consultation process for
neighbourhood plans].

Cllr Douglas proposed the amended officer recommendation to refer the
application to the Secretary of State. This was seconded by ClIr Looker.
When asked about the determination of the application would be deemed
as premature under the NPPF, officers clarified paragraph 5.105 of the
NPPF. On being put to the vote with two Members voting for, four against
and one abstention, the motion fell.

CliIr Orrell then moved refusal of the application on the grounds of the
application being inappropriate development in the Green Belt, the harm to
openness and the following Green Belt purposes - encroachment into the
countryside and development would not encourage the recycling of derelict
land. and there being no very special circumstances to outweigh the harm
to the Green Belt. This was seconded by Cllr Melly. On being put to the
vote with six Members voting in favour and one abstention it was;

Resolved: That the application be refused.
Reason: The application site lies within the general extent of the Green

Belt, as set out in saved policies Y1 and YH9 of The Yorkshire
and Humber Plan - Regional Spatial Strategy. The proposed



Page 5

development is inappropriate development which, by definition,
Is harmful to the Green Belt. There would be harm to openness,
the development would lead to encroachment into the
countryside and would not encourage the recycling of derelict
land. No very special circumstances exist which clearly
outweigh the identified harm. The proposal conflicts with the
National Planning Policy Framework 2021 Chapter 13
(Protecting Green Belt Land) in particular paragraphs 137, 138,
147, 148 and 149, policy GB1 of the Publication Draft Local
Plan 2018 and policy GB1 of the Development Control Local
Plan 2005, which seek to restrict development in order to
maintain the openness of the Green Belt.

12. 29 Moor Lane [22/00872/FUL] (17:50)

Members considered a full application from Roy Grant for Single storey
side and rear extensions after demolition of existing garage, and loft
conversion with hip to gable roof, dormer to rear and 2no. rooflights to front
(part retrospective) at 29 Moor Lane, Acomb, York.

The Development Management Officer gave a presentation on the
application, explaining the scale and layout of the dormer and single storey
L shape extension. Members then asked questions to which officers
responded that:

e With reference to a previous application for a similar development,
both applications were both in the Green Belt. The NPPF guidance
on inappropriate development in the Green Belt was explained to
Members.

e The change to the footprint on the site was a bigger L shape and in
terms of the Green Belt, they needed to look at the context which was
the dense urban character of that section of the Green Belt.

e There was no public footpath behind the property.

Cllr Douglas proposed the officer recommendation to approve the
application. This was seconded by ClIr Looker. On being put to the vote
with Members voting unanimously in favour, it was;

Resolved: That the application be approved.

Reason: Taking into account relevant Green Belt policy and design
guidance approval is recommended. The proposed extensions
are not considered to result in a disproportionate addition to the
existing dwelling, and would not impact on the openness of the



Page 6

Green Belt. The extension would have no undue effect on
visual amenity and would not have a significant, or undue
impact on neighbour amenity.

ClIr Hollyer, Chair
[The meeting started at 4.30 pm and finished at 6.04 pm].



Page 7 Agenda ltem 4a

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Osbaldwick and Derwent
Team: East Area Parish: Dunnington Parish
Councill
Reference: 21/02601/FULM
Application at: Former Storage Facility Site Derwent Valley Industrial Estate
Dunnington York
For: Erection of storage and distribution warehouse (Use Class B8)

and office building including associated car parking, perimeter
security fencing and new vehicular access from Chessingham

Park
By: Mrs Joanne MacLean
Application Type: Major Full Application
Target Date: 8 September 2022

Recommendation: Approve subject to Section 106 Agreement

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 Planning permission is sought for a storage and distribution warehouse and
associated offices. Access to the site would be from an existing access point from
an unnamed road to the south. A further access point is proposed from
Chessingham Park, to the north, to allow for access to the unused part of the site to
the west. 50 vehicle parking spaces and 12 cycle parking spaces are proposed. The
proposed building will be used for storage of short term and emergency stock to
enable Northern Powergrid to ensure that the operation of the electrical network is
maintained. The new office building will allow Northern Powergrid to amalgamate
two of their existing York sites, one office (Toft Green) and one warehouse (Birch
Park, Huntington, into a new shared facility.

1.2 There would be 63 Full time employment positions. There is to be space for 58
staff workstations within the office building, however many of the staff are peripatetic
in their job roles and will not all be on site at any one time. There is also space for a
further 4 staff workstations to the logistics office within the new warehouse. It is
anticipated thereafter there will be 1 large vehicle movement per day and a further 1
HGV delivery to site per week to replenish stock levels following the initial stocking
period. The proposed hours of operation would be 07.30 to 16.30 hours.

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 8

1.3 The site lies within Flood Zone 1. There are two sewers running underneath the
application site. The majority of the site is hardstanding, the site has recently been
cleared of buildings. The site is enclosed by a fence. To the west of the site is a
Public Right of Way (14/8/20). The site is within an industrial estate

1.4 The proposed development does not comprise 'Schedule 1' development. The
proposed development is however of a type listed at 10 (b) in column 1 of Schedule
2 (Urban Development Projects) of The Town and Country Planning (Environmental
Impact Assessment) Regulations 2017. It is the view of Officers that the proposed
site is not within or adjacent to an environmentally sensitive area (as specified in the
regulations) and taking into account the characteristics of the proposed
development, the location of the development, and characteristics of the potential
impact, the proposed development would not result in significant environmental
effects and therefore it is considered that an Environmental Impact Assessment is
not required.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 The City of York Draft Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes was
approved for Development Management purposes in April 2005:

GP1 Design

GP4a Sustainability

GP6 Contaminated Land

GP15a Development and Flood Risk

T4 Cycle Parking Standards

T13a Travel Plans and Contributions

MW7 Temporary Storage for Recyclable Material

2.2 The Publication Draft York Local Plan (2018)

D1 Placemaking

GI2 Biodiversity and Access to Nature

CC1 Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
CC2 Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
ENV1 Air Quality

ENV2 Managing Environmental Quality

ENV3 Land Contamination

ENV5 Sustainable Drainage

WM1 Sustainable Waste Management

T1 Sustainable Access

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 9

INTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

HIGHWAY NETWORK MANAGEMENT

3.1 The provision of 26 vehicle parking spaces and 13 cycle spaces is considered to
be acceptable, 2 disabled bays and 3EV bays. Proposed would result in a maximum
of 24 movements at busiest peak hour, as this does not exceed 30 movements in

any one direction no highway of junction capacity assessment is required and there
would be no material impact on the highway network in terms of capacity and safety

3.2 Request that a full travel plan be sought via condition. Travel Plan Coordinator is
to be funded by the developer — the level of funding should be stated by the
applicant to ascertain whether the TPC role is sufficiently funded to avoid TPC
responsibilities being subsumed within another role and ensure TPC responsibilities
are given sufficient priority against other potentially competing responsibilities. This
funding could be set out in a S106 agreement, which could also include funding for
CYC Travel Plan support

3.3 Request conditions for: Construction Traffic Management Plan; Internal turning
areas to be provided; Proximity of gate to highway; Servicing within site; the
construction of new access from Chessingham Park.

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (LANDSCAPE
ARCHITECT)

3.4 No objection, There are a few trees around the perimeter of the site that are
worthy of retention. These appear to be unaffected by the proposed development.
This includes the three Sycamore trees in the eastern corner of the site, although |
note that they are located immediately adjacent to two manhole covers and a
number of drainage runs, so the re-development may affect these. However the
trees on the site do not have such significant public amenity value that they are
worthy of a TPO.

3.5 Note there is no landscape plan accompanying the application. Given the
condition of the existing site and its location away from the public realm (other than
a PROW in the west, from which it is separated by a tall conifer hedge) not sure it
would be necessary to require new planting on the site. However officers may feel
that some sort of outdoor provision for employees would be appropriate.

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT (ECOLOGY
OFFICER)

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 10

3.6 No objections, The Ecological Impact Assessment (EclA) states that the site
provides suitable habitat for amphibians, including Common toad. As the proposed
works have the potential to harm amphibians, precautionary working methods will be
required during the construction phase of the project. It is recommended that the
applicant continues to work with an ecological consultant to provide an appropriate
amphibian method statement and identify where the proposed works will require the
supervision of an ecologist. Request that Amphibian Method Statement is sought via
condition

3.7 The site offers suitable habitat for nesting birds. Precautionary methods will
therefore be required to ensure active nests are not destroyed during any vegetation
clearance or tree works. Request this is sought via condition

3.8 The increased structural integrity of modern developments reduces the potential
for birds and bats to use modern buildings for nesting and roosting, therefore any
new developments should integrate a variety of bird and bat boxes/features.
Request this is sought via condition

DESIGN, CONSERVATION AND SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT
(ARCHAEOLOGY)

3.9 No impact and no archaeological conditions are required
LEAD LOCAL FLOOD AUTHORITY

3.10 No objections in principle to: the proposed building stand-off from public rising
main centre-line (of three metres);the proposed building position over the 225 mm
diameter public combined sewer subject to a Formal Build over agreement prior to
construction; the proposed separate systems of drainage on site with combined off-
site; the proposed amount of domestic foul water to be discharged to the public
combined sewer network; the proposed amount of curtilage surface water to be
discharged to the public combined sewer network at a restricted rate of 7.7 (seven
point seven) litres/second); the proposed point of discharge of foul and surface
water to the 225 mm diameter public combined sewer crossing the site, and; the
proposed use of full retention separators.

PUBLIC PROTECTION

3.11 This site is located on land previously used for industry therefore the applicant
has submitted a Solmek Phase 1 desk top study ref S200510 dated May 2020 and
Solmek Phase 2 site investigation ref S200510/S| dated June 2020. These reports

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 11

are acceptable and demonstrate based on the site investigation results that the site
Is suitable for the proposed use. Request condition for the reporting of unexpected
contamination

3.12 In line with paragraph 107(e) of the NPPF, developments should be designed
to incorporate facilities for charging plug-in and other ultra low emission vehicles in
safe, accessible and convenient locations. City of York Council’s draft Low
Emissions Supplementary Planning Guidance requires 5% of all car parking spaces
to be provided with electric vehicle charge points. An additional 5% (minimum) of
car parking spaces should have the potential to be easily upgraded with electric
vehicle charge points in the future. This will require consideration of future power
requirements for such points and any necessary cabling and groundwork to be
installed from the outset. Spaces should be for the exclusive use of low emission
vehicles. Request condition for electric vehicle recharging facilitates

3.13 There are residential dwellings approximately 80 metres from the site. As the
proposal is for distribution there may be activities involving reversing bleepers and
traffic movements. Request condition for details of machinery that is audible outside
of the premises, to be submitted

PUBLIC RIGHTS OF WAY TEAM

3.14 Public Footpath, Dunnington No 8, which runs to the west of the site will not be
directly affected by the proposed development. Therefore no comments

CARBON REDUCTION TEAM

3.15 An energy statement and Low or Zero Carbon (LZC) technology feasibility
study has been provided alongside the Full Planning Application. The report makes
clear it has considered both York Planning Policies relating to carbon reduction
(CC1 & CC2) detailing a predicted carbon emissions reduction of 34.2% (CC1) and
aiming for a BREEAM excellent rating (CC2). The 34.2% carbon emissions
reduction will be achieved through fabric efficiency and the application of efficient
heating and lighting systems. The BREEAM Excellent standard outlined in CC2 is a
minimum requirement. Request following conditions: reduction in carbon emission of
at least 28%; development shall achieve BREEAM ‘excellent’.

EXTERNAL CONSULTATIONS

DUNNINGTON PARISH COUNCIL

3.16 No objections, The Energy Assessment recommendations in respect of 10.1
Low/Zero Carbon Technologies (LZT) Discounted are very disappointing for a

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 12

development of this size and greater consideration should be given to this particular
area. Part of these recommendations conflict with an email response from Matrix
Architecture which states that there will be PV panels on the south facing roof and
two air source heat pumps which, if that is the case, fully support this initiative.

3.17 The Arboricultural report includes the removal of some cypress trees to
facilitate a new site access. It also mentions reducing the height of this hedge to
maintain a cohesive form. Support this subject to the hedge being regularly
maintained

3.18 Three cherry trees are noted for felling as they are either dead, diseased or
unstable. Whilst do not have any problem with this aspect there does not appear to
be any reference to replacements which we would recommend and support subject
to them being small native trees such as hawthorn, rowan or crab apple.

3.19 Welcome and support the commitment made in the Ecological Impact
Assessment regarding the mitigation proposals in respect of 'landscape planting
bearing flowers, nectar and fruits which are attractive to invertebrates, thereby
helping to maintain the food resources for birds and wildlife generally’

YORKSHIRE WATER

3.20 Yorkshire Water has no objection in principle to: The proposed building stand-
off from public rising main centre-line (of three metres); The proposed building
position over the 225 mm diameter public combined sewer subject to a Formal
Buildover agreement prior to construction; The proposed separate systems of
drainage on site with combined off-site; The proposed amount of domestic foul
water to be discharged to the public combined sewer network ; The proposed
amount of curtilage surface water to be discharged to the public combined sewer
network at a restricted rate of 7.7 (seven point seven) litres/second); The proposed
point of discharge of foul and surface water to the 225 mm diameter public
combined sewer crossing the site; The proposed use of full retention separators

3.21 In this instance, Yorkshire Water would look for the building over of the 225 mm
diameter sewer to be controlled by formal building over agreement between
Yorkshire Water and the developer. It would appear that the public rising main is
unlikely to be affected by building-over proposals.

3.22 A proposal by the developer to alter/divert a public sewer will be subject to
Yorkshire Water's requirements and formal procedure in accordance with Section
185 Water Industry Act 1991.

OUSE AND DERWENT INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD
Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 13

3.23 The Board has assets in the wider area in the form of Hagg Lane Drain and
Common Drain. These watercourses are known to be subject to high flows during
storm events. The Board notes that the applicant intends to use the mains sewer for
the disposal of surface water incorporating Sustainable Urban Drainage. Request
that the Planning Practice Guidance hierarchy for the management of surface water
is followed

3.24 The Board awaits the results of soakaway testing and the drainage discharge
rate calculation. Seek drainage details via condition

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 Two representation of comments

- Do not object to building of proposals, over the past 5 years 2 pairs of Oyster
catchers nest and rear their chicks on this site. Any building work done at breeding
time would be detrimental to these birds. Request part of the site be left as a future
breeding site

4.2 One representation of support
- No objections, welcome development on this site which has been neglected for
some years .

5.0 APPRAISAL

5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The site is not considered to be within the
general extent of the Green Belt.

PUBLICATION DRAFT YORK LOCAL PLAN (2018)

5.2 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan’) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. In accordance with
paragraph 48 of the NPPF as revised in February 2019, the relevant 2018 Draft Plan
policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation,
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 14

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be

assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

DEVELOPMENT CONTROL LOCAL PLAN (2005)

5.3 The Development Control Local Plan Incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
was approved for development management purposes in April 2005 (DCLP). Whilst
the DCLP does not form part of the statutory development plan, its policies are
considered to be capable of being material considerations in the determination of
planning applications. Where policies relevant to the application are consistent with
those in the NPPF, the weight that can be afforded to them is very limited.

DUNNINGTON VILLAGE DESIGN STATEMENT (2006)

5.4 The relevant guidelines are as follows: 41(Developments on the industrial
estate should be effectively screened), 42 (developments should be in keeping with
the established rooflines and not exceed the height of the present buildings.), 43
(Estate has close proximity to residential, businesses should create minimal noise,
light and odour emissions), and 44 (Developments should respect the estate’s close
proximity to Hassacarr Nature Reserve, and should have no adverse effect upon it).

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF)

5.5 The planning policies of the National Planning Policy Framework as published
are a material consideration in the determination of planning applications. The
NPPF sets out the presumption in favour of sustainable development in paragraph
11.

VISUAL AMENITY AND CHARACTER

5.6 Chapter 12 of the NPPF gives advice on design, placing great importance to that
design of the built environment. In particular, paragraph 130 of the NPPF states that
planning decisions should ensure that development, inter alia, will add to the overall
guality of the area, be visually attractive, sympathetic to local character and history
and have a high standard of amenity for existing and future users. This advice is
reflected in Draft Local Plan policy GPlof the 2005 Draft Local Plan and D1 of the
2018 Draft Local Plan and, therefore, these policies can be given weight.

5.7 The proposal would bring a vacant employment site into use. The site is
centrally located within the Dunnington Industrial Estate. Officers understand that
the site was previously used of the storage of modular buildings. Aerial photos show

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 15

the site was vacant in 2017, and streetview and aerial photos appear to show the
site has been vacant since this time.

5.8 The proposed building would measure 77.5 metres by 20 metres. The maximum
height of the building would be 9.3 metres. The walls and roof would be metal
cladding in a grey finish. The elevations indicate photovoltaic panels to the office
roof, and air source heat pumps. The design of the proposed building is considered
to be in keeping with the surrounding business units. The proposed cladding in a
grey colour finish is considered to be acceptable in this location. There is an existing
mixture of unit sizes within the business park. The proposed unit is relatively large
and would add to the variety of accommodation within the business park and the
wider York Area.

HIGHWAYS

5.9 The NPPF encourages development that is sustainably located and accessible.
Paragraph 110(b) requires that all development achieves safe and suitable access
for all users. It advises at paragraph 111 that development should only be prevented
or refused on highway grounds if there would be an unacceptable impact on
highway safety, or the residual cumulative impacts on the road network would be
severe. Further, paragraph 112 requires development to, inter alia, give priority first
to pedestrians and cycle movements and create places that are safe, secure and
attractive thereby minimising the scope for conflicts between pedestrians, cyclists
and vehicles. Policy T1 of the 2018 emerging Local Plan supports the approach of
the NPPF in that it seeks the safe and appropriate access to the adjacent adopted
highway, giving priority to pedestrians and cyclists.

5.10 The business park is not directly served by public transport, the nearest bus
stop is about 340m served by route nos. 46/X46 between Pocklington and York
operating approximately every half-hour daytime Mon to Sat. Alternative services
serve the village centre about 1.2km to the north of the site, with the no.10 running
at a daytime 30 minute frequency between Stamford Bridge and York.

5.11 Sufficient cycle parking and vehicle parking provision has been provided. The
additional access allows for the unused part of the site to be used in the future. The
requirement for electric vehicle recharging facilities is in line with guidance contained
within the NPPF and the Councils low emission strategy. It is considered that they
can be sought by condition.

5.12 The proposals are considered to be acceptable in terms of principle of
development and their impact on the surrounding highway network. It is considered
necessary to condition the submission of a travel plan. The Highway Network
Management team have requested that contribution of £10,000 towards the City of

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 16

York Travel Plan support. These obligations are considered to comply with
Regulation 122 of the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (CIL).

BIODIVERSITY

5.13 Section 40 of the Natural Environment and Rural Communities Act 2006 places
a duty on all public authorities to have regard, in the exercise of the functions, to the
purpose of conserving biodiversity. Paragraph 174 of the NPPF requires planning
decisions to contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by, inter
alia, minimising impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity. Draft Local Plan
policies reflect this advice in relation to trees, protected species and habitats.

5.14 Paragraph 180 of the NPPF advises that if significant harm to biodiversity from
a development cannot be avoided, adequately mitigated, or, as a last resort,
compensated for, then planning permission should be refused. The Ecology Officer
Is satisfied with the submitted ecology information and that there are no protected
species in the building. It is considered that the recommendations of the report can
be sought via condition.

RESIDENTIAL AMENITY

5.15 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF seeks a good standard of amenity for all existing
and future occupants, and that developments will function well and add to the overall
guality of the area, not just for the short term but over the lifetime of the
development; are sympathetic to local character and history, including the
surrounding built environment and landscape setting. Policy GP1 of the 2005
Development Control Draft Local Plan and policies D1 and ENV2 of the 2018 Draft
Local Plan seek to ensure that development proposals do not unduly affect the
amenity of nearby residents in terms of noise disturbance, overlooking,
overshadowing or from overbearing structures.

5.16 The proposed development is a minimum 75 metres from residential
properties. It is considered unlikely that the proposed use would affect the
residential amenity of the occupants of these dwellings however it is considered
necessary to condition that details of any machinery that are audible outside the
development boundary should be submitted via condition

DRAINAGE

5.17 The NPPF requires that suitable drainage strategies are developed for sites, so
there is no increase in flood risk elsewhere. Local Plan Policy GP15a (Development

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 17

and Flood Risk) and Publication Draft York Local Plan (2018) Policy ENV5
Sustainable Drainage) advise discharge from new developments should not exceed
the capacity of receptors and water run-off should, in relation to existing runoff rates,
be reduced.

5.18 There are two sewers running across the site. Only one would appear to be
affected by the proposals. Yorkshire Water have confirmed they have no objections
to the proposed building being built over the sewer subject to a formal building over
agreement between Yorkshire Water and the developer.

5.19 An acceptable drainage scheme has been submitted, it is considered
necessary to condition that the development would be constructed in full accordance
with the submitted plans

SUSTAINABILITY

5.20 Policy CC1 ‘Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage’
requires that all new buildings must achieve a reasonable reduction in carbon
emissions of at least 28% unless it can be demonstrated that this is not viable. The
revised Building Regulations that came into force in June 2022 (with a transition
period) exceed Policy CC1 requirements for reduction in carbon emissions. It is
noted that an application for building regulations consent was made prior to June
2022; officers understand the development would be constructed in accordance with
the previous building regulations. Therefore the 28% reduction in carbon emissions
is relevant to this application. The submitted Energy Statement sets out that they
expect to achieve at least 28% carbon emission savings. It is considered that it is
necessary to condition to ensure the requirement is met.

5.21 Policy CC2 ‘Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development’ states
that developments which demonstrate high standards of sustainable design and
construction will be encouraged. Development proposals will be required to
demonstrate energy and carbon dioxide savings in accordance with the energy
hierarchy and water efficiency. The policy requires that all new non-residential
buildings with a total internal floor area of 100m2 or greater should achieve
BREEAM ‘Excellent’ (or equivalent). The Local Plan Policy CC2 is considered to
have moderate weight given the evidence base that supports it. The submitted
Energy Statement sets out that they intend to target BREEAM excellent rating. It is
considered that it is necessary to condition to ensure the requirement is met.

6.0 CONCLUSION

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 18

6.1 The development would accord with the NPPF, the Draft Local Plan (2005) and
the Draft Local Plan (2018). On balance, the proposal complies with the thrust of
national and local planning policy.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION:

That delegated authority be given to the Head of Planning and Development
Services to APPROVE the application subject to:

a. The completion of a Section 106 Agreement to secure the following planning
obligations:

Travel Plan
£10,000 towards the City of York Travel Plan support

ii The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to
finalise the terms and details of the Section 106 Agreement.

lii The Head of Planning and Development Services be given delegated authority to
determine the final detail of the planning conditions

Conditions
1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Drawing Number 3374(B)03 '‘Ordnance Survey Location Plan' received 212 August
2022;

Drawing Number 3374(C)01 Revision C 'Ground Floor Plan as Proposed' received
24 May 2022;

Drawing Number 3374(C)02 Revision A 'Proposed Elevations' received 28 April
2022;

Drawing Number 3374(C)03 Revision E 'Proposed Overall Site Plan' received 12
August 2022;;

Drawing Number 3374(C)04 Revision F 'Proposed Site Plan' received 12 August
2022;;

Drawing Number 3374(C)05 Revision F 'Proposed Roof Plan’ received 12 August
2022;

Drawing Number 3374(C)06 'Proposed Cycle Shelter' received 26 November 2021,
Drawing Number 3374(C)07 Revision B 'Proposed 'Clean’ Site Plan' received 12
August 2022;;

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 19

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Prior to the first occupation of the development 2 Electric Vehicle Recharging
Point(s) shall be provided in a position and to a specification submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. In addition, a minimum of 2
additional parking bays should be identified for the future installation of additional
Electric Vehicle Charging Points. Such additional bays should be provided with all
necessary ducting, cabling and groundwork to facilitate the addition of Electric
Vehicle Charge Points in the future, if required (passive provision). The locations of
these additional bays shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. Charging points should be located in a prominent position on
the site and should be for the exclusive use of zero emission vehicles.

Reason: To promote and facilitate the uptake of electric vehicles on the site in line
with the Council's Low Emission Strategy (LES) and the National Planning Policy
Framework (NPPF).

Notes

0 Electric Vehicle Charging Points should incorporate a suitably rated 32A 'IEC
62196’ electrical socket to allow 'Mode 3' charging of an electric vehicle. The exact
specification is subject to agreement in writing with the council.

0 Charging points should be located in a prominent position on the site and
should be for the exclusive use of zero emission vehicles. Parking bay marking and
signage should reflect this.

0 All electrical circuits/installations shall comply with the electrical requirements
in force at the time of installation

4 In the event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it shall be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment shall be undertaken
and, if remediation is necessary, a remediation strategy shall be prepared, and
submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation strategy, a
verification report shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning
Authority. It is strongly recommended that all reports are prepared by a suitably
qualified and competent person.

Reason: To ensure that the site is suitable for its proposed use taking account of
ground conditions and any risks arising from land contamination.

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 20

5 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on
the premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These details shall include
average sound levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise
mitigation measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise
mitigation measures shall be fully implemented and operational before the proposed
use first opens and shall be appropriately maintained thereatfter.

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant
or equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during
the hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of
23:00 to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed
in accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

6 Prior to the commencement of development, including any site clearance
works, an Amphibian Method Statement should be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The method statement shall include the
following;

0 Description of development proposal and works;

0 Risk assessment to consider site description, proposed working areas,
potential impacts of works and an assessment of potential impacts amphibians; and
0 Methods of working, to include appointment of Ecological Clerk of Works,
toolbox talk, timing and extent of works, prevailing weather conditions, site
supervision, methods of working (hand searching, destructive searching vegetation
removal etc) and what action to be taken in the event that amphibians were to be
encountered on site.

Reason: To limit harm, injury and disturbance to amphibians on site.

7 No vegetation clearance or tree works shall take place between 1st March and
31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful,
detailed check of suitable habitat for active birds' nests immediately before the
works and provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that
there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any
such written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 21

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

Informative: The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act
1981, as amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the
nest of any wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a
development does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act.
Buildings, trees and scrub are likely to contain nesting birds between 1st March and
31st August inclusive. Suitable nesting habitat is present on the application site and
are to be assumed to contain nesting birds between the above dates, unless a
recent survey has been undertaken by a competent ecologist to assess the nesting
bird activity on site during this period and has shown it is absolutely certain that
nesting birds are not present.

8 A biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of works. The
plan should include a minimum of two bat boxes/roosting features, suitable for
crevice dwelling species and four boxes for nesting birds.

Informative: To discharge the condition the applicant will need to provide a plan or
drawing showing the proposed locations and product specifications of the bat and
bird features.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF to contribute to
and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on and
providing net gains for biodiversity, including establishing coherent ecological
networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures.

9 The development shall be carried out in full accordance with the details
contained in the Drainage Strategy ref 304-20-010, dated 08 November 2021 by Bell
Munro Consulting, (received 12 January 2022), unless otherwise agreed in writing
with the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In the interest of satisfactory and sustainable drainage

10 The development hereby approved shall be constructed to a BREEAM
standard of 'Excellent’. A formal Post Construction assessment by a licensed
BREEAM assessor shall be carried out and a copy of the certificate shall be
submitted to the Local Planning Authority within 12 months of first use of the building
(unless otherwise agreed).

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 22

Reason: In the interests of achieving a sustainable development in accordance with
the requirements of the NPPF

11 The development hereby permitted shall achieve a reduction in carbon
emissions of at least 28% compared to the target emission rate as required under
Part L of the Building Regulations 2013. Prior to commencement of construction,
details of the measures undertaken to secure compliance with this condition shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. The
development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved details.

Reason: To fulfil the environmental objectives of the NPPF and support the
transition to a low carbon future, and in accordance with policies CC1 and CC2 of
the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018

12  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved
plans for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles and cycles have been constructed
and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall
be retained solely for such purposes.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

13  No part of the development shall be occupied until a Full Travel Plan has been
submitted and approved in writing by the LPA. The Travel Plan should be developed
and implemented in line with local and national guidelines and the Travel Plan ref:
1056-TP Revision 2 Dated 28 June 2022. The site shall thereafter be occupied in
accordance with the aims, measures and outcomes of said Travel Plan.

Within 12 months of occupation of the site a first year travel survey shall have been
submitted to and approved in writing by the LPA. Results of annual travel surveys
carried out over period of 5 years from the first survey shall then be submitted
annually to the authority's travel plan officer for approval.

INFORMATIVE: The travel plan shall contain; information on how private car
ownership will be prevented, measures to prevent occupants parking on the
adjacent streets

Reason: To promote sustainable transport and in the interests of good design in
accordance with section 9 of the NPPF.

14  No part of the site shall come into use until the turning areas have been

provided in accordance with the approved plans. Thereafter the turning areas shall
be retained free of all obstructions and used solely for the intended purpose.

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 23

Reason: To enable vehicles to enter and leave the site in a forward gear thereby
ensuring the safe and free passage of traffic on the public highway.

15 No barrier or gate to any vehicular access shall be erected within 6 metres of
the rear of the footway abutting this site on Chessingham Park, without the prior
written approval of the Local Planning Authority, and shall at no time open towards
the public highway.

The pedestrian gates, detailed in the plans, shall not at no time open towards the
public highway.

Reason: To prevent obstruction to other highway users.

16 The development hereby permitted shall not come into use until the
construction of the vehicular access to Chessingham Park has been carried out in
accordance with details which shall have been previously submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, or arrangements entered into
which ensure the same.

Reason: In the interests of the safe and free passage of highway users. To retain
the neighbouring land in employment use.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, the Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
in seeking solutions to problems identified during the processing of the application.
The Local Planning Authority took the following steps in order to achieve a positive
outcome:

- Requested additional information
- Use of conditions

2. Construction Noise and Dust

Due to the close proximity of other commercial premises then the following
informatives should be added to any planning approval to ensure that noise and
dust emissions are controlled during construction:

The developer's attention should also be drawn to the following which should be

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 24

attached to any planning approval as an informative.

1.  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and dispatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:
Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00

Saturday 09.00 to 13.00

Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

2.  The work shall be carried out in such a manner so as to comply with the
general recommendations of British Standards BS 5228-1:2009 + A1:2014 and BS
5228-2:2009 + A1:2014, a code of practice for "Noise and Vibration Control on
Construction and Open Sites".

3. Best practicable means shall be employed at all times in order to minimise
noise, vibration, dust, odour and light emissions. Some basic information on control
noise from construction site can be found using the following link.
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/304/developers_guide_for_controlling
pollution_and_noise_from_construction_sites

4.  All plant and machinery to be operated, sited and maintained in order to
minimise disturbance. All items of machinery powered by internal combustion
engines must be properly silenced and/or fitted with effective and well-maintained
mufflers in accordance with manufacturers instructions.

5. There shall be no bonfires on the site.
3. OUSE AND DERWENT INTERNAL DRAINAGE BOARD INFORMATIVE

Under the Land Drainage Act 1991 and the Internal Drainage Boards' byelaws, the
Board's prior written consent (outside of the planning process) is needed for:-

a) any connection into a Board maintained watercourse, or any ordinary
watercourse in the Board's district.

b) any discharge, or change in the rate of discharge, into a Board maintained
watercourse, or any ordinary watercourse in the Board's district. This applies
whether the discharge enters the watercourse either directly or indirectly (i.e. via a
third party asset such as a mains sewer).

c) works within or over a Board maintained watercourse, or any ordinary

watercourse in the Board's district - for example, land drainage, an outfall structure,
bridges, culverting etc.

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a


https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/304/developers_guide_for_controlling_pollution_and_noise_from_construction_sites
https://www.york.gov.uk/downloads/download/304/developers_guide_for_controlling_pollution_and_noise_from_construction_sites

Page 25

Please note that the Board does not, generally, own any watercourses and the
requirement for you to obtain

the Board's consent is in addition to you obtaining consent from any land owner or
other authority to carry

out the relevant works. Full details of the Consent process can be found on the
Board's website:- http://www.yorkconsort.gov.uk

4. Yorkshire Water Informative

The developer should also note that the site drainage details submitted have not
been approved for the purposes of adoption or diversion. If the developer wishes to
have the sewers included in a sewer adoption/diversion agreement with Yorkshire
Water (under Sections 104 and 185 of the Water Industry Act 1991), they should
contact Yorkshire Water Developer Services Team (tel 0345 120 84 82, email:
technical.sewerage@yorkshirewater.co.uk ) at the earliest opportunity. Sewers
intended for adoption and diversion should be designed and constructed in
accordance with the WRc publication 'Sewers for Adoption - a design and
construction guide for developers' 6th Edition, as supplemented by Yorkshire
Water's requirements.

5. DISPOSAL OF COMMERCIAL WASTE

Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 places a duty of care on all
producers of controlled waste, i.e. businesses that produce, store and dispose of
rubbish. As part of this duty, waste must be kept under proper control and
prevented from escaping. Collection must be arranged through a registered waste
carrier. Itis unlawful to disposal of commercial waste via the domestic waste
collection service.

Adequate arrangements are required for proper management and storage between
collections.

Section 47 of the Environmental Protection Act 1990

The storage of commercial waste must not cause a nuisance or be detrimental to
the local area. Adequate storage and collections must be in place. Where the City
of York Council Waste Authority considers that storage and/or disposal are not
reasonable, formal notices can be served (Section 47 of the Environmental
Protection Act 1990). Storage containers cannot be stored on the highway without
prior consent of the Highway Authority of City of York Council.

6. LEGAL AGREEMENT

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a


http://www.yorkconsort.gov.uk/
mailto:technical.sewerage@yorkshirewater.co.uk

Page 26

Your attention is drawn to the existence of a legal obligation under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 relating to this development

Contact details:
Case Officer: Victoria Bell
Tel No: 01904 551347

Application Reference Number: 21/02601/FULM Item No: 4a



Page 27

21/02601/FULM

Former Storage Facility Site, Derwent Valley Ind Est, Dunnington

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

Derwent Valley

Industrial Estate

WindmiII
(PH)
I

Scale: 1:1756

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments

Date 22 August 2022

Site Location Plan

, ) SLA Number [Not Set
Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B
21/02601/FULM

Former Storage Faclility Site, Derwent Valley Industrial Estate
Dunnington

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

62 abed



Site Plan

——z

Proposed 'Clean’ Site Plan
Scole 1250

==

matrixarchitecture itd

e
'CHESSINGHAM PARK, DUNNINGTON

e
PROPOSED 'CLEAN SITE PLAN

2% 812008 A0
174(CI07
o -

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

o€ abed



Elevations

9373

~{— Roof 1o be apazsiaa
Goosewing Gray - BAL:

metal ciacaing -
7058,

| re sieersecy

fry Goor - PUre Gray RAL 000 5500,

Pasning

South Elevation
Scale 1:100

0w cil.

Bolorcs solaras

#0010 be frapezoidal metal ciadding -——
Goosewing

Grey- PAL703A.

Buit-p noizontasy Kid half ound was
oasing yrem -pure Grey 2AL 0005500, |

RALD0D 5500,

any diszrepncie: pror bo commencamant ot werk.
~

Frachce and mamfachren rcemmendaiors.
Tz drawing s copight
DO NOT SCALE FROM THE DRAWING

e [oe[ometer [

A QLA A source b pmpe & photovafioe | 58
ponets added foroof.

N [-Pnorovordic pane o soun focng aivaron. | |

sotaras

e Gray RAL00O 55 00.

Yopohie & ojuc

‘ L e e g porn ‘

4

2279

PPC Steel security doer - Pure Gray RAL OO SS Q0. |

North Elevation
Scale 1:100

Buit-up norizontaly aid nad rouna wat

‘laing 7ystem - PUre Gresy RAL 000

system - Metalic Siver RAL 7006.

gl

% grey brick beiow cil |

d

verge ims & eaves flasnings 1o be Colourcoat
b~ e Grey BAL G0 3300,

o
I | I I
| I | | 4
1 1 1 s
l | I [
I | I I
T — . — N

‘ ‘ L com orey e paow o ‘ ‘

West Elevation

Scale 1:100

L -

PPC Stes! secuity doofs - Pure Grey RAL 000 55 00,

‘Verge wims & saves fosnings fo be Colourcoat
o0

Buit-up verticaty Ioid irapezsidal wal ciadding
ysiem - Mefalic Siver RAL 9006,

Buit-up horzentall laid haf
Founa wai cladding system -
Pure Grey RAL GO0 55 00.

Buit-up veriically aid frapezoic

ol
wal ciadaing system - Metalic
Siver RAL 5006,

But.up RorizonTaty I ol

East Elevation
Scale 1:100

Dank grey brick below ci.

b.‘

matrixarchitecture id

Nt Arcritechure L1d, 89 Brerkiey Way. .
Biezara Business Park, Searon Bum, NETS 8D5 @L
T0171 236095 M 07948 275164

i oo et o

e
NORTHERN POWERGRID

o8 TmE
CHESSINGHAM PARK, DUNNINGTON

sneErTE
PROPOSED ELEVATIONS

o
1:100 @ Al
= )
3374(C)02

sEvEION A

oA EX

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

T¢ obed



Floor plan

oy duerepancie: pro o cammenzement ofwork.|

Frachea and maniacheen recammardators.

e i s copyight

DO NOTSCALEFROM THS DRAWING

6100 (f 5100 %‘) 6100 (? 4100 ? 4100
| |

8250 5250

5250

Fitters
Workshop

| i
t t
\ \
| Logistics Warehouse |
‘ (946m?) ‘
Il Il
! I

; Live Line Tool Store I

Portable Equipment
Store.

Roterster

oo 2 @ & =

Ground Floor Plan as Proposed
Scale 1:100

$900ds 6 - Bupyod

Car Park - 28 spf
o A

T matrixarchitecture Id
\
[
\
il

Mt Arcritecture Lid, &7 irenkey Way,
Biezard Business park. Seaton Bum. HETS 605
T0I71 2348955 MCO7RAB 27164

E sms@matiaarchiecture.co.uk
W Wi TG TG TR GO

ey
NORTHERN POWERGRID

soamme
_______ CHESSINGHAM PARK, DUNNINGTON

sEETTE
GROUND FLOOR PLAN AS PROPOSED

seas

1:100 @ Al
Hord  secoees =)
3374(CJ01
svson ¢
oA oramn
auosz ey

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

Z2€ abed



Roof plan

SRR
i

thitecture id

. . [Ty p——
eiss iy - Lt s e s g

T:0191 2368058 M 07548 275164
Proposed Roof Plan

E smsmaTRarehiteciure.cok
W W maITRRCIBOTLIE.CO.UK
Scale 1:200

prochice and monochures recommendotors.

e craing & copight

D0 HOTSCALE FROM THE DEAWING

S PO N, .

A Idan2022  Bitng buileing: acdes. i
s 04fer R Pholorahaic panss added farost. =
e =
o s
e El
" =

Ty
NORTHERN POWERGRID

seaTme
CHESSINGHAM PARK, DUNNINGTON

eETTmE
PROPOSED ROOF PLAN

s
1:200 @ Al

= )
3374(C)05
svson_
on

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

€€ abed



Google “Globe View” Image

\|\|\| AW

|

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
~

-

Y

WA ) -
WA AN, _
1 8 2
Imagery ©2022 Google, Map data ©2022

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022




Page 35 Agenda Item 4b

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Rural West York
Team: West Area Parish: Upper Poppleton Parish
Councill

Reference: 22/00794/FUL

Application at: Northminster Business Park Harwood Road Upper Poppleton
York

For: Installation of timber clad container for use as security cabin.
Construction of gravel path.

By: Mr Alastair Gill

Application Type: Full Application

Target Date: 18 August 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1 Planning permission is sought for the installation of a timber clad steel container
to serve as a security cabin to be positioned in front of the gated entrance to
Northminster Business Park on Harwood Road. The proposal includes the
construction of a gravel pathway replacing a section of grass verge.

1.2 The container will have a height of 3 metres with a base measuring 5 metres in
length by 3 metres in depth comprising of a floor area of 15 square metres. Its
external appearance will be clad in timber and will include one window with a dark
grey frame and dark grey UPVC external door.

1.3 The Business Park was granted planning permission on appeal in 1998. The
Public Inquiry followed the decision of the Local Planning Authority to refuse
planning permission for the erection of buildings for business (B1), general industrial
(B2) and storage/distribution (B8) (ref: 97/01513/OUT) on 15.08.1997. Outline
permission was granted for a revised scheme for erection of buildings for business
(B1) general industrial (B2) and storage/distribution (B8) in October 1999
(97/02578/0OUT).

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 36

Councillor Call - In

1.4 The application has been brought to Area Planning Sub Committee by
Councillor Anne Hook on grounds that the proposal may lead to an extension to the
opening hours of the site which would increase the noise and disturbance for the
residents of Northfield Lane caused by the movements of large vehicles during the
evenings and weekends. Councillor Hook requests a planning condition to control
the hours for deliveries, dispatches, stacking etc “except between the hours of 0800
and 1800 Mon-Fri, 0800-1300 Saturday and not at all on Sunday".

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 The adopted Upper and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan (2017)

PNP1 Green Belt Policy
PNP 7 Business and Employment Policy

2.2 The Publication Draft Local Plan (2018). Relevant policies are:
SS2 The Role of York’s Green Belt
SS23 Land at Northminster Business Park

D1 Place making
Gl4 Trees and Hedgerows

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
INTERNAL

Design, Conservation And Sustainable Development (Landscape Architect)

3.1 No objection.

Design, Conservation And Sustainable Development (Ecology and Countryside

Officer)

3.2 Due to the small size of the application site detailed ecological surveys are not
required. However, as vegetation clearance will likely be required the applicant is
reminded that nesting birds may be impacted by the proposed works. It should also
be noted that all developments should aim to improve biodiversity following the
completion of works. Based on the information provided there are no objections to

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 37

the application, subject to conditions to control site clearance for the protection of
nesting birds.

Public Protection

3.3 Public Protection has considered this application in terms of all environmental
impacts (noise, air quality, contaminated land and dust) and have no objections to
the application.

EXTERNAL

Upper Poppleton Parish Council

3.4 Object. This application will facilitate 24/7 operation of the business park. It was
CYC policy at one time that activities would be restricted to certain hours and days
and this was reflected in the restrictions imposed during the planning processes.
Thus several businesses are still operating under those conditions. However if 24 /7
operation is now facilitated more businesses will, despite the existing restrictions,
feel entitled to work unrestricted days and hours and the local residents will suffer
therefrom.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

Neighbour Notification and Publicity

4.1 A response has been received on behalf of all occupants residing at nos: 1- 6
Northfield Lane who are collectively objecting to the proposal. The grounds for
objection are outlined below:

e The creation of Northminster Business Park has resulted in residents being
subjected to noise and vibrations of heavy vehicles entering the site.

e The houses on Northfield Lane have stood for a 100 years, over the last 30
years it has been transformed from a quiet dead- end country lane into an
increasingly noisy, unpleasant and risky race — track.

e The proposed building will facilitate more night time activity to the site. It is
understood that “blanket conditions” have been included on other planning
applications to control times of deliveries, dispatches and stacking of
materials. It is requested that this condition should be attached to this
application, in order to give residents respite from noise and allow
enjoyment of their homes. It is believed this is a basic right quoted in the
“‘Human Rights Act”

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 38

¢ Northfield Lane is unsuitable for an access road. New alternative routes
from connecting roads should be considered from either A59 or A1237.

¢ Northfield Lane should be closed to traffic except for pedestrians and
bicycles.

5.0 APPRAISAL
The key issues are:

o Green Belt

e Neighbour Amenity
e Design

e Ecology

POLICY CONTEXT

5.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compensation Act 2004 requires that
determinations be made in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. The development plan comprises the Upper
Poppleton and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan (adopted 2017) and the
saved policies of the Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strategy (RSS).

Upper and Nether Poppleton Neighbourhood Plan (2017)

5.2 Policy PNP 7 Business and Employment Policy states that proposals for new
business development on established business parks in the Plan Area will be
supported where they provide car parking for staff and customers to City of York
Council standards at the time of the determination of the applications.

Yorkshire and Humber Regional Spatial Strateqgy

5.3 The saved policies YH9 and Y1 state that the detailed inner and the rest of the
outer boundaries of the Green Belt around York should be defined to protect and
enhance the nationally significant historical and environmental character of York,
including its historic setting, views of the Minster and important open areas. The key
diagram shows that the site within the general extent of the Green Belt.

NATIONAL PLANNING POLICY FRAMEWORK (NPPF) (July 2021)

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 39

5.4 The revised National Planning Policy Framework was published on 21 July 2021
(NPPF) and its planning policies are material to the determination of planning
applications. In respect of proposals in the Green Belt paragraph 147 states that
inappropriate development is, by definition, harmful to the Green Belt and should not
be approved except in very special circumstances. Paragraph 149 includes defined
exceptions to the general policy that the construction of new buildings should be
regarded as inappropriate. This includes paragraph 149(g) which allows for limited
infilling of previously developed land, whether redundant or in continuing use which
would not have a greater impact on the openness of the Green Belt than the existing
development; or not cause substantial harm to the openness of the Green Belt.

THE PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2018

5.5 The Publication Draft Local Plan (‘2018 Draft Plan') was submitted for
examination on 25 May 2018. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the
Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be
given); and

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under
transitional arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January
2019 will be assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

APPRAISAL

5.6 The proposed timber clad container will be situated in front of the main entrance
gates into Northminster Business Park on a section of grass verge set back from
Harwood Road in the region of 25 metres from the junction with Northfield Lane.

5.7 The container will serve as a security cabin to provide a base for a full time night
time security guard/ gate keeper to assist with the entry of vehicles during the night
period. At present the night time vehicle entry into the site is by a fob key because
the gates are closed and locked. This requires the driver to leave the vehicle to
manually activate the gates. This system has proven unsatisfactory resulting in
occasions whereby vehicles are made to wait outside of the gates until private
security firms arrive to allow for entry into the site. The justification for the on-site
Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 40

provisions of a security guard is to ensure traffic flows freely in and out of the site
and in doing so will assist in preventing vehicles standing stationary awaiting entry
into site.

GREEN BELT

5.8 The application site and the Business Park is shown as not being within the
Green Belt in the draft 2018 Local Plan currently at examination. However the site
is currently considered to be in the general extent of the Green Belt. The proposal,
because of its location and small scale, is considered to fall within the exception to
NPPF paragraph 147 / 149 and is not inappropriate development.

DESIGN
5.9 Within the context of the Business Park, the container will not appear overly
assertive nor impact unacceptably upon the streetscene. It will be located within a

well-maintained landscaped setting within the back-drop of extensive dense
boundary hedge separating the site from Northfield Lane.

NEIGHBOUR AMENITY

5.10 Paragraph 130(f) of the NPPF seeks to achieve a good standard of amenity for
all existing and future occupants. Policy GP1 of the 2005 Development Control Draft
Local Plan and policies D1 of the 2018 Draft Local Plan seek to ensure that
development proposals do not unduly affect the amenity of nearby residents.

5.11 A letter of objection has been received from the resident of no.6 Northfield
Lane. The context of the letter explains the occupants of the terraces experience
problems with noise and vibrations from heavy vehicles entering the site which
conflicts with the enjoyment of their home and gardens and causes disturbance
during the night. As a consequence of these issues the grounds for objection relate
to concerns that the proposed building would facilitate further night-time operation to
the site.

5.12 The original appeal decision allowing outline planning permission for
development of the Business Park included a condition that

“there shall be no deliveries to the site or dispatches from the site or external
stacking or loading activities or movement of stored materials within the site outside

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 41

the hours of 0800 to 1800 on Mondays to Fridays or 0800 to 1300 on Saturdays not
at any time on Sundays, Bank or Public Holidays.”

5.13 This condition was applied to a later re-submitted outline approval. The
condition applies to developments implemented under reserved matters approvals
pursuant to these outline planning permissions. However, any new buildings
constructed under later planning permissions would not be subject to the condition
unless it was included in the decision notice for that development. Of note, the
Pavers warehouse and the DPD distribution facility are not subject to any conditions
regarding hours of delivery or dispatch. Furthermore, the conditions applied to the
original outline planning permissions does not restrict the hours of operation of the
uses to which it applies within the Business Park (other than as outlined in 5.13
above) or the arrival or departure of employees.

5.14 As outlined above a number of the developments within the Business Park are
not subject to planning controls restricting dispatch and deliveries. There are no
existing planning conditions regarding the operation of the gate. The purpose of a
permanent base for a security guard will likely ease the standing and waiting of large
vehicles and vibration from engine noises that can occur at present. Accordingly, for
this reason it is considered to assist in mitigating unwanted disturbance for residents
particularly at night periods. The hours of delivery and dispatch condition would
continue to apply to those buildings subject to the earlier planning permissions.

5.15 It is not considered that a condition seeking to restrict delivery or dispatch
access to the Business Park site could be reasonably attached to a planning
permission for the gatehouse.

ECOLOGY

5.16 The Council’s Ecology Officer has requested precaution methods will be
required where works are to take place within the nesting bird season. In this
respect Officers have advised conditions for No vegetation clearance works within
the application site shall take place between 1% March and 315 August inclusive,
unless a competent ecologist has undertaken a careful, detailed check of the
building for active birds’ nests immediately before the works commence and
provided written confirmation that no birds will be harmed and/or that there are
appropriate measures in place to protect nesting bird interest on site. Any such
written confirmation should be submitted to the local planning authority.

6.0 CONCLUSION

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 42

6.1 The application site lies within the general extent of the Green Belt but due to
the scale and location of the proposal it is not considered to constitute inappropriate
development. The proposed gatehouse is not considered likely to harm neighbour
amenity. Subject to conditions for precaution methods to protect nesting birds the
proposal complies with the Neighbourhood Plan, the National Planning Policy
Framework, and the Publication Draft Local Plan 2018.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

2852.P401 D
2852.P100C

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3  No vegetation clearance works within the application site shall take place
between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has
undertaken a careful, detailed check of the building for active birds' nests
immediately before the works commence and provided written confirmation that no
birds will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect
nesting bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to
the local planning authority.

Reason: As the vegetation within and alongside the site boundary provides suitable
habitat for nesting birds, precaution methods will be required where works are to
take place within the nesting bird season.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local policies,
considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments were
sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to work
with the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome.

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



Page 43

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Sharon Jackson
Tel No: 01904 551359

Application Reference Number: 22/00794/FUL Item No: 4b



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 45

22/00794/FUL

Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

21.0m

Pear
Tree
Farm

— l_-{r; - Wheat Lands
El Sub Sta

/

Scale: 1:1312

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000.

Department Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 21 July 2022

SLA Number

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



“——J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B
22/00794/FUL

Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road
Upper Poppleton

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

/v abed



THIS DIRAWING 15 COPYRIGHT_AHD REMAINS THE FROFERTY OF HTC
ARCHITECTS (TMUST NOT SE REFRODUCED, USED, DISCLOSED OR
TRANSMITTED 70 THIRD PARTIES IMANY FORM. IN'WHOLE OR IN FART,
WWTHOUT PRIDR WRITTEN PERMISSON

oo !
AL MEMSIORS SHOULD BE CHECHED ON SITE BEFORE
K COMMEHNCES.

‘SEE ENGINEERS DETAILS FOR AL STRUCTURAL

Site Plan VAN

l Foolpath
Harwood Road Entrance to Northminster
Business Park
- / e O
- =
Security __
Cabin .

sub
station

i

T

Box Tree

Hackness Road

g abed

JERt: - NI
iEmE

; ‘ ‘ ‘
Northminster Limited &
SCALE IN METRES
==

D123 468 W 15 =

T

Proposed Security Cabin,
Northminster Business Park, York.

Proposed Site Layout

¢ TIC ety PJD
1200 @ A2 - 21.03.2022
o 2852 P40 ]

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022 2



Wider site plan

o

Harwood Road

or

(1 =Ll

(L

- /l ﬂ"‘_—:_f‘l = Eﬂﬂ:} §
= ﬁ Wiy

]

S

Om

25m

S

TS CRANING 15 COPT FIGHT, AT FEMARES THE PRIOPLFS Y O HoC

ARCHTECTS. ITMUST KOT B REPROCUCED, LEED, DSCLOSED 08

TRAERITTED TE) THIFED FRITSIS [ AMY FORM, B WHOLE ORI PART,
WITHOAIT PRICR WRITTEN FERRSS0H

D0 HOT ECALD
ALL DIMEMSIONS SHOULDY B CHECSED ON SITE DEFOAS
WP COMMENCES

T SO CRRTT T TS T AL RO TORAL P PR

Revisions

Northminster Limited. g

Proposed Security Cabin
Morthminster Business Park, York.

Wider Site Location
tjic pib
1:1250 @ A3 05.05.2022
2552-P403 -

61 abed



Elevations
and floor
plan

THES CRAWING |18 COPYRIGHT, AND REMAINE THE FROPERTY OF HTC

ARCHITECTS. IT MUST NOT BE REPRODUCED, USED, DISCLOEED OR

TRANSMITTED TO THIRD PARTIES INANY FORM, IN WHOLE OR IN PART,
WITHOUT PRIOR WRITTEN PERMISSION.

] |

WEST ELEVATION NORTH ELEVATION

EAST ELEVATION SOUTH ELEVATION

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

DO NOT SCALEI
ALL DIMEMSIONS SHOULD BE CHECKED ON SITE BEFORE
WORK COMMENCES

ESEE ENGINEERS DETAILS FOR ALL STRUCTURAL INFORMATION

aravel

FLOOR PLAN
T T 1
L HATE Wi 1 Mok sleveion s bedd LIS
R L LI5S
PR L P — ™
[ | oo | Sescioton | D |

Studls
met S

hic-:.:rchii_e__cts

uk

Morthminster Limited._

Proposed Security Cabin,
Morthminster Business Park, York.

Proposed Floor Plan and Elevations

w TJC osssny PID
1:100 @ A3 e 21032022
S— A ] ] PR ¢

0G abed



Business Park
Entrance

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

TG obed



Northfield Lane and
Site entrance

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

2G abed



Page 53 Agenda Item 4c

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/00788/FUL

Application at: Minster Stoneyard 4 Deangate York YO1 7JA

For: Redevelopment of Stoneyard, including demolition of mason’s

By:

workshop, erection of roof structure and mezzanine floor and
reordering of existing buildings and uses to provide internal and
external workshops, storage and offices

Mr Alexander McCallion

Application Type: Full Application
Target Date: 7 June 2022
Recommendation: Approve

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

PROPOSAL

The proposed development consists of the redevelopment of the existing
Minster Stoneyard including demolition of the mason’s workshop, erection of a
roof structure and mezzanine floor and re-ordering of the existing building and
uses to provide internal and external workshops, storage and office space.

The application site is located on the south eastern side of Deangate. The site
is roughly triangular in its form. The buildings on Deangate enclose an existing
internal space which is currently occupied by a selection single storey
structures. Access to the premises is via gateways located on Deangate. The
site backs onto the terrace of buildings which front Goodramgate.

The application site sits just outside of the York Minster Cathedral Precinct
Scheduled Monument. The site is within the Central Historic Core
Conservation Area and a number of the adjacent buildings which front
Goodramgate are Listed Buildings. The application site itself is not listed.

An associated Listed Building Consent application is also considered within
this agenda - 22/00789/LBC. The LBC application relates to the same
proposal and site as this planning application. Whilst the application site itself
Is not listed, the LBC application is necessary as part of the works proposed

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



1.5

1.6

1.7

2.0

2.1

Page 54

require the lifting of an existing party wall with one of the neighbouring
properties which front Goodramgate; it is the neighbouring property that is the
Listed Building.

Also of relevance are applications 22/00803/FUL and 22/00804/LBC which
relate to proposals at The Deanery which is situated approximately 250m to
the North West of this application site and is accessed of Minster Yard. These
applications are of relevance as they include proposals which, along with
those proposed at the Stoneyard form part of the Centre of Excellence for
Heritage Craft Skills and Estate Management concept that the Minster is
pursuing.

The proposals within the Stoneyard will facilitate the installation of a new 5
Axis CNC saw, new band saw and new stone lifting system to assist with
reinforcing the supply of stone for the precinct. This element is referred to as
the Technology Hub. The proposals at the Deanery intend to deliver a facility
which better brings together the community of craftspeople and associated
trades required in the precinct — including masons, scaffolders, gardeners,
apprentices and researchers. This aspect of the proposals is referred to as the
Heritage Quad.

The Centre of Excellence is intended to begin addressing the long-standing
heritage skills shortage, which is not only felt by the Minster but also other
institutions across the country and globally. Whilst the Minster’s stoneyard is
already internationally renowned, current facilities are constrained and
inadequate for the long term task of sustaining the skills required to conserve
heritage assets. The intention of the applicant is to enhance their own in-
house skills and capabilities to the benefit of their own estate; but also, to
introduce a commercial element which will allow those skills to be traded with
other similar institutions globally.

POLICY CONTEXT

Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004).

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 55

Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning
authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses.

Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special attention be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

2.5

2.6

The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government's
overarching planning policies and at its heart is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. For decision making this means; ‘approving
development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development plan
without delay’; or where there are no relevant development plan policies, or
the policies which are most important for determining the application are out-
of-date, granting permission unless:

- The application of policies in this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and
demonstrably outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the
policies in the NPPF taken as a whole.

Paragraph 38 advises that local planning authorities should approach
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way and work
proactively with applicants to secure developments that will improve the
economic, social and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers
at every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable
development where possible.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



2.7

2.8

Page 56

Paragraph 130 states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that
developments will achieve a number of aims including:

- function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development

- be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping

- are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting

- create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and promote health and
well-being with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

The NPPF also places great importance on good design. Paragraph 132 says
that design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and
assessment of individual proposals. Paragraph 134 says that permission
should be refused for development that is not well designed. Especially where
it fails to reflect local design guidance and supplementary planning
documents.

York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan

2.9

The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood was adopted on 16" June 2022.
The Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the statutory development plan for
the City of York. Therefore applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Relevant policies within the Neighbourhood
Plan are:

Al- Purpose and Ambition

A2 - Sustainable Development

A3 — Spatial Plan

A4 — Design Excellence

C1 — Historic Environment

C2 — Listed Building Consent

C3 — Archaeology and Scheduled Monument Consent
D1 — Wellbeing

Publication Draft Local Plan 2018

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 57

2.10 The Publication Draft City of York Local Plan 2018 ('2018 Draft Plan’) was
submitted for examination on 25 May 2018. Phase 1 of the hearings into the
examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019. Phase 2 of the
hearings concluded in May 2022 with Phase 3 concluded in July 2022. Phase 4
hearings are due to commence September 2022. In accordance with paragraph 48
of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according to:

- The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the
preparation, the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the
less significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may
be given); and

- The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to
the policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (NB: Under
transitional arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24
January 2019 will be assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.11 Relevant Policies

D1 Placemaking

D4 Conservation Areas

D5 Listed Buildings

D6 Archaeology

T1 Sustainable Access

ENV2 Managing Environmental Quality

Development Control Local Plan 2005

2.12 The York Development Control draft Local Plan was approved for
development control purposes in April 2005. Its policies are material considerations
in the determination of planning applications although it is considered that their
weight is limited except when they are in accordance with the NPPF.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS
CYC Urban Design & Conservation
3.1 No Comments received at the time of writing.

CYC Archaeology
3.2 No objections raised. Whilst it is envisaged that the majority of the works will
have little to no impact on the most significant archaeological deposits. However

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 58

features such as deep foundations have the potential to disturb early medieval and
Roman levels. As a result an archaeological watching brief will be necessary; in the
event of more significant archaeological levels being revealed a hand-dug
archaeological excavation will be required. It is therefore recommended that in the
event of planning permission being granted that conditions be attached.

CYC Public Protection
3.3 No objections raised but request a series of conditions to cover matters
relating to noise, construction noise and dust and contaminated land.

CYC Highways
3.4 No objections subject to suitable cycle parking provision being provided at the
Heritage Quad.

External
Guildhall Planning Panel

3.5 Raised concerns over the impact of the outlook from properties on
Goodramgate. In particular the long blank grey coloured wall which is out of keeping
in character and size with the buildings on Goodramgate. Perhaps deleting the grey
panelling and thus reducing the overall height of the roof would improve matters.

Historic England

3.6 No objections raised and are supportive of the principle and ambition behind
the proposals. The success of the scheme will depend upon the detailing of the
scheme. Matters such as glazing details, samples of the PV array and standing zinc
seems should be discussed and agreed to the satisfaction of your in house
conservation advisers. The updated Archaeology information address the concerns
we initially raised and we are comfortable to defer to the Local Authority in house
expertise.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS
4.1 The application has been advertised via neighbour notification letter, site
notice and local press notice. A total of 3.no letters of objection have been received.

A total of 2.no letters of support have been received.

Summary of Objection comments received
Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c




4.2

Page 59

The objections received can be summarised as follows:

- The proposals would have a devastating impact on business.

- Our existing roof terrace will become unusable during construction work
which could amount to an approximate 50% loss in turn over which place
the business into debit.

- The construction will overshadow the rear of the roof terrace and destroy
the iconic view of the Minster leading once again to a loss of trade.

- The design of the building is not in keeping with the ancient buildings that
adjoin it or the surrounding area.

- Itis one of the country’s most important conservation areas and the height
and materials are not acceptable.

- The proposals adverse impact on the setting of the listed buildings on
Goodramgate is clearly demonstrated.

- Several heritage assets would be harmed by the proposed roof structure.

- The proposals would be contrary to various policies within the York Local
Plan.

- The heightened roof design seems in large part to be for aesthetic
purposes rather than practical purposes. Therefore the need for this specific
design, which accentuates the harm done by the modern roof structure is
guestionable.

Summary of Support Comments received

4.3 The comments of support received can be summarised as follows:

The proposals are one of the principal components of the York Minster
Neighbourhood Plan.

At the heart of the project is an ambitious and unflinching commitment to
sustainability; protecting heritage craft skills, creating learning opportunities
and a willingness to embrace modern technology.

The buildings have been designed with sustainability at their heart.

The proposals respect the Minster, its history and underpin its core purpose as
a centre for worship, mission and teaching, whilst furthering its commitment to
sharing knowledge and training across the North and across the world.

The plans seek to increase opportunities for collaboration and learning with
other heritage institutions; and the project is already establishing strong
international partnerships — which can only be a good thing economically,
culturally and socially for the Minster, York and the wider City Region.

It demonstrates that promoting sustainability and tackling climate change can
sit comfortably alongside heritage protection.

Through the generous support of York Minster Fund, this project is fully funded
and can be operational quickly.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.0

5.1

Page 60

This is a once in a generation opportunity to safeguard the future of heritage
skills in York.

The National Trust owns and manages a number of local properties within the
vicinity of the application sites, including Treasurers House, the National Trust
Shop, holiday accommodation and commercial shops on Stonegate.
Consequently, National Trust has an interest in how the area is to be
developed.

National Trust considers the proposals to be an improvement on present
facilities. They will allow the craft teams to enhance their skills and grow
heritage training opportunities.

The proposals will also allow for greater opportunities for visitor engagement
and highlighting the craft skills at York Minster.

National Trust are currently developing Specialist Skilled Centres for Masonry
and Joinery work across the North region and we believe that these would
greatly benefit from having a high quality York Minster Centre of Excellence.

APPRAISAL

KEY ISSUES:

- Principle of Development

- Impact Upon Heritage Assets

- Access & Highways

- Design and Impact upon neighbouring amenity
- Public Benefit

Principle of Development

5.2

5.3

5.4

The proposed development, in broad terms, will see the remodelling of the
existing Stoneyard. The works will include the provision of a new roof which
will in turn facilitate the installation of new equipment within the stoneyard.

The Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan (“NP”) was adopted on 16" June
2022. At which point it became part of the adopted development plan for the
city. Therefore applications for planning permission must be determined in
accordance with the development plan unless material considerations indicate
otherwise.

The overarching purpose and ambition of the Minster NP is for York Minster
and its precinct to ‘fulfil its ordained purpose as a Metropolitical Cathedral, a
centre of worship and mission, and to maintain and enhance its role as a

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.5

5.6

5.7

Page 61

cultural lynchpin in the City of York and a home to many residents and
businesses.’ The NP is intended to guide and inform development proposals
and the management of the Minster and its Precinct.

Policy A2 of the Minster NP promotes a presumption in favour of sustainable
development, in line with the NPPF. In the context of the NHP these objectives
consist of:

Economic — the Minster needs to be financially sustainable to pay for the
running and restoration of the Minster and its Precinct. The quality of the
Precinct environment and its visitor welcome supports the economic wellbeing
of other businesses within the Neighbourhood Area. Social — to offer
community access and a safe and welcoming Precinct with accessible public
green space which contributes to the social health and cultural wellbeing of the
city. Environmental — to contribute to protecting and enhancing the natural and
historic environment and character of the Neighbourhood Area. To contribute
to improving biodiversity, minimising waste and pollution and reducing the
carbon footprint over the Plan period.

In the case of this current application. The application site is not located within
one of the four defined project areas. As such the general policies of the NHP
(Policies A-F) apply and support the delivery of enhancements to the Precincts
public realm, green infrastructure and buildings to create a world class series
of spaces and places.

Emerqging Local Plan (2018)

5.8

5.9

The application site is not located within specific allocations, such as defined
housing site, employment site or primary shopping area. As such there are no
policies within the emerging Local Plan which would specifically restrict or
raise in principle issues to the proposed development.

The Centre of Excellence

The applicant wishes to establish a Centre of Excellence for Heritage Craft
Skills and Estate Management within the Minster Precinct. The proposals are
focussed around a campus style facility. The vision for the Centre of
Excellence is a key element of the Minster Precinct NHP. The aim is to create
a world class campus for research, education and training in ancient craft skills

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.10

5.11

5.12

5.13

5.14

Page 62

that are vital to the ongoing cycle of repair, restoration and conservation and
development of York Minster and other ancient buildings.

The intention is to develop and nurture the specialist skills that are required to
maintain the Minster and its precinct. These skills and expertise can then be
shared outside of the Precinct to the benefit of the Minster and other
institutions.

Overall it is considered that, in principle, the development proposals would
accord with the provisions of the NPPF, policies contained within the Minster
Precinct NHP and the emerging Local Plan. This subject to all other material
considerations being considered to be acceptable; matters which are
discussed later in this report.

Impact upon Heritage Assets

As set out earlier in this report. The application site is located within the
Central Historic Core Conservation Area. The site is also within a designated
Area of Archaeological Importance. In addition to this the site is immediately
adjacent to the designated Scheduled Monument which comprises of York
Minster Cathedral precinct. Finally, there are a number of Listed Buildings, of
varying grades within the immediate vicinity of the site. All of which are
heritage assets.

Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states: ‘Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as
World Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of Outstanding
Universal Value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be
conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future
generations.” The Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal identifies
the application site as being a building of merit.

In assessing the proposals and determining applications there is a need under
paragraph 197 of the NPPF to take account of; the desirability of sustaining
and enhancing the significance of the heritage assets and putting them to
viable uses consistent with their conservation. The positive contribution that
conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.15

5.16

5.17

5.18

Page 63

including their economic vitality; and the desirability of new development
making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.

Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states: ‘When considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset,
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more
important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm to its significance. Polices D4 and D5 of the Draft Local
Plan make similar provisions. The duties placed upon the LPA under sections
66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
are also relevant (as set out at 2.2 and 2.3 above).

It is important to consider that potential impacts can take a number of differing
forms. There are physical impacts such as those which can occur because of
the provision of new buildings or changes to existing buildings and built forms.
However, impacts can also be felt in more sensory terms, these can be as
result of a change in how a building or space is used; this may introduce new
noises which change the existing ambiance of the built environment.

The existing Stoneyard comprises of a broadly triangular arrangement of
buildings. The frontage to Denagate is enclosed by a two storey brick building
which runs parallel to Deangate; internal views into the yard are limited to
views through the existing arched gateways, which are only open when
required. The South/South Western flank of the site is enclosed by another
two/three storey building which creates a built boundary with the neighbouring
former Minster Song School site. Much of the Eastern elevation is enclosed by
the neighbouring properties which front Goodramgate. At the North Eastern
most point of the site some glimpsed views into the site are available by virtue
of the space between the application site and the neighbouring Cross Keys
public house and its courtyard. These built features create a triangular void
within the site. This is currently filled with varying workshops which have
accumulated in a piecemeal manner over the course of the 20™ Century.
Aerial images of the site show a mixture of roof forms and roof finishes
typically of corrugated and profile sheet form.

As part of the information submitted the applicants have undertaken a
Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA). This has identified that the proposals have
the potential to affect the character and appearance of the York Central

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.19

5.20

5.21

5.22

Page 64

Historic Core Conservation Area. The rear boundary walls of 36 and 38
Goodramgate (curtilage listed, Grade Il) and the significance of 4-6 Deangate
as non-designated heritage assets. Furthermore the HIA has identified that the
proposals have the potential to affect the setting of The Minster (Grade | and
Scheduled Ancient Monument), The Cross Keys (Public House) and attached
yard, gateway and wall (Grade Il), 7 Minster Yard (Grade Il), 6 Minster Yard
(Grade II*) and various Grade Il listed properties lining the west side of
Goodramgate.

The design of the proposals has been conceived with the stonemasons and
contemporary best practice. The works will allow for the provision of a track
system which can collect stone from Deangate for distribution throughout the
building and storage on a racking system. Stone would be cut using the large
wire saw or CNC machine before being transferred to the Heritage Quad
(22/00803/FUL). The proposals have been designed to accommodate the
functional requirements of the equipment. The lifted roof will create an open-
plan space. The geometry of the roof is intended to limit the impact upon
views, optimise structural efficiency and its orientation to gather solar energy.

The yard would retain a sense of openness and glimpsed views of the Minster.
The rear elevation of 4 Deangate would be revealed in full from within the
workshop. The gable end of the new workshop would be visible from
Deangate (NE Elevation). At this point the proposed roof is at is smallest
segment with the elevation being heavily glazed and using a timber frame.

The proposed alterations focus in areas of low significance — the rear elevation
of 4-6 Deangate and the 20" Century infill. This minimises impact upon more
sensitive areas of the Precinct. Given the use of the site would remain the
same, albeit with upgraded machinery, there would be a negligible increase in
noise and sound and therefore the impact of these environmental factors on
the conservation area and setting of listed buildings would be neutral.

The removal of the 20" Century workshops and glazier’s staircase, which are
not considered to be of any historic significance would cause no harm to 4-6
Deangate. Rather it would remove what is currently a somewhat ramshackle
series of buildings from the centre of the yard — which have evolved in a
piecemeal fashion, most which detract in views of the Minster from the
properties on Goodramgate, those of the Minster looking down into the site

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

5.27

5.28

5.29

Page 65

and in glimpsed views from Deangate. The proposals would create a more
visually coherent built form.

As part of the works it is also necessary to extend the existing boundary walls
of 36 and 38 Goodramagte. These works would utilise matching materials and
therefore would not give rise to any harm being caused to the significance of
these buildings.

Externally the most prominent feature of the development will be the glazed
northeast elevation. The new roof would also be visible from the rear of the
properties which front Goodramgate. The HIA has concluded that the impact
of the proposals upon properties on Goodramgate would be low to moderate
adverse. This is primarily due to the fact that the height of the roof increases
and as a result leads to a narrowing of views from these properties. However,
the extent of this impact is not considered to be significant. Views of the
Minster would still be available.

The proposals would give rise to a degree of harm by virtue of the elements of
demolition and also the impact upon views both views of the proposed
development but also views of other heritage assets. However these impacts
would be considered to be less than substantial and would be at the lower end
of less than substantial.

Historic England have reviewed the proposals and do not raise any objections
to the proposals. Noting that they are strongly supportive of the aims and
ambitions behind the proposals. They also state that they consider the design
proposals to be well considered and subject to appropriate detailing have the
potential represent a creative and attractive intervention.

In cases where the level of harm is assessed as being less than substantial
paragraph 202 of the NPPF is of relevance; this states ‘Where a development
will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.’

The public benefits are considered later in this report.

As the proposals would be considered to cause a degree of harm to the
character and setting of multiple designated heritage assets, the proposals

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 66

would be contrary to policies D4 and D5 of the DLP 2018 unless the harms are
outweighed by public benefits; which are discussed later in the report.

Archaeology

5.30

5.31

5.32

5.33

5.34

The application site is located within the defined Area of Archaeological
Importance as well as being located in close proximity to the Scheduled
Monument area that is the Minster Precinct. Therefore in this context it is
considered that there is the real possibility for material of archaeological
significance or interest to be present on the site. Given the nature of the
proposed development there is the risk that any such material which may be
present at the site could be disturbed as the development will necessitate
intrusive ground works.

Paragraph 194 of the NPPF requires: ‘Where a site on which development is
proposed includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets with
archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to
submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field
evaluation’.

In their first set of comments Historic England had cited concerns with regard
to the lack of archaeological supporting information submitted in support of the
application. The applicant has now provided this information to the satisfaction
of Historic England, removing their initial concerns.

The City Archaeologist has reviewed the submitted details and raises no
objections to the proposals. They note that in the early 1980s the stoneyard
was upgraded which included the installation of a reservoir slurry tank which
required substantial excavation. Later in 1986 a watching brief within the yard
recorded stone and brick foundation walls at depths no more than 1m. Finally,
in 2010, a further watching brief was undertaken whilst the floor was lowered
for the creation of a new substation. These revealed remains of previously
demolished buildings.

In this case it is envisaged that the majority of work for the scheme is likely to
have little impact on the most significant archaeological deposits/features that
exist in the area. However, the deepest impact generally relating to the
foundations required have the potential to disturb early medieval and Roman
levels. The amount of foundations and deeper intrusions should be kept to a
minimum.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.35

5.36

Page 67

In the event of granting planning permission given the potential of the site to
contain archaeological material it is still considered necessary to require an
archaeological watching brief be placed on the site during development. Such
measures can be secured via condition and would provide a Written Scheme
of Investigation under which the development can be monitored and should
any archaeological deposits be encountered appropriate measures can be
agreed to appropriately record and document any findings.

Subject to the conditions set out above to secure a watching brief over the site
it is considered that the proposed development could be undertaken in manner
that accords with the provisions of Policy C3 of the Minster NHP, Policy D6 of
the 2018 DLP and Section 16 of the NPPF.

Access and Highways

5.37

5.38

Access to the site would not be changed as part of this development. Access
to the site would still be taken from Deangate via the existing archway
entrances.

Given that the development proposals will not give rise to a material change in
the use of the existing site. Nor will the proposals give rise to a substantial
intensification in use of the site over and above the existing. It is not
considered that they would give rise to highway safety issues or contribute to
significant changes in the overall capacity or flow of the existing highway
network. The proposals are therefore considered to accord with policy T1 of
the DLP 2018.

Design and Impact on Neighbouring Properties

5.39

5.40

Policy ENV2 of the DLP 2018 states that development will not be permitted
where future occupiers or existing communities would be subject to significant
adverse environmental impacts such as noise, vibration, odour,
fumes/emissions, dust and light pollution without effective mitigation
measures.

The existing use of the site as a stoneyard is already well established. As such
the proposals are considered unlikely to introduce new possible sources of
disturbance into the surrounding area. The development would see the
creation a single consistent roof structure, rather than the existing situation of
multiple structures which have amassed over time. This would improve the
design of the building in achieving a consistent and coherent appearance.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.41

5.42

5.43

5.44

Page 68

Having regard to the general design of the proposals. The proposed roof
structure would be of a contemporary design and appearance. The main roof
would be set within flat roof sections located along each side of the structure.
This has allowed the overall height and span of the roof to be kept as low as
possible. Whilst also moving the height of the structure away from surrounding
properties.

Having regard to the proposed exterior and finishing materials to be used in
the development. The submitted information details a range of materials and
finishes. Existing brickwork is to be retained and re-pointed and where the
boundary wall to Goodramgate needs to be lifted matching brickwork will be
used. The roof covering is to be zinc standing seam, this should also creating
a visually cohesive appearance with the PV Panels. The proposed materials
should achieve a visually acceptable development. However to ensure that
this remains the case it is considered appropriate to condition details of the
exterior materials and finishes be submitted to and approved in writing by the
LPA. This will also include details of the proposed PV panels.

Amongst the representations and comments received objections have been
raised with regard to the impact the proposals will have upon the existing
properties which front Goodramgate, in particular the existing roof terrace at
No0.40. which is currently operated as a Café Bar; the roof terrace received
planning permission in September 2008. At present the party wall between
No0.40 and the application site when measured from the roof terrace of No.40
stands to approximately 1.2m. Whilst at No.42 where there is an enclosed
yard area, at ground floor level, the party wall is approximately 4.6m tall. The
proposals would see these heights maintained at these points along the party
wall. As part of the development the party wall is to be increased in height by
1.6m in a section that is to the rear of N0.36 Goodramgate resulting in total
height of 4.6m to the rear of this property.

The proposals will result in the mass of built increasing and being closer to the
neighbouring properties on Goodramagate than the existing situation. The
height of the lowest point of the roof span will be approximately 2.5m higher
than the existing roof terrace at No.40. However, this height differential is
offset to a degree as result of this element being set approximately 2.1m
behind the existing line of the party wall as a result of the flat roof inset used
around the perimeter of the arched roof. The highest point of the roof would be
4.75 above the existing roof terrace level. However this highest point would be
9.7m away from the roof terrace. The increase in roof height relative to the

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.45

5.46

Page 69

roof terrace at No.40 will result in some obscuring of views of the Minster,
however this will be limited to views of the Rose Window.

The proposals are not considered to give rise to issues of overlooking or
overshadowing which would be harmful to the amenity of the area and
neighbouring properties. Nor are the proposals considered to create a
development which would appear excessively overbearing. Records indicate
that most adjacent properties facing Goodramgate are business premises;
only two (38 and 44) indicate that there are residential uses at upper floor
levels. Overall the proposals are not considered to impact the amenity or
operation of these existing premises.

As part of the assessment of the proposals the Council’s Public Protection
team have reviewed the proposals. They have not raised any objections to the
proposals. They have however requested, in the event of planning permission
being granted, that conditions be attached which require details of the plant,
machinery and equipment to be installed at the premises are submitted to the
LPA for approval along details regarding noise emissions from the equipment.
Conditions are also recommended to secure a Construction Environmental
Management Plan (CEMP) and an hours of construction condition. However
given the scale and nature of the proposed development it not considered that
such a condition would be justified. It has also been requested to include a
series of conditions relating to contaminated land; these will ensure that the
development proceeds in a manner that ensures suitable protections are
secured in respect of the potential risk of contaminated land.

Sustainable Design and Construction

5.47

5.48

Policies CC1 and CC2 of the DLP 2018 both seek to promote sustainable
design and construction in new development and promote low carbon energy
generation. The overarching aim of both policies is to promote carbon
reduction. Sustainability is also a key strand of the adopted Minster NHP with
various policies seeking to minimise waste and pollution and reducing the
carbon footprint of the estate. The applicant is also seeking to achieve Eco
Gold Church Status by 2025.

The proposed development will incorporate a number of measures to reduce
its overall carbon footprint. Solar PV panels are proposed on the main roof of
the building. The type to be used in this case are thin flexible panels that are
applied directly to the roof surface. The design of the roof is such that it is
intended to maximise Solar gain to the PV panels. The proposals will also

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.49

Page 70

allow for a significant proportion of rainwater to be harvested, filtered and then
but to use for operating the various cutting machines to varying degrees
require water to assist with the cutting process. This will see a significant
improvement upon the existing situation where much of the rainwater that is
harvested is immediately drained off of the site via the existing drainage
infrastructure.

The provision of renewable and low carbon technologies in heritage sensitive
locations is a matter of balance between making good use of such
technologies whilst also ensuring heritage assets or historic fabric are suitably
sustained. The applicants are keen to make sure provision within their projects
across the Precinct.

Public Benefits

5.50

In support of the application the applicant has presented a case setting out
what they believe to be the public benefits of the scheme. These are as
follows:

A Heritage Asset of International Importance

5.51

York Minster and its precinct is of international importance housing the Grade |
Listed Minster, a collection of Grade Il and Grade II* Listed properties and one
of a number of Scheduled Ancient Monuments in the immediate vicinity. The
Minster acts as a major tourist attraction in the North of England, but more
importantly is a house of prayer, it is a sensitive and highly complicated area
of the city for which its future must be planned carefully.

Safeguarding the Minster in the context of declining Craft Skills

5.52

5.53

It costs over £22,000 a day to care for and operate York Minster. The Minster
receives no ongoing Government funding or central Church of England
financial support towards the care of the fabric and relies entirely on the
generosity of our community, paying visitors and funding bodies to sustain its
care and operations. Much of the craftsmanship is undertaken in the shadow
of the Minster, by the Minster craftspeople.

The Chapter of York has a vision to establish the Precinct as an internationally
recognised Centre of Excellence for heritage craft skills focused around a
campus facility. This is a critical programme of reimagining and cementing the
long term sustainability of the craft skills which must endure to safeguard the
care of York Minster for the next century.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.54

5.55

5.56

5.57

Page 71

Reflecting the current context of declining craft skills, only 10 cathedrals of the
42 Anglican Cathedrals in England continue to have their own dedicated
craftspeople. Nearly all of these ten have stoneyards based in very close
proximity to the cathedral itself. These ten cathedrals form the foundation of
the Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship which have joined together to create a
new generation of craftspeople capable of caring for the nation’s cathedrals
and heritage buildings.

Some, like York, have a full range of trades, whereas others are formed of
stonemasons, glaziers, joiners, working closely with plumbers and electricians.
The common factor of all yards is that exist solely because of the cathedral.

The loss of skills through retirement is something the Chapter of York are
keenly aware of with some of their longest serving members of staff
approaching the end of their working careers. Reports from sector led
organisations such as Historic England have also highlighted consistent gaps
in the supply of craftspeople with a specific background in historic building
conservation.

In tandem it is important to thing about the future and respond to innovation.
The return of historic techniques such as hot lime mortar and the introduction
of modern processes and working practices such as digital technology, data
scanning and Computer Aided Design have been introduced. Apprentices
already receive the very best heritage training but have little exposure to the
use of new technologies such as CAD and modern saw technology.
Embracing these tools will assist in attracting more apprentices to this
important national heritage.

Meeting Wider Neighbourhood Plan Objectives

5.58

5.99

Aside from safeguarding the restoration of the Minster there are significant
other public benefits. Including; creating a world class visitor experience to
ensure vital visitor income is sustained. Creating a welcoming precinct.
Supporting the day to day life of the in house Minster functions.

It is the applicants view that the proposals offer a once in a generation
opportunity to create a Centre of Excellence for the Minster which will not only
provide a considerable range of meaningful benefits locally but also nationally
and internationally. The new facilities would solidify York Minster as an
international centre for heritage excellence. Maintaining an enhancing the
facilities also offers opportunities for specialist training which will address the

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 72

skills shortage in a unique heritage setting whilst also securing the
conservation of the Minster and its Precinct in the long term.

Economic Benefits

5.60

5.61

5.62

5.63

5.64

5.65

The economic benefits of the proposals are far reaching, building upon direct
benefits to the Minster and the City of York to solidify York Minster as an
international centre for Heritage Excellence. This would be via the creation of
partnerships with international institutions including Trondheim, Milan, Cologne
and Washington Cathedrals and Singapore University. These will put York on
the national and international stage, acting as a focus for craft skills and
investment. Partnerships are fundamental to this project and we (the
applicant) have already shown that institutions from across the world are
eager to be part of this project for the benefit of heritage sectors
internationally. The potential connections the city will make through this project
are wide ranging. The University of York for example see this as the beginning
of a new heritage sector in the City.

Indirect economic benefits brought about through tourism and the enhanced
interaction between the public and the stonemasons building on the success
of the Masons Lodge on Queens Path. The Minster has a strong track record
of engaging visitors to the process of conservation and sustainable heritage.

The project will create additional commercial opportunities allowing work to be
done for other heritage bodies across the Country in the future.

Digital technology sits at the heart of the project. The Minster will embrace
digital technology as a tool to support the work they do and to train their
apprentices. Work with University of York on a range of digital projects has
already started. The statue of HM The Queen was created using the
technology that will be invested in.

Ensuring dedicated Minster craftspeople, as well as a training facility for
training the Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship. This will assist with addressing
the national heritage skills shortage — upskilling workers and creating job
opportunities across the heritage skills spectrum.

The provision of state of the art facilities for the stonemasons to allow work to
be better showcased to potential benefactors to encourage donations for the
upkeep of the Minster.

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



5.66

Page 73

The sustainable reuse of the existing built form will halt any areas of decline
and provide an enduring future which will reduce the need for upkeep allowing
funds to spent on other much needed projects elsewhere in the Precinct.

Social Benefits

5.67

5.68

5.69

5.70

5.71

Creating The Centre for Excellence for Heritage Craft Skills, leading the way
on an international stage for future partnerships and knowledge sharing
through Research and Development.

The creation of buildings that represent the upmost design excellence,
reinforcing the precinct’s distinctive character utilising innovative design
through the use of flexible adaptable buildings; and the provision of dedicated
bed spaces for national and international students.

Building upon the success of the York Minster being the first cathedral to have
a Neighbourhood Plan, leading the way in transforming policy and practice in
delivering managed change for a heritage asset. Taking the lead from the
past, where York Mister has had a dedicated works department since the 11"
Century.

Opening up the Minster’s activities to the wider city — the proposals will
increase public access to the work of the stonemasons and glaziers, by subtly
inviting views into the workshops and encouraging public engagement/interest
in the craft. This will enhance the public’s understanding of stonemasonry as a
craft and the key building material of the Minster and its Precinct.

Supporting the Minster’'s ambition to establish the whole of the Precinct as a
national and international centre of excellence for heritage craft skills and
heritage estate management focused around a campus facility in line with
Neighbourhood Plan Objectives.

Environmental Benefits

5.72

5.73

Conserves and enhances the internationally acclaimed historic and cultural
heritage of York Minster, its Precinct and the Neighbourhood Area. It will also
provide a benchmark for new development striving to achieve Eco Gold
Church Status by taking a lead on driving the new zero agenda in a restrictive
heritage environment.

Creates a truly sustainable development, through the provision of
accommodation on site for apprentices in the heart of the city. Environmental

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 74

sustainability sits at the heart of how the Minster is cared for. Meaningful reuse
of materials from the Deanery garages and workshops and the introduction of
solar panels contribute considerably to the sustainability of the scheme —
aligning with endeavours to mitigate the climate crisis.

Planning Balance

5.74

5.75

5.76

S.77

As has been set out in the earlier sections of this report the application site is
sensitive, with a number of heritage assets within the vicinity. The proposals
will result in a degree of harm being caused to the character, setting and
significance, of various designated heritage assets existing within the
immediate vicinity of the site and the wider Minster Precinct.

The significance of the Minster and its Precinct to the City of York cannot be
underestimated. The Minster itself is one of, if not the most significant building
in the city. Its presence over the city centre can be experienced in close
quarters but it is also a prominent feature within the views and approaches to
the city. The overarching objective has to be to safeguard these assets. It is
these assets that form part of city’s identity. The proposals within this
application would put in place the means to facilitate, grow and sustain this.
That is not to diminish the acknowledged harms that the proposals would have
in this case primarily the increase in the overall heights of the structure and the
impact this then has upon views within the locality. However, it is considered
that these harms would in practice be localised and limited to the area of the
precinct within which development is proposed.

The proposals within this application and the wider concept of the Centre of
Excellence being promoted by the applicant represent a new way of thinking
for the applicant and they are seeking to take a proactive approach to the
issue of declining skills in this sector. The benefits of this should not be
underestimated. They will assist with securing the long-term future of the
Minster and the wider precinct. There is also the opportunity to broaden
expertise in this field not just within the City but further afield. It could be
argued that such outcomes would enhance the Precinct through increasing its
standing within the field of Heritage and Craft Skills.

Whilst the proposals may be argued to not be in full conformity with some of
the heritage polices within the 2018 DLP; there are other substantial material
considerations that are relevant in the context of the NPPF and the Minster
NHP. The NPPF is clear that in cases where less than substantial harm is
considered to occur that harm must be weighed against the public benefits of

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 75

the proposal. Furthermore the proposals would deliver one of the key
aspirations set out within the adopted Minster NHP.

5.78 Itis considered that on balance the proposals would bring about greater,
longer term public benefits not only to the Precinct and the buildings within it
but also the city and even other significant historic institutions not only in the
UK but also internationally. The proposals would assist with nurturing skills
required to maintain historic buildings in the city and also offer an opportunity
for the public to better view the work of the stoneyard. These on balance
outweigh the harms that would be caused

6.0 CONCLUSION

6.1 Regard is had to the advice within paragraph 199 of the NPPF that when
considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset,
the greater the weight should be) and to the legislative requirements to give
special regard and considerable importance and weight to the desirability of
preserving listed buildings and their settings or features of special architectural
or historic interest, and paying special attention to the character and
appearance of the conservation area. The applicant’s public benefits are
summarised in the earlier sections of this report above. Whilst it is
acknowledged the proposed development will give rise to a degree of less
than substantial harm to the setting of the Listed Buildings and the
Conservation Area, by virtue of introducing a new form of development. It is on
balance, considered that these less than substantial harms would be
outweighed by the public benefits; namely the fostering of vital skills important
to the upkeep of heritage buildings in the city and the opportunity for these
skills to be shared and showcased to the public. The proposals would deliver a
very clear objective of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan. The proposals would
also facilitate the delivery of the Centre of Excellence for Heritage and Craft
Skills.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 76

Site Location Plan: Drawing No.547-0000-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0304-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0303-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0302-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0301-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0300-A
Proposed RF Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00123-A
Proposed 2F Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00122-A
Proposed 1F Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00121-A
Proposed GF Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00120-A
Proposed Roof Plan: Drawing No. 547-0105-A
Proposed Second Floor: Drawing No. 547-0103-A
Proposed Ground Floor: Drawing No. 547-0101-A
Proposed Site Plan: Drawing No. 547-0100-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0202-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0200-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0200-A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried
out only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings
or in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used, including the PV roof covering shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their use in the
development. The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if
sample materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it
clear in your approval of details application when the materials will be available for
inspection and where they are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance

4 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on
the premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the
local planning authority for approval. These details shall include average sound
levels (LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation
measures. The machinery, plant or equipment and any noise mitigation measures
shall be fully implemented as approved and operational before the proposed use
first opens and shall be appropriately maintained thereafter.

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant
or equipment at the site shall not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during the

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 77

hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00
to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in
accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities
of the area.

5 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief/excavation is required on this site.

The archaeological scheme comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be
completed and agreed by the Local Planning Authority before it can be approved.

A) No site investigation, demolition below foundation slab or new development shall
commence until a written scheme of investigation (WSI) for a watching brief (and
excavation where required) has been submitted to and approved by the local
planning authority in writing. For land that is included within the WSI, no
development shall take place other than in accordance with the agreed WSI. The
WSI should conform to standards set by LPA and the Chartered Institute for
Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

C) A copy of a report (and evidence of publication if required) shall be deposited
with City of York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of
results within 3 months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in
writing with the Local Planning Authority.

This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16 of NPPF.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the
development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded
prior to destruction.

6  Prior to commencement of development, an investigation and risk assessment
(in addition to any assessment provided with the planning application) must be
undertaken to assess the nature and extent of any land contamination. The
investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken by competent persons and a
written report of the findings must be produced. The written report is subject to the
approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. The report of the findings must

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 78

include:

(i)  asurvey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes,

- adjoining land,

- groundwaters and surface waters,

- ecological systems,

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
"Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

7  Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed remediation scheme to
bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable
risks to human health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical
environment) must be prepared and is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. The scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed
remediation objectives and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site
management procedures. The scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as
contaminated land under Part 2A of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in
relation to the intended use of the land after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

8  Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme must be
carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 79

property and ecological systems.

9 Inthe event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the
Local Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken
and where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which
Is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following
completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification
report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

10  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and dispatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:
Monday to Friday 0800 to 1800 hours

Saturday 0900 to 1300 hours

Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local policies,
considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments were
sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to work
with the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome.

2. THE PARTY WALL ETC ACT 1996

The proposed development may involve works that are covered by the Party Wall
etc Act 1996. An explanatory booklet about the Act is available at:

https://lwww.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-guidance

Furthermore the grant of planning permission does not override the need to comply
Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 80

with any other statutory provisions (for example the Building Regulations) neither
does it override other private property rights (for example building on, under or over,
or accessing land which is not within your ownership).

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 22/00788/FUL Item No: 4c



Page 81

Minster Stoneyard. 4 Deangate, YO1 7JA
22/00788/FUL

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Commen ts

Date 19 August 2022

Site Location Plan

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B

22/00788/FUL and 22/00789/LBC
Minster Stoneyard 4 Deangate

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

£g abed



Site Plan

l: )%dsﬂn Plan

8 abed

rervisbons no.  ST-000-A g g
A CEOAEE FOR PLANNING - n job 54 Technology Hub {t@[ﬁll}@nw [|[|[LU
0z 5 10m e Sl Proposed Site Flan Do GO Shius DRAFT
- — - Skt bourdary oI 1 sl 1500 Reviewsd SR
Tonkin Liu Lid, 5 Wimingion Squam. Londa WC1X 0ES | 000 7837 555 | wwwionkinli.oo uk.

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022



Google ‘Globe View’ Image

St
o~ e -\
w———

Met———

o ey [ -C - O q,:,,‘_‘ j '.-;,.".; i

h : 4 X S, T ARy
Imagery ©2022 Google, Imagery ©2022 CNES / Airbus, Getmapping plc, Infoterra Ltd & Bluesky, Maxar Technologies, Map data ©2022

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022




Existing
Ground floor plan

g temkdim (i
e B_‘ﬁnmdlhn Dmwn oo Siadus DRAFT

TonkdnLiu Led, S Wilmington Squam. Londan WC1X OES | 020 7837 655 | wwawtorkinliu oo uk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

98 abed



Proposed

Ground floor plan
= P

——— I E ”

b |I

I

=

o
I
i

—H==

"0 g B

1
——

= 7
S |

l: } Euﬁad First floor Plan
LN
rewisons no.  SIT-DIOEA g g
A OEUZ0E: FOR PLANNING job 5 Technology Hub ﬁ@ﬁﬂ@uﬂ |]|]U_-[|
0 1 oz o ®° Stls  Propossd Frst Roor Dmwn GG Swus DRAFT
scals 1200 Reviewsed SR

TonkinLiu Lid, S Wimingion Squam, Londan WIC1X O | 030 TEST E355 | ww forkindi oo uk

)8 abed




Existing
Roof plan

N A

Existing Roof Plan
( )_&:u—%-ﬂ_e:

| 2 .
o
I ——

revisons
A ATLNGT FOR PLANNING

no. ST DA

. ey temlkin iw

k-]
@ik  Existing Roof Plan Dmwn G0 Saus DRAFT
scale 1300 Rerviewed SR

TonkinLiu Lid, 5 Wimingion Sguane, Londan WC1X 0ES | 020 TE37 &355 | wwwonkiniiu oo uk

88 abed



Proposed Roof plan

Propasad Roof Plan
( )EF«:!EH

N

revisbons
A 0ATATNGT FOR PLANNING

ot . temnkin liu

Tonknu L. S Wimington Squam. London WO 1X OES | 020 TESTERSS | www BoriiniiL couk

68 abed



Proposed
Deangate elevation

mirter shool

T

e o B, .
Yaipe i€oe il b
=iy LTI N

( ) Prgcmd Site Elevation

reviions
A 08H4/2022 FOR FLANNING

il tenkin liw

Sile  Froposed Sie Bevation Dmwn GG  Suns DRAFT
scale 1200 Foviewed SR

Tookin U g, 5 Wimington Square, London WC1X CES | 020 78376255 | wwwionkiniu couk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

06 abed



Ak (ter

2

i

o)
3

R
5 1‘ )

Proposed

1

North-east (Cross Keys) R, | I
| RE
and south-west Sy,
elevations e
£ 0;‘ |
AR

( ) P(%OSed Site Secfon

; !
: . f | rirater schoo! pa ygraund Ws sde’
- g i " et o T i~ o r’_—"”
. Pl :

( ) F\'ggosed Site Section
e

T6 abed

revisons n. ST-R02A a o
A 08042022 FOR FLANNING job 547 Techn clogy Hud ﬁ@mk"m ”n[m
0 1 2 10m Sl Froposed Site Bevation  Dvawn GG  Swuns DRAFT
— ] wcae 1200 Revewsd &
Tonkin U Lid, 5 Wimington Square, Loacon WC1X CES | 020 7837 6255 | www.tonkinii oo uk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022



Proposed
Goodramgate
elevation

o b s i g 1o e of o eeurd

- 1

=
¥ — —, SO
5 ot 2 N o A
: = - = ) 5 | sy i
— = y :‘-:‘L\‘ Ty
L} ] A - e oy
= ei : v P
——™ < - =i L
——a— 0 H E TS Sl | s
e R B il . = -
VSO W T . [m———————
,_ A !— L=

i _ 1 “f‘. ::1
P P2

Wk |

Awy

— _Oaas 1

@ Prgosed Site Elevation

[ i 1 '. ' - 4. <‘-"x ;... ;- .‘:1..
T m = A Ea 0 TR 1 | LW
pamrh i e R TIE ] P

GoOORAMG

revisions
A 02042022 FOR PLANNING

B v tenkin iu
Sile  Froposed Ste Bevation Dmwn GG Suns DRAFT
Tookin Lis Ld, 5 Wimington Square, Londoa WC1X (ES | 020 TE376255 | wwwionkinile couk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

10

26 abed



Proposed
Goodramgate
cross-section

i maf

o

it i i i vy by olhendy —

Proposed Site Section
Soe 1

i (ke prgsery

g prva e oy o dengits

oylights 1o e sevice

vl ol on s gha iy et

kg

]
e

i e e

L

1k | wrkshcp T,
L)

i

I Epa——— il

rroatad e b b o vl
pripacssd barick vl within s b relary

raviians
A DEDIEE FOR PLANMING

oy temnlzdmn iw
e mmﬂsll&ﬂhl! Dmwn L r] Suan DRAFT

|_|_'_|_'_|_| acals 1200 Faviawed R

Tonkin Lis Lid, 5 Wimingion Sguare. London WX (ES | 000 TESTE255 | wwwionkinlis couk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

11

£6 abed



"

AT

[}

Existing
Goodramgate
Cross-section

o
L

Ay,

warkshap

frirsder schodl (e s survwey by o) — aduont

040 roof berrece:

£ o sers
e~

ndfar dves |
% :——‘“l‘_“m"l\ e ‘ I—_ - Ty / Ll L -
§ = alcuris e i H |q———

g wed b s of Gf barracs

( ) Exist‘ng Site Secfion

v6 abed

revisions mo.  54.000-A 2 -]
pypee—— o t—— tonkin liu
0 1 2 Tom Sl  EdisSng Ste Sectbn Dmwn GG Swms DRAFT
— scsie 1299 Peviowsd
Tookin Lis Lig, 5 Wimington Square, London WC1X CES | 020 TESTE255 | wwwioekinil couk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022



Proposed
Site cross-section

sl i v g ety o gl

eachige Mg ol | o ciss g i (B

it i ki i | |

( )F’r?osadﬁibaSacﬁun
LR

St o T A0 g 200 ke rrecsning

arch wy rensumd

revilons
A 0ED/INCE FOR PLANNING

o gt temldmn iw
e medsl-“lm Dmwn [rc] S DRAFT

— ] sese 1200 Fovowsa

TonkinLis 183, 5 Wimington Souas. London WC1X (ES | 020 TESTE255 | wwawionkinlis cauk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022 13

G6 abed



3D model of proposed
roof

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

14

96 abed



Page 97 Agenda Item 4d

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/00789/LBC

Application at: Minster Stoneyard 4 Deangate York YO1 7JA

For: Internal and external alterations including re-development of

Stoneyard, including demolition of mason’s workshop, erection of
roof structure and mezzanine floor and reordering of existing
buildings and uses to provide internal and external workshops,
storage and offices

By: Mr Alexander McCallion
Application Type: Listed Building Consent
Target Date: 7 June 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. The proposed development consists of the redevelopment of the existing
Minster Stoneyard including demolition of the mason’s workshop, erection of a roof
structure and mezzanine floor and re-ordering of the existing building and uses to
provide internal and external workshops, storage and office space.

1.2. The application site is located on the south eastern side of Deangate. The site
is roughly triangular in its form. The buildings on Deangate enclose an existing
internal space which is currently occupied by a selection single storey structures.
Access to the premises is via gateways located on Deangate. The site backs onto
the terrace of buildings which front Goodramgate.

1.3. The application site sits just outside of the York Minster Cathedral Precinct
Scheduled Monument. The site is within the Central Historic Core Conservation
Area and a number of the adjacent buildings which front Goodramgate (34 to 38 and
42 to 50) are Listed Buildings. The application site itself is not listed, the LBC
application is necessary as part of the works proposed require the lifting of an
existing party wall with one of the neighbouring properties which front Goodramgate;
it is the neighbouring property that is the Listed Building.

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 98

1.4. An associated full planning application is considered elsewhere on this agenda
- 22/00788/FUL - Internal and external alterations including redevelopment of
Stoneyard, including demolition of masons workshop, erection of roof structure and
mezzanine floor and reordering of existing buildings and uses to provide internal and
external workshops, storage and offices.

1.5. Also of relevance are applications 22/00803/FUL and 22/00804/LBC which
relate to proposals at The Deanery which is situated approximately 250m to the
North West of this application site and is accessed of Minster Yard. These
applications are of relevance as they include proposals which, along with those
proposed at the Stoneyard form part of the Centre of Excellence for Heritage Craft
Skills and Estate Management concept that the Minster is pursuing.

1.6. The proposals within the Stoneyard will facilitate the installation of a new 5
Axis CNC saw, new band saw and new stone lifting system to assist with reinforcing
the supply of stone for the precinct. This element is referred to as the Technology
Hub. The proposals at the Deanery intend to deliver a facility which better brings
together the community of craftspeople and associated trades required in the
precinct — including masons, scaffolders, gardeners, apprentices and researchers.
This aspect of the proposals is referred to as the Heritage Quad.

1.7. The Centre of Excellence is intended to begin addressing the long-standing
heritage skills shortage, which is not only felt by the Minster but also other
institutions across the country and globally. Whilst the Minster’s stoneyard is already
internationally renowned, current facilities are constrained and inadequate for the
long term task of sustaining the skills required to conserve heritage assets. The
intention of the applicant is to enhance their own in-house skills and capabilities to
the benefit of their own estate; but also, to introduce a commercial element which
will allow those skills to be traded with other similar institutions globally.

1.8. A call-in request was received from the Ward Councillor, Cllr Craghill, citing
the importance of the proposals to the city and level of public interest.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 99

2.2. Section 16 and 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas)
Act 1990 states that in considering whether to listed building consent for any works
special regard shall be given to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.
Preservation in this context means not harming the interest in the building, as opposed
to keeping it utterly unchanged.

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

2.4. Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to a conservation area or
listed building or its setting is a consideration which the decision-maker must give
considerable importance and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise to
give effect to its statutory duties (desirability of preserving the setting of listed
buildings) under section 66(1) of the 1990 Act. There is a “strong presumption”
against the grant of listed building consent in such cases.

National Planning Policy Framework (2021)

2.5. The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government’s
overarching planning policies and at its heart is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. For decision making this means; ‘approving development
proposals that accord with an up-to-date development without delay’; or where the
are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which most important for
determining the application are out of date, granting permission unless:

- The application of policies in this framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole.

2.6. Paragraph 38 advises that Local Planning Authorities should approach
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way and work
proactively with applications to secure developments that will improve the economic,
social, and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every level
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

2.7. Section 16 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the historic
environment. Paragraph 197 states that in determining applications local planning
authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 100

significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable use. The positive
contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities and the desirability of new development making a positive contribution
to local character and distinctiveness.

2.8. Paragraph 200 goes on to state that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of
a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development
within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm
to or loss of grade Il Listed Buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens should
be exceptional. Assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments,
protected wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade |
and II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly
exceptional.

York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan

2.9. The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood was adopted on 16" June 2022.
The Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the statutory development plan for the
City of York. Applications must be determined in accordance with the development
plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Relevant policies within the
Neighbourhood Plan are:

C2 — Listed Building Consent

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.10. The DLP was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of the
hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019.
Phase 2 of the hearings concluded in May 2022 with phases 3 concluding in July
and 4 currently scheduled for autumn 2022. In accordance with paragraph 48 of the
NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 101

2.11. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:
D5 — Listed Buildings

DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

2.12. The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being material
considerations in the determination of planning application where policies relevant to
the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although the weight that can
be attached to them is very limited.

2.13. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

- Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or

- Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:

o The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

o Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

2.14. However, the presumption does not apply if the proposal conflicts with policies
within the NPPF intended to protect designated heritage assets in accordance with
footnote 7 of the NPPF.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL

Urban Design and Conservation
3.1. No comments have been received.

EXTERNAL
Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 102

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.2. No comments received in respect of the LBC application. However the panel
commented in relation to the associated Planning Application and raised concerns
over the impact of the outlook from properties on Goodramgate. In particular the
long blank grey coloured wall which is out of keeping in character and size with the
buildings on Goodramgate. Perhaps deleting the grey panelling and thus reducing
the overall height of the roof would improve matters.

Historic England
3.3. No comments raised but suggests seeking the views of your specialist
conservation and archaeological advisers.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1. A total of 2.no letters of objection have been received from interested third
parties. The objections received can be summarised as follows:
- Concerned about the impact upon local business The Habit whose roof terrace
garden will lose its Minster View.
- The Habit has a well established roof terrace that is sold on its ‘Minster Views’
these proposals will detract from that.

5.0 APPRAISAL

The key issues are as follows:
- Impact Upon Heritage Assets

Impact upon Heritage Assets

5.1. As set out earlier in this report, the application site is located within the Central
Historic Core Conservation Area. The site is also within a designated Area of
Archaeological Importance. In addition to this the site is immediately adjacent
to the designated Scheduled Monument which comprises of York Minster
Cathedral precinct. Finally, there are a number of Listed Buildings, of varying
grades within the immediate vicinity of the site. All of which are heritage
assets.

5.2. Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states: ‘Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as
World Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of Outstanding
Universal Value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

5.6.

Page 103

conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future
generations.’

In assessing the proposals and determining applications there is a need under
paragraph 197 of the NPPF to take account of; the desirability of sustaining
and enhancing the significance of the heritage assets and putting them to
viable uses consistent with their conservation. The positive contribution that
conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable communities
including their economic vitality; and the desirability of new development
making a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness.

Paragraph 199 of the NPPF states: ‘When considering the impact of a
proposed development on the significance of a designated heritage asset,
great weight should be given to the asset’s conservation (and the more
Important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is irrespective of
whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less
than substantial harm to its significance. Polices D4 and D5 of the Draft Local
Plan make similar provisions. The duties placed upon the LPA under sections
16, 66 and 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 are also relevant.

It is important to consider that potential impacts can take a number of differing
forms. There are physical impacts such as those which can occur because of
the provision of new buildings or changes to existing buildings and built forms.
However, impacts can also be felt in more sensory terms, these can be as
result of a change in how a building or space is used; this may introduce new
noises which change the existing ambiance of the built environment.

The existing Stoneyard comprises of a broadly triangular arrangement of
buildings. The frontage to Denagate is enclosed by a two storey brick building
which runs parallel to Deangate; internal views into the yard are limited to
views through the existing arched gateways, which are only open when
required. The South/South Western flank of the site is enclosed by another
two/three storey building which creates a built boundary with the neighbouring
Minster Song School site. Much of the Eastern elevation is enclosed by the
neighbouring properties which front Goodramgate. At the North Eastern most
point of the site some glimpsed views into the site are available by virtue of the
space between the application site and the neighbouring Cross Keys public

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



5.7.

5.8.

5.9.

5.10.

Page 104

house and its courtyard. These built features create a triangular void within the
site. This is currently filled with varying workshops which have accumulated in
a piecemeal manner over the course of the 20" Century. Aerial images of the
site show a mixture of roof forms and roof finishes typically of corrugated and
profile sheet form.

As part of the information submitted the applicants have undertaken a
Heritage Impact Assessment (HIA). This has identified that the proposals have
the potential to affect the character and appearance of the York Central
Historic Core Conservation Area. The rear boundary walls of 36 and 38
Goodramgate (curtilage listed, Grade Il) and the significance of 4-6 Deangate
as non-designated heritage assets. Furthermore the HIA has identified that the
proposals have the potential to affect the setting of The Minster (Grade | and
Scheduled Ancient Monument), The Cross Keys (Public House) and attached
yard, gateway and wall (Grade Il), 7 Minster Yard (Grade Il), 6 Minster Yard
(Grade 1I*) and various Grade Il listed properties lining the west side of
Goodramgate.

The design of the proposals has been conceived with the stonemasons and
contemporary best practice. The works will allow for the provision of a track
system which can collect stone from Deangate for distribution throughout the
building and storage on a racking system. Stone would be cut using the large
wire saw or CNC machine before being transferred to the Heritage Quad
(22/00803/FUL). The proposals have been designed to accommodate the
functional requirements of the equipment. The lifted roof will create an open-
plan space. The geometry of the roof is intended to limit the impact upon
views, optimise structural efficiency and its orientation to gather solar energy.

The yard would retain a sense of openness and glimpsed views of the Minster.
The rear elevation of 4 Deangate would be revealed in full from within the
workshop. The gable end of the new workshop would be partially from
Deangate (NE Elevation). At this point the proposed roof is at is smallest
segment with the elevation being heavily glazed and using a timber frame.

The proposed alterations focus in areas of low significance — the rear elevation
of 4-6 Deangate and the 20" Century infill. This minimises impact upon more
sensitive areas of the Precinct. Given the use of the site would remain the
same, albeit with upgraded machinery, there would be a negligible increase in

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 105

noise and sound and therefore the impact of these environmental factors on
the conservation area and setting of listed buildings would be neutral.

5.11. The removal of the 20" Century workshops and glaziers staircase, which are
not considered to be of any historic significance would cause no harm to 4-6
Deangate. Rather it would remove what is currently a somewhat ramshackle
series of buildings from the centre of the yard, most which detract in views of
the Minster from the properties on Goodramgate, those of the Minster looking
down into the site and in glimpsed views from Denagate. The proposals would
create a more visually coherent built form.

5.12. As part of the works it is also necessary to extend the existing boundary walls
of 36 and 38 Goodramagte. These works would utilise matching materials and
therefore would not give rise to any harm being caused to the significance of
these buildings. It is only this element which requires the benefit of Listed
Building Consent given the listed status of N0.36 Goodramgate.

5.13. The proposals are not considered to cause harm to the setting or significance
of the listed building. The proposals would therefore accord with Policy D5 of
the DLP 2018.

6.0. CONCLUSION

6.1. The proposals are not considered to cause harm to the character, setting or
significance of the listed building. The proposals would therefore accord with the
provisions of Policy D5 of the DLP and Section 16 of the NPPF. The proposals
would deliver a very clear objective of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan. The
proposals would also facilitate the delivery of the Centre of Excellence for Heritage
and Craft Skills.

6.2. Itis therefore recommended that Listed Building Consent be granted; subject
to any conditions outlined below. However, it should be noted that a number of
matters relating to the eventual operation of the site, the implementation of any
development and relevant protection measures to mitigate the impacts of
development are covered by conditions attached to the associated application for
planning permission therefore they do not require repeating in the granting of Listed
Building Consent.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 106

1 TIMEL2  Development start within 3 yrs (LBC/CAC)

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Site Location Plan: Drawing N0.547-0000-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0304-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0303-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0302-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0301-A
Proposed Site Section: Drawing No. 547-0300-A
Proposed RF Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00123-A
Proposed 2F Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00122-A
Proposed 1F Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00121-A
Proposed GF Demolition: Drawing No. 547-00120-A
Proposed Roof Plan: Drawing No. 547-0105-A
Proposed Second Floor: Drawing No. 547-0103-A
Proposed Ground Floor: Drawing No. 547-0101-A
Proposed Site Plan: Drawing No. 547-0100-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0202-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0200-A
Proposed Site Elevation: Drawing No. 547-0200-A

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local policies,
considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments were
sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to work with
the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome.

2. THE PARTY WALL ETC ACT 1996

The proposed development may involve works that are covered by the Party Wall etc
Act 1996. An explanatory booklet about the Act is available at:

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



Page 107

https://lwww.gov.uk/party-wall-etc-act-1996-guidance

Furthermore the grant of planning permission does not override the need to comply
with any other statutory provisions (for example the Building Regulations) neither does
it override other private property rights (for example building on, under or over, or
accessing land which is not within your ownership).

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 22/00789/LBC Item No: 4d



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 109

Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, YO1 7JA
22/00789/LBC

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may
lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Commen ts

Date 19 August 2022

Site Location Plan

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



Page 111 Agenda Item 4e
COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/00803/FUL

Application at: The Deanery Minster Yard York YO1 7JQ

For: Conversion of existing garages and erection of new building to

apprentice’s accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary
storage after demolition of greenhouse, potting shed and garden

structures
By: Mr Alexander McCallion
Application Type: Full Application
Target Date: 9 June 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. Planning permission is sought for the conversion of the existing Deanery
Garages and the erection of a new single storey building to form apprentice’s living
accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary storage following the demolition of an
existing greenhouse, potting shed and garden structures.

1.2. The application site is located on land to the North East of the existing
Deanery and includes land to the rear of No’'s 1 and 2 Minster Court. Access to the
site is via the existing private road known as Minster Yard joining the public highway
at the junction of College Green and Chapter House Street. The application site is
located within the designated York Minster Cathedral Precinct Scheduled
Monument. The site is within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area and a
number of the buildings within the immediate vicinity are listed buildings of varying
grades. The Deanery itself is Grade Il Listed with the existing garages being
considered curtilage listed. The City Walls are located immediately to the rear of the
application site.

1.3. The proposals consist of three component elements. A proposed oblong
scaffold and garden store to be located along the north west flank of the site. This
structure will occupy a footprint of approximately 130m2. The structure will stand to
approximately 2.8m in height and consist of a series of open bays within which
scaffold can be stored. Behind these open bays will be an internal store area. The

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 112

roof is to incorporate solar pv panels which will stand at an angle from the roof
plane, standing approximately 50cm high.

1.4. The main structure within the proposal will sit centrally within the site and be
formed following the partial demolition of parts of the existing garage structure. The
retained elements of the garage will then be extended to form a broadly u-shaped
building arranged around a central courtyard area. This element will have a built
footprint of approximately 600m2. The building will utilise a predominately flat roof
standing 3.5m tall. This will increase to a maximum height of approximately 5.7m
created by a vaulted roof feature which will face North East toward the City Walls. A
range of uses are proposed within this building - 6no. bedrooms each consisting of a
bed, desk space and toilet/shower facilities and outdoor terrace; a communal
kitchen living space; a stone workshop consisting of 15.no workstations; general
storage, an office space, welfare facilities and ancillary spaces such as bin store,
plant room and drying room. A further 4.no external masons workstations are to be
sited between the main building and the adjacent breakout pavilion.

1.5. The final built element of the scheme comprises of a detached single storey
breakout pavilion located to the South East of the main building; the two will be
linked via a covered walkway. This building will provide a breakout space and
welfare facilities. The structure will be flat roofed standing approximately 3m in
height. This building will cover approximately 60m?2.

1.6 An associated application for listed building consent has also been submitted
(22/00804/LBC) and is reported elsewhere on the agenda. The LBC application
relates to the same proposals and site as this planning application.

Relevant Planning History

There are a number of other applications which are of relevance to this application:

1.7 Applications 22/00788/FUL and 22/00789/LBC which relate to proposals at the
Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate which is located approximately 250m to the South
East of The Deanery. These applications are of relevance as they include proposals
which, along with the proposals contained within the applications relating to The
Deanery form part of the Centre of Excellence for Heritage Craft Skills and Estate
Management concept that the Minster is pursuing.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 113

1.8 The Centre of Excellence is intended to begin addressing a long-standing
heritage skills shortage, which is not only felt by the Minster but also other
institutions across the country and globally. Whilst the Minster’s stoneyard is already
internationally renowned, current facilities are constrained and inadequate for the
long term task of sustaining the skills required to conserve heritage assets. It is the
intention of the applicant to enhance their own in-house skills and capabilities to the
benefit of their own estate; but also, to introduce a commercial element which will
allow those skills to be traded within similar institutions globally.

1.9 A call-in request was received from the Ward Councillor, Cllr Craghill, citing
the importance of the proposals to the city and level of public interest.

2 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1 Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004).

2.2 Section 66 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that in considering whether to grant planning permission for
development which affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning
authority shall have special regard to the desirability of preserving the building
or its setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it
possesses.

2.3 Section 72 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 requires that special attention be paid to the desirability of preserving or
enhancing the character and appearance of the Conservation Area.

2.4 Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to a conservation area or
listed building or its setting is a consideration which the decision-maker must
give considerable importance and weight when carrying out the balancing
exercise to give effect to its statutory duties under sections 66 and 72 of the
1990 Act. There is a “strong presumption” against the grant of planning
permission in such cases.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



2.5

Page 114

The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

National Planning Policy Framework

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government’s
overarching planning policies and at its heart is a presumption in favour of
sustainable development. For decision making this means; ‘approving
development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development without
delay’; or where the are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies
which most important for determining the application are out of date, granting
permission unless:

The application of policies in this framework that protect areas or assets of
particular importance provides clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole.

Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or
Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:
- The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or
- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

However, the presumption does not apply if the proposal conflicts with policies
within the NPPF intended to protect designated heritage assets in accordance
with footnote 7 of the NPPF.

Paragraph 38 advises that Local Planning Authorities should approach
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way and work

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 115

proactively with applications to secure developments that will improve the
economic, social, and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers
at every level should seek to approve applications for sustainable
development where possible.

2.10 Section 16 of the NPPF relates to Conserving and Enhancing the historic
environment; and recognises that heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as
World Heritage Sites. The NPPF states that these are an irreplaceable
resource and should be conserved in a manner appropriate to their
significance.

2.11 Paragraph 130 states that planning policies and decisions should ensure that

developments will achieve a number of aims including:

- Function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of the development.

- Be visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping.

- Are sympathetic to local character and history including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting

- Create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible and promote health and
well-being with a high standard of amenity for existing and future users.

2.12 The NPPF also places great importance on good design. Paragraph 132 says
the design quality should be considered throughout the evolution and
assessment of individual proposals. Paragraph 134 says that permission
should be refused for development that is not well designed. Especially where
it fails to reflect local design guidance and supplementary planning
documents.

York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan

2.13 The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood was ‘made’ on 16" June 2022. The
Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the statutory development plan for the
City of York. Therefore applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise. Relevant policies within the Neighbourhood
Plan are:

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



2.14

2.15

2.16

2.17

Page 116

Al- Purpose and Ambition

A2 - Sustainable Development

A3 — Spatial Plan

A4 — Design Excellence

C1 — Historic Environment

C2 — Listed Building Consent

C3 — Archaeology and Scheduled Monument Consent
D1 — Wellbeing

The Minster Neighbourhood Plan also includes a series of defined Project
Areas. These are areas within which a specified set of proposals or aspirations
are intended to be delivered. The application site in this case is located within
Project Area 4 — Own Use Properties. Policy PA4 requires that proposals should
respond positively to the historic character of the site, including:

Setting of the City Walls

Views from the City Walls to the Minster

The linear land divisions

The characteristics of the historic roofscape

The ancillary ‘back of plot’ history and nature of the site.

Subsections A, B and C of Policy PA4 are also of relevance here. These
subsections relate to demarcated areas within Project Area 4 and set out the
aspirations of what development is intended to be delivered. Subsection A
states: ‘Existing garages and rear garden space to be redeveloped to provide
storage on the ground floor and Minster staff housing on the first floor.
Redevelopment to be no higher than the existing ridge line, and its plan,
massing, roofscape, materials and details to respond positively to the character
and appearance of the site and the setting of heritage assets.’

Subsection B states: ‘A new workshop to house the Minster's masons will be
created as part of the investment in the Stoneyard to establish an international
centre of excellence for heritage skills across the Precinct. The building is to be
lightweight, single storey construction, with green living roof and is to be
sensitively designed in relation to the character of the retained gardens.

Subsection C states: ‘The display of part of the Minster's lapidarium with
examples of historic stone being able to be viewed from the City Walls.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 117

2.18 The DLP was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of the
hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 20109.
Phase 2 of the hearings concluded in May 2022. Phase 3 of the hearings took
place in July 2022 and Phase 4 is currently scheduled for September 2022. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be
afforded weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.19 Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:

SS3 - York City Centre

DP2 — Sustainable Development

D1 — Place Making

D2 — Landscape and Setting

D4 — Conservation Areas

D6 — Archaeology

D10 — York City Walls and St Mary’s Abbey Walls (“York Walls’)
GI2 — Biodiversity and Access to Nature

CC1 - Renewable and Low Carbon Energy Generation and Storage
CC2 — Sustainable Design and Construction of New Development
ENV2 — Managing Environmental Quality

T1 — Sustainable Access

DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

2.20 The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being
material considerations in the determination of planning application where

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 118

policies relevant to the application are consistent with those in the NPPF
although the weight that can be attached to them is very limited.

3 CONSULTATIONS

3.1 The application has been advertised via Site Notice, local press notice and
neighbour notification letter.

INTERNAL

Highways

3.2  Vehicle tracking details are acceptable however the number of cycle parking
spaces needs to be increased to 14 and the safety concerns pertaining to
pedestrians and the stone loader using the Quadrangle at the same time have
been suitably addressed by the applicant. Suggested conditions provided.

Conservation Architect

3.3 | support the aspirations of the Chapter of York in establishing a Centre of
Excellence for heritage craft skills and do recognise that there will be
identifiable public benefits that stem from such a centre. However we must
raise objection to the proposals as we do not consider the current proposals
have sufficiently addressed the issues raised at pre-application stage, do not
meet the requirements of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan, and would cause a
high degree of less than substantial harm to both setting of historic assets and
character of the conservation area.

Public Protection
3.4 No objections raised but recommends the use of conditions relating to noise
mitigation, control of construction noise and dust and land contamination

Drainage (Lead Local Flood Authority)
3.5 No comments received.

Ecology

3.6  No objections raised but does request conditions to secure a Biodiversity
Enhancement Plan, Lighting Plan and provision of measures to safeguard
nesting birds.

Tree and Landscape Officer

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 119

3.7 1do not support the application due to the harmful impact on views of the
landscape/townscape from the city walls. The proposed development would
disrupt the harmonious relationship between the city walls, garden space, the
buildings of Minster Court and York Minster. The development would also
result in the loss of/pose a significant risk of harm to, Category A and B trees
that make a positive contribution to the amenity of the Conservation Area.

Archaeologist

3.8 No objections raised but highlights that the site is within the area of the former
Roman fortress. In particular close to a former gateway. The line of the City
Wall follows the boundary of the fortress wall. It is anticipated that
archaeological features and deposits survive at this location from all periods. It
will therefore be necessary to condition an archaeological watching brief on all
ground works at the site.

EXTERNAL

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.9 Commented in support of the Planning Application noting ‘an interesting and
Imaginative scheme’.

Historic England

3.10 The precinct is one of the defining features of a medieval English cathedral.
York Minster Precinct encompasses a rich array of buildings and spaces with
a markedly different character north and south of the minster.

3.11 The character of the north part has retained much of its historic seclusion, with
high-status historic houses set within mature gardens, partially enclosed by
one of the best preserved and picturesque sections of the city walls. Views
between the minster and the city walls here contribute considerably to their
settings, as well as to the character of the conservation area.

3.12 The development of two rear garden plots on this part of the precinct — the
former Deanery Garages and Workshops site and the gardens of no.2 Minster
Court — are a key element of the vision of the Chapter of York to establish the
Precinct as an internationally recognised Centre of Excellence for heritage
craft skills and estate management.

3.13 Historic England is strongly supportive of the aims and ambitions behind the
proposals and welcomes its positive evolution from the proposals discussed at
pre-application stage. However, we consider there is scope in the proposals to

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 120

introduce adjustments that would help better mitigate impact and improve the
positive contribution the building can make to this sensitive site of the precinct
and outstanding views towards the minster. We therefore recommend
amendments to the proposals are pursued, in line with statutory and policy
requirements.

Yorkshire Water
3.14 No comments received.

4 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1 A total of 2.no letters of support been received, from the Archbishop of York
and The National Trust. The comments of support are summarised as follows:

- The proposals are one of the principal components of the York Minster
Neighbourhood Plan.

- At the heart of the project is an ambitious and unflinching commitment to
sustainability; protecting heritage craft skills, creating learning opportunities
and a willingness to embrace modern technology.

- The buildings have been designed with sustainability at their heart.

- The proposals respect the Minster, its history and underpin its core purpose as
a centre for worship, mission and teaching, whilst furthering its commitment to
sharing knowledge and training across the North and across the world.

- The plans seek to increase opportunities for collaboration and learning with
other heritage institutions; and the project is already establishing strong
international partnerships — which can only be a good thing economically,
culturally and socially for the Minster, York and the wider City Region.

- It demonstrates that promoting sustainability and tackling climate change can
sit comfortably alongside heritage protection.

- Through the generous support of York Minster Fund, this project is fully funded
and can be operational quickly.

- This is a once in a generation opportunity to safeguard the future of heritage
skills in York.

- The National Trust owns and manages a number of local properties within the
vicinity of the application sites, including Treasurers House, the National Trust
Shop, holiday accommodation and commercial shops on Stonegate.
Consequently, National Trust has an interest in how the area is to be
developed.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 121

National Trust considers the proposals to be an improvement on present
facilities. They will allow the craft teams to enhance their skills and grow
heritage training opportunities.

The proposals will also allow for greater opportunities for visitor engagement
and highlighting the craft skills at York Minster.

National Trust are currently developing Specialist Skilled Centres for Masonry
and Joinery work across the North region and we believe that these would
greatly benefit from having a high quality York Minster Centre of Excellence.

5 APPRAISAL

Key Issues

5.1

The key issues are as follows:
- Principle of Development
- Impact Upon Heritage Assets
- Highways and Access
- Design and Layout of the site
- Residential Amenity and Public Protection
- Archaeology
- Ecology
- Trees and Landscaping
- Sustainable design and construction
- Public Benefits
- Planning Balance

Principle of Development

5.2

5.3

The Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan (NHP) was formally ‘made’ by the
City of York Council on 16™ June 2022. The NHP therefore forms part of the
statutory development plan for the City of York. The policies contained within
the plan are material considerations in the assessment of any development
proposal within the defined NHP area.

Paragraph 5.2.1 of the NHP sets out a series of objectives that the plan
intends to deliver:

To better preserve and celebrate the historic environment of York Minster and
its Precinct.

To create new and improved visitor facilities to improve the welcome to York
Minster.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.4

5.5

5.6

Page 122

To create a defined Minster Precinct which is safe and welcoming to all.

To create new public realm of exemplary design quality which reflects the
special character and history of the Minster Precinct.

To make best use of Chapter’s assets within the Precinct for the good of the
Minster without casing unacceptable harm to its neighbours.

To create a dedicated museum to display the Minster’s collection and create
opportunities to host temporary exhibitions including touring exhibitions of
national and international importance.

To create new flexible community space within improved facilities for learning
and participation.

To ensure financial, social and environmental sustainability sit at the heart of
how we care for the Minster over the Plan period within the target of achieving
EcoGold Church status by 2025.

To enhance and manage trees within the Precinct and improve the publicly
accessible parts of the Precinct to support the wellbeing of our community and
the people of York.

It is these objectives which have then bene taken forward as the basis for
formulating the various policies contained within the NHP. They have also
been used as the basis for devising an overall spatial vision for the Precinct.
The spatial vision (NHP Para 5.3) draws a distinction between the busy
southern side and the quieter northern sides of the precinct. Paragraph 5.3.3
states; ‘The important work of the Minster’s crafts people will be supported by
the provision of apprentice accommodation, workshop space and storage in
the Deanery garages and adjacent private garden’.

Policy A3 of the NHP sets out the Spatial Plan for the NHP; setting out the
proposed general distribution of land uses across the precinct and is a co-
ordinated spatial plan to deliver the vision and objectives of the
Neighbourhood Plan during the plan period. There a four principal project
areas where built development, land use change and improvements to green
infrastructure and public realm are focused.

Of relevance to this consideration of this current planning application is Area 4
Own Use Properties (PA4). The corresponding subtext within Policy A3 states:
‘Investment and moderate redevelopment of facilities to the rear of York
Minster will provide the much-needed facilities to run York Minster. This will
include affordable housing for our own community and additional facilities to
support the functioning of the Stoneyard.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.7

5.8

5.9

5.10

5.11

5.12

Page 123

Policy PA4 sets out a series of aspirations with regards to what it is envisaged
will be delivered within the Project Area. Policy PA4 states; ‘Proposals should
respond positively to the historic character of the site, including; Setting of the
City Walls, Views from the City Walls to the Minster, The linear land divisions,
The characteristics of the historic roofscape and the ancillary back of plot’
history and nature of the site.’

The policy then goes on to set out a series of sub-areas within the defined
project area which provide a greater degree of detail as to the what will be
delivered within the project area. Of relevance to this planning application are
sub-areas A, B and C which collectively form the general extent of the
application site on land encompassing the existing Deanery garages adjacent
to the City Walls.

Policy PA4(a) states: ‘Existing garages and rear garden space to be
redeveloped to provide storage on the ground floor and Minster staff housing
on the first floor. Redevelopment to be no higher than the existing ridge line,
and its plan, massing, roofscape, materials and details to respond positively to
the character and appearance of the site and the setting of heritage assets’.

The proposals would result in the redevelopment of the existing garages and
garden space. The development would provide storage and accommodation
space for Minster staff — although it is noted that this would be exclusively at
ground floor level rather than being split across ground and first floor levels.
The tallest point on the existing garages is approximately 6.5m high. The
highest point of the proposed development would be 5.5m therefore achieving
the criterion on not being taller than the existing ridgeline. Matters of plan,
massing, roofscape, materials and how it responds to the character of the site
are discussed later in this report. The proposals would therefore, in principle,
accord with the parameters of Policy PA4(a).

Policy PA4(b) states: ‘A new workshop to house the Minster’'s masons will be
created as part of the investment in the Stoneyard to establish an international
centre of excellence for heritage skills across the Precinct. The building is to
be lightweight, single storey construction, with green living roof and is to be
sensitively designed in relation to the character of the retained gardens’.

The proposals would provide a new workshop for the Minster's masons and be
of single storey construction. The proposals would therefore accord with the
general parameters set out within Policy PA4(b).

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.13

5.14

5.15

5.16

5.17

Page 124

Policy PA4(c) states: ‘The display of part of the Minster’s lapidarium with
examples of historic stone being able to be viewed from the City Walls’. A
lapidarium is a place where stone monuments and fragments of
archaeological interest are exhibited.

The submitted details show the area to the rear of the proposed building
adjacent to the City Walls as being the area intended for the display of stone.
This would be in accordance with Policy PA4(c).

The adopted NHP establishes a clear policy objective of delivering the type of
development that is proposed within this application in terms of seeking to
establish a centre of excellence for heritage craft skills and provide various
facilities to achieve this. Additionally, the proposals in terms of their location
within the precinct would be in accordance with the overarching spatial
strategy of the NHP.

Having regard to the Draft Local Plan (2018). There are no draft allocations
contained within the DLP which cover the application site. As such the
proposals would not result in a development which would be prejudicial or
contrary to the spatial vision of the DLP.

It is therefore considered that, in principle, the proposed development would
accord with the provisions of the adopted NHP plan, specifically Polices PA4
and Policy A3. In principle, the proposed development would be acceptable;
subject to all other material matters being acceptable.

Impact upon heritage assets

5.18

5.19

Given the location of the proposed development there are number of heritage
assets which are within the immediate and general vicinity of the site. These
include various listed buildings of varying grades. The site also sits within a
scheduled monument and designated Conservation Area. Assets such as the
City Walls and York Minster are some of the most significant heritage assets
within the city.

The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places
several duties upon the LPA. Section 66 requires that in considering whether
to grant planning permission the LPA shall have special regard to the
desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.20

5.21

5.22

Page 125

special architectural or historic interest. Section 72 also requires, within the
context of Conservation Areas, that the LPA shall pay special attention to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of that
area.

Policies D4 and D5 of the DLP 2018 both have the overarching objective or
seeking to ensure that development proposals preserve or enhance the areas
or buildings which contribute to the overall historic significance of the city.
Policy C1 of the Minster NHP also requires that development proposals should
protect, conserve and seek opportunities to enhance the internationally
important historic environment of the Minster Precinct.

Policy D10 of the DLP 2018 relates to the City Walls and states; Projects that
set out to conserve and enhance the values and significances of York walls
will be supported. Development proposals within the areas of York Walls
designated as Scheduled Ancient Monuments will be supported where they
are for the specific purpose of enhancing physical and intellectual access to
York Walls. Development proposals adjacent to or likely to affect the setting of
the City Walls designated as Scheduled Monuments will only be permitted
where:

They are accompanied by a heritage statement that clearly assess the impact
which the proposals are likely to have upon the elements and principal
characteristics which contribute to their significance and six principal
characteristics of the City as identified in the heritage topic paper;

They are designed to be no higher than the city walls externally and not reduce
their dominance;

They do not cause harm to those elements which contribute to the significance
or setting of York Walls; and

They are of the highest design quality which, where possible, enhances or
better reveals the significance of York Walls.

Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states; Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as
World Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of Outstanding
Universal Value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be
conserved in a manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be
enjoyed for their contribution to the quality of life of existing and future
generations.’

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

Page 126

The Central Historic Core Conservation Area Appraisal — Character Area 9
covers the Minster Precinct. The precinct is characterised by having very high
percentage of listed buildings within it. The CAA notes that most of the
precinct has a very distinctive character which sets it apart from the rest of the
historic core. Reflecting its history as a separate place within the city, under
separate jurisdiction with a very specific function. Today, the precinct is split in
to two contrasting parts. North of the Minster it retains much of its historic
seclusion and is marked by broad, green openness and an almost complete
absence of roads. South of the Cathedral, the narrow streets of the city centre
come up almost to the walls of the Minster itself separated only by a necklace
of roads and modest informal paved spaces.

The CAA cites the inherent strengths of the precinct as being the Minster and
the array of historic buildings around it. The superb views and charming
streets. Dean’s Park, the largest green space within the city walls and the
absence of traffic. The two main weaknesses of the precinct are identified as
being the quality of spaces and streets on the south side of the Minster.
Secondly, the CAA identifies a need to bridge the divide between the north
and south sides of the Minster. Locals know it and use it, but it is hidden by the
Cathedral from most visitors. Better information, signage or new facilitites are
suggested as ways to draw visitors into appreciating more of the historic
buildings and monuments around it.

In support of the application a Heritage Impact Assessment has been
submitted. This document identifies the various historic assets within the
precinct which may be affected by the proposed development and identifies
their significance. Existing features such as the Deanery Garages and
Workshop have been identified as being a low significance. At the opposite
end of the scale features such as the Minster and City Walls have been
identified as being of exceptional significance.

Within the context of the buildings proposed within this application the HIA
notes that there is an established hierarchy of spaces within this area of the
precinct with the City Walls forming the defined boundary to the North and
West, generous rear gardens and ancillary buildings, the principal residences
and at the centre the Minster. This creates a distinct layering culminating in the
Minster.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.27

5.28

5.29

5.30

Page 127

The HIA states that the garden of 2 Minster Court has no landscape value but
considers there to be historic and some aesthetic value in the plot shape. It
acknowledges that development in this location will be clearly visible in the
foreground of views from the City Walls towards the Minster but that it may
also be visible from the Central Tower of the Minster. The HIA then sets out a
series of principles which could be used in the design to mitigate these
impacts. These include:

Keeping the building height to single storey and below that of the boundary
wall;

Minimising any new penetrations through the garden wall for access;
Oritentating the building to emphasise the linearity of the plot.

Retaining a full-length strip of garden;

Using green roofs or similar approaches to maintain the garden character of
the site and enhance its biodiversity.

Employing materials appropriate for a back of plot site, such as local York brick
and/or timber.

Using raft foundations or other techniques to avoid disturbing below ground
archaeology by structure and services.

The HIA states that development proceeding according to these measures will
meet the four widely-recognised tests for the impact of development on
important views of the historic environment; it will not break the skyline, it will
not visually obstruct significant elements, it will not visually compete with the
significant elements, and it will not change the character of the view.

The HIA then goes on to summarise the impacts of the proposed
development. It concludes that the proposals would result in the loss of a small
portion of the 18™ Century curtilage listed boundary wall and the loss of the
19" Century potting shed, which would overall cause only very minor harm to
the significance of the Grade II* listed Minster Court.

The proposals would result in the loss of the roof and late-20™ Century
portions of the curtilage listed Garages and Workshops, however their
significance and contribution to the setting of the nearby listed buildings and to
the character of the conservation area is limited and therefore this harm would
therefore be minimal. It would result in very minor harm to the significance of
the Grade Il listed Deanery largely through the loss of historic association. The
lost of the 20" Century portions of the complex — although following the
original design — would cause no harm.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 128

5.31 The HIA assesses that the proposals would result in a moderate degree of

5.32

5.33

5.34

less than substantial harm to Minster Court (Grade II*) and the Deanery
(Grade Il) through the:

The development of part of the garden plot, which would result in the loss of
part of the buildings garden setting — causing moderate harm. This change was
established through the designation of this plot for development in the York
Minster NHP, and would be mitigated through the use of lightweight linear
buildings of appropriate scale and materials and the retention and replanting of
a sizeable portion of the garden.

Partial loss of distinction between the two plots brought about by spanning
them within one roof, which has been mitigated through the retention of the
majority of the boundary wall and its emphasis within the courtyard and the
accommodation range — overall this would cause moderate harm,;

The loss of the curtilage listed potting shed would cause minor harm to the
significance of Minster Court;

The loss of the Garages and Workshops as associated ancillary structures and
physically the loss of roofs which read alongside those of the Deanery, would
cause minor harm to the significance of the Deanery.

The workshops would invite views through its clerestory windows and could
potentially be considered to cause harm to the character and appearance of
the conservation area and setting of the listed buildings by disrupting some of
the layered views of the Minster from the City Walls, they would however form
a subtle new visual connection which links the craft of stonemasonry directly to
the primary heritage asset within the Precinct — the Minster. They would not
obscure views of any nearby heritage assets and given the buildings low scale
and landscaping proposals they would in some views enhance the character
of the conservation area and setting of the listed buildings.

The proposals would change the visual character of the site by introducing a
unique roof form to this portion of the Precinct, which may be considered o
cause harm, however, this contrasting form subtly reflects the form of the
ramparts and its finish would match the colour of nearby tiled roofs — which
would ensure it reads as an appropriate new layer within the Conservation
Area.

The use of the site for stonemasonry would change the use of this site —
introducing new sounds through the actions of stone carving and the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.35

5.36

Page 129

movements associated with vehicles. The western plot is currently used as
garages, gardener’s and scaffold stores therefore the change here would not
be dissimilar nor would it be more intrusive, whilst the garden of Minster Court
would be used as a quiet space thereby largely retaining its domestic garden
character. The impact associated to this use would therefore have limited
impact on the setting of the listed buildings and the character of the
conservation area.

The HIA concludes that the ‘Cumulative impact of these proposals is that they
would result in a moderate degree of less than substantial harm to the
significance of the heritage assets.

As part of the assessment of the proposals the Councils Conservation
Architect has reviewed the submitted details. As is set out earlier in this report
they have raised objections to the proposals. In their comments a series of
areas of objection are raised.

They note that ‘the setting of the City Walls is in part defined by a hierarchy of
spaces, the more open garden space setting immediately adjacent, the mix of
domestic scale properties as you look toward the Minster (generally increasing
in scale toward the Minster, the buildings closest to the wall both small scale
and low key); and finally the Minster itself with its scale and grandeur
dominating the whole. The proposal interrupts this hierarchy (reducing the
dominance of the Minster) by introducing a very large footprint building where
there currently aren’t any’.

This site (particularly to the rear of Minster Court) provides a largely empty,
quiet, undeveloped, and spacious setting for both Minster Court, but also the
Minster itself. The spaces are domestic in character, lean-to greenhouses and
the curtilage listed workshops and garages have a very strong ‘back of house’
character which contribute to the significance of this part of the conservation
area and setting of listed buildings and structures. The new building will be far
larger than any other ancillary buildings in this location with no sense of
domestic scale or character.

The Conservation Area Appraisal (Minster Precinct) describes the character of
the proposed sites, North of the Minster, and states: ‘Today, the character of
the Precinct splits into two contrasting parts. North of the Minster it retains
much of its historic seclusion and is marked by broad green openness, and an
almost complete absence of roads.

It is important to recognise the importance of how tranquil and secluded the
site feels and contributes to the setting of various assets. The setting of

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.37

5.38

Page 130

heritage assets is defined as how the asset is appreciated but this isn’t just
visual device.

The approach to opening up the full upper elevation of the new elevation of the
new building towards the wall to create a ‘public front’ to the building promoting
the uncharacteristic activity within this quiet, domestic setting is wrong and
views into active workspace should be limited to glimpses to minimise the
negative impact on the current ‘quiet’ character the sites currently hold.

The proposed building will be far more distracting than the current development
within the garden space is, and this will harm the setting of the walls, listed
buildings and Minster.

The linear plot divisions are particularly distinctive in this location and
contribute strongly to the aesthetic and historic heritage values of the site. It
was an important consideration during the pre-application process that this was
a proposal for two sites and not one. The current proposal will obliterate and
appreciation of the historic plot separation.

The proposed architectural language of the building is also very alien in its
context. Combined with the roof and scale results in a building that lacks any
domestic character and will appear strikingly discordant in this location.

The Conservation Architect concludes their comments by stating that, in their
view, the setting of the walls, Minster and Listed Buildings will be harmed by
the introduction of a building substantially larger than any that currently exist in
this location, that obscures any understanding of the historic plot boundaries,
and existing spacious garden and ancillary back of house character in an
architectural language of building that does not relate positively to existing
character. They close their comments stating that they do not consider the
proposals to have ‘sufficiently addressed the issues raised at pre-application
stage, do not meet the requirements of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan, and
would cause a high degree of less than substantial harm to both setting of
historic assets, and character of the conservation area’.

Given the significance of the application site and the extent of the proposals
Historic England have also been consulted on the proposals. They too have
identified that, in their view, the proposals would give rise to a medium level of
harm being caused to the character of the Conservation Area and the
contribution setting makes to the significance of the City Walls. They also
conclude that a low level of harm would be caused to the Minster by affecting
the contribution setting makes to its significance.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.39

5.40

5.41

5.42

Page 131

Historic England then go on to make a series of suggestions to mitigate their
concerns:

Strongly encourage the single roof unifying the complex is revised in favour of
it being read as a collection of buildings around a verity of open spaces. We
consider disaggregating the roof form of the main building into different
components would help better integrate the structure within the grain and
roofscape of the surrounding residential buildings.

A reduction in the eaves extension on the external elevations would reduce the
expanse of the building. This would in turn help reduce its disrupting impact on
the setting of the City Walls and surrounding designated assets.

The applicant has provided a response to these concerns raised by both
Historic England, these are covered in greater detail in the design section of
this report. Despite the concerns highlighted by both the Council’s
Conservation Architect and Historic England the applicant has not advanced
any revisions to the proposals. The applicant maintains that the proposals
stand and, in their view, provides clear justification for the scheme.

The proposals would result in a degree of harm being caused to the character
and setting of various heritage assets that exist within the vicinity of the site.
As is set out above the extent of this harm is graded by differing parties at
slightly different levels of extent. However, all have stated that they consider
the impact to be less than substantial harm. The Conservation Architect
assesses the harm as being at the higher end of less than substantial. Historic
England have categorised the harm as being medium. The submitted Heritage
Impact Assessment concludes that a moderate degree of less than substantial
harm to the significance of heritage assets will occur.

The proposed development would give rise to a degree of harm being
caused.. Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states: ‘Any harm to, or loss of, the
significance of a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction,
or from development within its setting) should require clear and convincing
justification, Substantial harm to or loss of: grade Il listed buildings or grade I
registered park or gardens, should be exceptional; assets of the highest
significance, notably scheduled monuments, protected wreck sites, registered
battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade | and II* registered parks and
gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly exceptional.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.43

5.44

5.45

5.46

Page 132

It is also important to quantify the impact upon designated heritage assets.
Paragraph 201 of the NPPF is clear, subject to a series of defined exceptions,
that in cases where substantial harm would occur local planning authorities
should refuse consent. The level of harm that could arise in this case has been
categorised as being less than substantial.

In cases where the level of harm is assessed as being less than substantial
paragraph 202 of the NPPF is of relevance; this states ‘Where a development
will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated
heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the
proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.’

The possible public benefits are considered later in this report.

As the proposals would be considered to cause harm to the character and
setting of multiple designated heritage assets, albeit to varying degrees and to
a level that would be considered at worst at the higher end of less than
substantial harm; harm nonetheless would result. As such the proposals would
be contrary to policies D4 and D5 of the DLP 2018.

Archaeology

5.47

5.48

5.49

The application site is located within the defined Area of Archaeological
Importance as well as being located within the Scheduled Monument area that
is the Minster Precinct. The application site is within the area of the former
Roman fortress and in particular close to a former gateway. Therefore in this
context it is considered that there is the real possibility for material of
archaeological significance or interest to be present on the site. Given the
nature of the proposed development there is the risk that any such material
which may be present at the site could be disturbed as the development will
necessitate intrusive ground works.

Paragraph 194 of the NPPF requires: ‘Where a site on which development is
proposed includes, or has the potential to include, heritage assets with
archaeological interest, local planning authorities should require developers to
submit an appropriate desk-based assessment and, where necessary, a field
evaluation’.

Archaeological investigations have already taken place at the site and the
findings of these have been submitted in support of this application. The
investigations involved the digging of two trenches within the site. In both

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.50

5.51

5.52

5.53

Page 133

trenches probable garden soils were encountered. No significant archaeology
was found in either trench. These investigations were undertaken in support of
the application and upon the advice of Historic England.

The City Archaeologist has reviewed the submitted details and raises no
objections to the proposals. They do however note that despite the trial
trenching not uncovering any significant archaeological material there is still
the potential for material of archaeological significance to be encountered on
the site. The use of single storey structures also reduces the extent of intrusive
ground works as any building foundations would not need to be as deep as
they would be for a multi-storey structure. The submitted structural
engineering report also indicates that a range of foundation options will be
available depending upon the outcome of further site investigations. It is also
considered that the proposed attenuation tank should be shallow enough
(0.8m) to be of negligible archaeological impact.

Overall it is considered that whilst there is the potential for the development to
encounter or disturb archaeological material the submitted details indicate that
such risks could be suitably mitigated given the intended scale and depth of
excavation that would be required to facilitate the development.

In the event of granting planning permission given the potential of the site to
contain archaeological material it is still considered necessary to require an
archaeological watching brief be placed on the site during development. Such
measures can be secured via condition and would provide a Written Scheme
of Investigation under which the development can be monitored and should
any archaeological deposits be encountered appropriate measures can be
agreed to appropriately record and document any findings.

Subject to the conditions set out above to secure a watching brief over the site
it is considered that the proposed development could be undertaken in manner
that accords with the provisions of Policy C3 of the Minster NHP, Policy D6 of
the 2018 DLP and Section 16 of the NPPF.

Highways and Access

5.54

Access to the site would be via Minster Yard, an existing Private Road which
serves the existing properties in the locality of the site. Space would be
provided in the courtyard area in the centre of the site to facilitate the turning

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.55

5.56

5.57

5.58

5.99

Page 134

of vehicles. Existing parking arrangements for the neighbouring properties
including The Deanery would be maintained.

Policy T1 of the DLP 2018 deals with sustainable access and states that
development will be supported where it minimises the need to travel and
provides safe, suitable and attractive access for all transport users to and
within it, including those with impaired mobility, such that it maximises the use
of more sustainable modes of transport.

Given the location of the proposed development within the city centre the
proposals would be considered to be in a highly sustainable location. A wide
range of amenities and services are readily accessible within the city centre.
There is also good wider connectivity to public transport services.

The proposals seek a car free development and seeks to minimise additional
vehicular journeys from the site. Deliveries to the site would be infrequent and
conducted in a similar way as to at present utilising the applicant’s own
vehicles. Details of a swept path analysis have been provided which
colleagues in Highways have confirmed are satisfactory.

Within their comments Highways have highlighted the possible conflict within
the Quadrangle between pedestrians and the stone loader. It is the stone
loader which will be used to move stone from the Technology Hub on
Deangate to the Heritage Quad. These movements are proposed once a day
and will be completed before 9am. The stone loader compact tractor style
machine measuring 2.5m in length and is articulated in the middle to allow for
greater manoeuvrability in confined space. To minimise this conflict, they
have suggested that the applicant should confirm whether this will be the only
vehicle allowed within the Quadrangle and whether a banksman should be
used when the stone loader is being operated within the quadrangle. However,
this is not considered necessary in the context of determining this application.
These movements would not occur within the public highway, they are
undertaken by the site operator, using the operator's equipment and by their
staff. As such it is not considered that these concerns fall within the remit of
the LPA for the purposes of determining this application. Instead, they will be
the responsibility of the applicant in the context of general health and safety
within a work environment.

The applicant has indicated their intention to provide a total of 8.no cycle
spaces in the development. These would consist of Sheffield Hoops located

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 135

adjacent to the garden store entrance. Colleagues in Highways have however
concluded that the cycle parking requirement, based on the scale of the
development, would be 14 spaces. This would require the provision of 3.no
additional Sheffield Hoops. It is considered that these details can be secured
by condition in the event of planning permission being granted.

5.60 Highways have recommended that in the event of permission being granted
conditions requiring the details of cycle parking to be agreed and a condition
requiring the agreed details to be laid out and provided prior to the
development coming into first use should be included in the grant of planning
permission.

5.61 The proposals would allow for the existing Deanery to retain its existing
parking provision and subiject to the suggested conditions should be capable
of securing appropriate levels of cycle parking. The proposals are therefore
considered to accord with Policy T1 of the DLP 2018.

Design and Layout of the Site

5.62 Paragraph 130 of the NPPF requires that planning policies and decisions
should ensure that developments:

- Will function well and add to the overall quality of the area, not just for the short
term but over the lifetime of development.

- Are visually attractive as a result of good architecture, layout and appropriate
and effective landscaping.

- Are sympathetic to local character and history, including the surrounding built
environment and landscape setting, while not preventing or discouraging
appropriate innovation or change (such as increased densities).

- Optimise the potential of the site to accommodate and sustain an appropriate
amount and mist of development (including green and other public space) and
support local facilities and transport networks; and

- Create places that are safe, inclusive and accessible which promote health and
well-being, with a high standard of amenity for existing future users, quality of
life or community cohesion and resilience.

5.63 Policy SS3 of the DLP 2018 relates to York City Centre. Policy SS3 identifies
the city centre as being the priority area and the principal location in the City of
York area for the delivery of economic growth. Policy SS3 goes on to state:
‘York Minster Cathedral Precinct is approximately 8 hectares in size. The
Minster is still the pre-eminent structure in the City of York today and it

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.64

5.65

5.66

5.67

Page 136

continues to play a significant role in the religious, social and cultural life of the
city. The Council will work with the Minster authorities, as appropriate, to future
plan for its development to better reveal the significances of its special
character and appearance.

Policy SS3 then sets out a series of principles to take into account when
considering city centre development proposals. These include subsection (i)
which states: ‘Conserve and enhance the existing historic character of York
City Centre whilst encouraging contemporary high quality developments that
add to the sense of place and create a prestigious and desirable location for
thriving businesses’. Subsection (ii) then states: ‘Enhance the quality of the
city centre as a place and rediscover the outstanding heritage of the city
centre as a place and rediscover the outstanding heritage of the city with
reanimated and revitalised streets, places and spaces and improved settings
to showcase important assets such as the Minster and Clifford’s Tower’.

At present the existing design and layout of the site is domestic in its character
and general sense of feeling. This is characteristic of this side of the precinct,
typically being more tranquil. The existing development in this area is typically
subservient and somewhat ancillary to neighbouring uses. Viewing the site
from the North East a general hierarchy of buildings can be seen. Those in the
foreground such as the existing Deanery garages are ancillary type buildings
which serve those buildings next in the hierarchy such as The Deanery and
the properties at Minster Court. At the top of the hierarchy and dominating
views is the Minster itself.

At present the existing Deanery garages are situated to the North East of the
Deanery. The courtyard area of the garages is enclosed by a boundary wall
which at its opposite encloses the gardens of properties at Minster Court. A
potting shed and greenhouse are built off of the boundary wall and stand in the
garden area of the neighbouring property. The existing garages occupy an
approximate area of 307m? and stand to a maximum height of 6.2m to the
highest ridge point, the height of the lower ridge point is approximately 5.4m.
The potting shed and greenhouse cumulatively occupy a footprint of
approximately 35m? standing to maximum height of 4.6m.

The proposed development will have a far larger built footprint than the
existing buildings. The scaffold store will cover approximately 130m?. The
main workshop building will occupy approximately 600m? whilst the breakout
pavilion will occupy approximately 60m?2. The proposed overall heights of the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.68

5.69

5.70

5.71

Page 137

various built forms will not exceed the current highest point of the existing
garages. The proposed highest point on the main building is 5.7m this is only
30cm taller than the existing lower ridge of the garage and 50cm lower than
the highest ridge point of the garage. This along with the design and form of
the proposed roof allows for overall built heights to be reduced across the site
and rationalise the massing of roof forms on the site. The reduction in roof
heights allows for an enlarged field of view from the City Walls walkway.

The proposed development will change the existing character of the site due
to the overall increase in the amount of built form on the site and also due to
the contemporary nature of the proposed design. The proposals would alter
the existing visual hierarchy by virtue of the increased amount of built form in
the immediate foreground of views from the City Walls. However the general
arrangement of the hierarchy would be retained insofar as buildings heights
generally increase moving toward the Minster itself.

The submitted Design and Access Statement acknowledges the existing
character of the site. Noting that the existing structures sit as a garden
outbuilding. The Design and Access State goes on to state: “The garden
character is retained firstly by reusing the same footprint of the existing
structures and yard, and then by extending where they already exist to meet
the project brief. The proposal reuses the existing U-Shaped garages and
walls to form a ‘Quad’ courtyard. The existing brick walls are retained where
possible and a new radial timber roof shelters the single storey building joining
the old and new walls together.

Referring back to Policy PA4 of the NHP. Policy PA4 states that proposals
should respond positively to the historic character of the site, including: setting
of the walls, views from the City Walls to the Minster, the linear land divisions,
the characteristics of the historic roofscape and the ancillary ‘back of plot’
history and nature of the site.

Considering the setting of the City Walls and views from the City Walls to the
Minster. The overall increase in the built form on the site will impact upon the
setting of the City Walls. However, this will be offset to a degree by reason of
the overall building heights being kept beneath the existing highest point. This
will also assist with preserving views of the Minster from the City Walls. The
development will not block or obscure existing views. However, it has to be
acknowledged that the character of the view will change by virtue of the
introduction of the expanse of roof covering the proposed building. In the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.72

5.73

5.74

Page 138

general locality the typical character of the roofscape is pitched roofs
comprising of a mixture of red tile and slate type finishes. The proposed form
of the roof would differ from that which exists in the locality. The proposed use
of standing seam zinc would introduce a new material. Although the colour
finish of this material, typically, a warm grey or brown, could allow for the roof
to be kept in keeping with the general colour finishes of the roofscape. It is
also noted that much of the Mister itself uses a grey roof finish.

Having regard to the linear land divisions and ancillary ‘back of plot’ nature.
This has been a point of much discussion with the applicant throughout this
project. The existing character of the site is one of a collection of ancillary type
buildings which serve a functional purpose to the nearby residential properties.
This is a feature that Policy PA4 of the NHP requires that development
responds to. When looking at the proposals in plan form it is considered that a
degree of disaggregation has been achieved and the building could be read as
its component parts — such as the scaffold/garden store, the main workshop,
the living accommodation and the breakout pavilion. Although, in practice, this
effect is lost to a degree by the proposed roof as that covers the main areas in
the centre of the site, a point that has been raised by Historic England in their
consultation comments. At most, visually, the proposal would generally read
as three elements; namely the scaffold garden store, main building and the
breakout pavilion. Whilst the breakout pavilion is linked via a covered walkway
the walkway would use a green roof which should assist with softening the
physical link between the two.

The matter of disaggregating the component parts of the site could, to a
degree, be assisted by the proposed landscaping and finishes to be utilised in
the scheme. It is proposed that much of the space between built forms will
either be landscaped gardens or in the paved areas such as the
scaffold/garden store and quad courtyard area green pavers are proposed.
These would let low level vegetation grow through them creating a greening
effect.

In response to the suggestions from Historic England to further disaggregate
the buildings and reduce the eaves extension of the building. The applicants
made the following submission:

The current proposal aspires to express a collegiate community, above a
collection of different buildings clustered around open spaces. Since pre-
application stage, the design has developed from one roof and one structure

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 139

into three roofs and four structures connected by covered passageways. Each
part of the roof already has different programmatic and contextual characters,
to reflect the 3 disaggregated buildings over which it sits. To disaggregate the
roof would create a building less fit for purpose and would compromise the
symbolic role of celebrating a community of heritage craftspeople under one
roof. It will also mean losing the strong contextual framing of the Minster as a
focal point’.

With regard to the suggestion concerning the eaves reduction the applicant has
responded:

5.75

‘We refer to the City of York’s Conservation Management and the
Neighbourhood Plan’s Heritage Impact Assessment as well as Policy 4A. The
project should invite “greater public access to the world-class masonry by
means of public viewing into the workshop from the City Walls”. (Heritage
Impact Assessment, Neighbourhood Plan). The accompanying planning
documents, particularly the Heritage Impact Assessment, demonstrates how
the building is designed to not ‘disrupt’, but be complementary in context, and
invite public views from the City Walls. The roof has been designed to be
modest in scale and to be unobtrusive to key views. The eaves also have
environmental, programmatic, structural roles, minimising glare and solar gain,
protecting timber elements from rain, creating covered outdoor spaces, and
optimising the structural efficiency of the walkway canopy as a back-span. The
eaves have helped to practically achieve the disaggregation that has
successfully arisen from our dialogue with Historic England and has been
most effective in reducing the expanse of building.’

The proposed development will be of a contemporary design and character.
The proposals will utilise a range of exterior materials and finishes. These will
include the retained walls of the garage and boundary wall which will be
repointed. Elements of the exterior will also use stone cladding, timber will also
be heavily used in the building with external walls being cladded and much of
the internal structure such as exposed roof and internal beams will also be
timber. The roof is to be metal standing seam. In the event of planning
permission being granted it would be appropriate to condition that full samples
of materials to be used in the development are submitted to the LPA for
approval, prior to their use in the development. It is considered that the
contemporary design of the proposal would continue to reflect the evolution of
the precinct over time. Across the precinct there are instances where the
design of a development differs from that which has come before it. This is not

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 140

necessarily a bad thing. Rather it reflects the point in time at which the
proposal was conceived — utilising the knowledge, skills, technical progress
and tastes of the day.

Residential Amenity and Public Protection

5.76

.77

5.78

5.79

5.80

Policy ENV2 of the DLP 2018 states that development will not be permitted
where future occupiers and existing communities would be subject to
significant adverse environmental impacts such as noise, vibration, odour,
fumes/emissions, dust and light pollution without effective mitigation
measures.

The proposed development will result in a notable change from the existing
operation of the site. At present the land is in a more ancillary type use to the
existing properties which surround it. The existing Deanery garages are
utilised to some extent already for the purposes of general storage for the
Minster Estate for the Gardening and Scaffold teams. There is therefore, to
some degree, already an element of residential/commercial hybrid type use.
The proposals would however change this more markedly introducing an
intensified commercial type use through the introduction of the stonemasons
workshop.

There are already a number of existing residential properties within the
immediate vicinity of the application site. The closest of which are The
Deanery and No’s 1,1a, 2 and 3 Minster Court. These properties fall within the
ownership/control of the applicant and are used as staff housing. The closest
neighbouring properties which are outside of the control of the applicant are
The Grays Court Hotel and Treasurers House which are located approximately
45m away to the south east of the existing garage forecourt.

The general design and layout of the proposals is such that they do not give
rise to concerns that the resulting development could have an adverse impact
upon the residential amenity of the existing area and neighbouring properties
insofar as introducing issues of overlooking, overshadowing or development
which could be regarded as having an overbearing impact upon neighbouring
properties.

Given this existing environment the provision of the 6.no student
accommodation units does not present any undue concerns with regard the
potential introduction of new sources of pollution or disturbance to the area

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.81

5.82

5.83

5.84

Page 141

which may be harmful to the existing residential amenity of the area. In
contrast to this the introduction of a stonemason’s workshop will have the
potential to introduce a potential source of pollution from factors such as noise,
dust and vibration as a result of the works typically undertaken in a stone
mason workshop. However it should be noted that within the details submitted
the applicant states that the proposed workshop will not utilise the same more
heavy duty type of noise producing machinery such as saws, lifting equipment.
Instead this workspace would be used for the more intricate hand carving
element of the stone mason process. Therefore tools to be used on site will
primarily be hand tools. This should mean that the operation of the workshop
does not give rise to significant levels of noise disturbance.

In the interests of ensuring that the proposed accommodation is utilised for its
intended purpose, to accommodate apprentices, and given its general design
and layout which would not typically lend itself to being used in an alternative
manner. It is considered appropriate, in the event of granting planning
permission, to limit the occupancy of these units to students who are
connected to York Minster.

The Council’'s Public Protection team have reviewed the proposals and have
not raised any objections to the proposals. They have however recommended
that in the event of planning permission being granted a series of conditions
be attached which will assist with mitigating the potential risks of any pollution
type impacts which may arise from the development.

The requested conditions include one relating to the installation of any plant or
machinery in the building; this would require details of any machinery being
installed, which will be audible outside of the building, to be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Council. Whilst it is noted that the applicant
envisages the work will primarily use hand tools it is considered that the
recommended condition will provide suitable protections to neighbouring
properties in the event of heavier noise omitting type machinery being
introduced on the site.

A further condition requiring a detailed scheme of noise insulation measures
for use in the residential units is also recommended. This will ensure that the
proposed residential units are suitably insulted from the possible noise
disturbance from the neighbouring workshop. A condition requiring the
submission and agreement of a Construction Environmental Management
Plan (CEMP) has also been requested however this given the scale of the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.85

5.86

Page 142

development and its proximity from neighbouring, non-applicant related
properties a CEMP is not considered necessary in this case.

Finally, conditions relating to potential land contamination are also
recommended. These conditions cumulatively would establish the potential
risk of ground contamination, secure mechanisms by which remediation works
can be secured, verify that these remediation measures have been
undertaken and also secure a mechanism by which instances of unexpected
land contamination can be reported and then dealt with. These conditions will
ensure that the potential risk presented by land contamination is quantified
and mitigated against in a suitable manner that will not give cause significant
harm to health or the wider general environment.

Overall, it is considered that, subject to the conditions set out above, the
proposed development would accord with the provisions of Policy ENV2. The
development would not give rise to significant environmental impacts or
introduce news sources of pollution nuisance which would be prejudicial to
existing or future occupiers or neighbours of the site.

Ecology

5.87

5.88

5.89

As part of the submission an Ecological Impact Assessment has been
provided along with an Ecological Constraints and Opportunities appraisal.
The documents cover both sites which would comprise of the Centre of
Excllence (The Deanery and the Stoneyard). There are no National Site
Network designated sites located within 5km of the application site. The
closest UK designated site to the application site is St Nicholas Fields Local
Nature Reserve situated approximately 0.9km away to the east.

Paragraph 174(d) of the NPPF requires that planning decisions should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by; ‘minimising
impacts on and providing net gains for biodiversity, including by establishing
coherent ecological networks that are more resilient to current and future
pressures. Policy GI2 of the DLP 2018, requires that development conserves
and enhances York’s biodiversity. Development should not result in harm
being caused to or the loss of existing ecological and biological features.

The submitted Ecological surveys have concluded that the site provides low
suitability for bats and additional survey work has shown that no roosting bats
are likely to be present. A low number of birds were also recorded within the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.90

5.91

5.92

Page 143

Deanery garages site. The submitted survey concludes that no significant
adverse ecological impacts are to be predicted in the absence of mitigation,
either during construction or the operation of the development.
Notwithstanding this a series of mitigations are proposed to ensure that a
minor positive impact can be achieved.

The proposed development will utilise a series of features which will assist
with providing a degree of ecological mitigation. These include the landscape
design, the provision of a green roof over the proposed breakout pavilion,
botanically rich planting and the provision of water features. The submitted
Ecological Constraints and Opportunities appraisal submitted with the
application has identified a number of opportunities to enhance the ecological
value of the site and its immediate surroundings. These include the installation
of roost and nesting boxes for bats and birds along with the sympathetic
management of existing green spaces within the precinct.

The Council’s ecologist has reviewed the proposals and the submitted
ecological surveys. They have confirmed that they have no objections to the
proposals; noting that overall the proposals will be beneficial to local ecology
through the provision of features such as green roofs, botanically rich gardens
and the provision of water features. However, to ensure that this is the case
they have advised that it would be appropriate to condition the provision of a
biodiversity enhancement plan. This will as a minimum secure the mitigation
measures set out within the submitted ecology reports.

Subject to the recommended condition it is considered that the proposals
would accord with the provisions of Policy GI2 of the DLP 2018 and section 15
of the NPPF.

Trees and Landscaping

5.93

5.94

The northern side of the Minster Precinct is characterised as being quieter
than the southern side of the precinct, as is highlighted in the Minster NHP.
This due to the fact that the Northern side of the precinct contains fewer of the
public facing elements of the Minster; as a result the Northern side is greener
with a higher prevalence of open space such as Deans Park and landscaped
garden areas which are related to the various residential properties.

There are a number of High and Moderate Quality Trees within the immediate
vicinity of the application site as identified within the adopted NHP. Policy B1

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



5.95

5.96

5.97

5.98

5.99

Page 144

of the NHP states; ‘Where development proposals would affect existing trees:
Any harm should be clearly justified in terms of public gain against the value of
these trees, recognising that trees have differing arboricultural, aesthetic,
biodiversity and amenity values.’

Policy B1 goes on to state; ‘Development proposals affecting trees should be
supported by: a tree survey in accordance with BS5837. Drawings, as
appropriate, showing the position of trees and other landscape features,
existing and finished site levels, services and sight lines. An arboricultural
method statement and impact assessment.

A Tree Survey and Arboricultural Impact assessment has been submitted in
support of the application. Many of the trees identified within the survey that
are situated in close proximity to the proposed development have been
categorised as being of High (Category A) or Moderate Quality (Category B).
The submitted Tree Survey has identified a total of 40 trees or groups of trees
which stand in close proximity to the development.

In total it is proposed that a total of 8.no individual trees would be removed. Of
the eight proposed to be removed 4.no are recorded as Category B Trees.
These are T21 — Apple Tree, G22 — Apple Tree, T22 — Bay Tree and T37 —
Wild Cherry, 2.no Category C trees; T32 — Yew Tree and T36 — Wild Cherry
and 2.no U Category (Unsuitable for retention); T34 — Apple Tree and T38 —
Laburnum. The two U Category trees are recorded as being either of poor
guality or dead. As part of the development it will also be necessary to Crown
Lift 1.no Category A tree and laterally crown reduce 1.no Category B tree.

The submitted tree survey concludes that that of the 8.no trees proposed for
removal four would be regarded as small low value trees whilst the other 4
would be regarded as small medium value trees. In all cases replacements are
proposed as part of the landscaping scheme. The survey has also concluded
that the two trees requiring pruning works, whilst their appearance would
change, the change in form is not considered to affect the streetscene or
appearance of the tree significantly.

Of the trees to be retained on site there are three (2.no individual (T19, an
Upright Cherry and T26 a Yew Tree) and 1.no partial group (3.no within G35.
Sycamore, Acer and Norway Maple) where development would be in close
proximity or within the identified Tree Protection Zones. Encroachment into
tree protection areas can pose a risk to existing trees. Considering the

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 145

potential encroachment that may occur in this case the encroachment into the
area related to G35 would appear to be limited to the area where the
lapidarium is to be located. Here ground works would likely be limited to the
laying of the stepping stones to create a walkway through the area. Having
regard to the potential encroachment into the tree protection zone of T26. This
would appear to be more significant and encompass most of the proposed
Breakout Pavilion.

5.100With regard to the proposals for the Breakout Pavilion and its relationship to
T26. The submitted Tree Survey notes that in the areas where development
encroaches into the root protection zone alternative foundations would need to
be used for the building.

5.101As part of the assessment of the proposals the Council’s Landscape Architect
has reviewed the proposals within the context of the potential impact upon the
existing trees. As has been summarised earlier in this report they have
objected to the proposals on the grounds that the proposals would result in the
loss of and pose significant harm to Category A and B trees which make a
positive contribution to the amenity of the Conservation Area.

5.1021In response to these objections the applicant and their arboriculturist have
stated that, with regard to T26, they do not consider that the development is
contrary to BS 5837: Trees in Relation to Design, Demolition and
Construction. They go on to state that section 7.5.4 of the standard states:
‘Slabs for larger structures (e.g dwellings) should be constructed with a
ventilated air space between the underside of the slab and the existing soil
surface (to enable gas exchange and venting through the soil surface). In such
cases, a specialist irrigation system should also be employed (e.g roof run-off
redirected under the slab). The design of the foundation slab should take
account of any effect on the load bearing properties of underlying soil from the
re-directed roof run-off’.

5.103They go on to state that: ‘As a result of the percentage of infringement within
the RPA, the proposed scheme should aim to avoid significant changes to the
current soil surface, and conditions within the RPA of T26 and therefore,
alternative methods of foundations should be considered from the traditional
strip foundations. An arboricultural method statement should be provided
based upon engineers details for this area. Pile and beam foundations (or
similar subject to engineering recommendations) would be recommended
within the RPAs of retained trees to minimise root loss and to retain

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 146

acceptable conditions for continued tree health and growth’. The scheme can
be designed to avoid traditional foundation methods to preserve current soil
levels and to maintain gaseous exchange and continued water penetration into
the RPA of T26, whilst minimising root loss during the construction phase. This
will be subject to engineers design’.

5.104With regard to the proposed tree losses that applicant notes: ‘Whilst five of the
trees to be lost are Category B trees (i.e with expected life of 20+ years) the
trees themselves are small (9,6,4 and 3m in height) and therefore suitable
replacements will quickly establish to mitigate their loss. The two low quality
‘C’ trees to be lost are also small and replacements will be planned for.’

5.105The starting point would be to retain as many as possible and where
necessary reduce the risk to trees posed by development as far as
practicable. Policy B1 of the NHP states where proposals would affect existing
trees any harm should be clearly justified in terms of public gain against the
value of the trees. It goes on to state that measures should be included which
mitigate such harm, including tree planting. Where tree planting is used to
mitigate unavoidable and justifiable harm, due regard will be had for the site
specific value of any tree, the most appropriate location for tree planting to
enhance the character of the precinct. However it should also be
acknowledged that developable space within the Minster Precinct is a finite
resource. As has been set out above the applicant is confident that
appropriate technical solutions exist which could allow the development to
take place whilst at the same time providing protection to the trees to be
retained. In addition to this replacement and compensatory landscaping and
planting is proposed.

5.106With regard to the proposed landscaping. It is considered that the landscaping
proposals would likely be an enhancement upon the existing situation at the
site. At present the landscaping comprises of the various individual and groups
of trees located at various points around the site. However beyond this the
landscaping is relatively limited to lawned areas. The proposed landscaping
scheme is more varied with different parts of the site being given different
treatments. The intention with the landscaping is to provide a more species
rich environment.

5.107In the event of planning permission being granted it would be recommended to
condition a full landscaping scheme with provision for replacements should
any planting or landscaping die, become diseased or lost; the condition will

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 147

also require, as a minimum the 8 trees lost should be replaced. This should
provide an appropriate period of time for the landscaping to properly establish
itself. With regard to the retained trees on the site it would be recommended to
condition that the development that all trees to be retained on site are afforded
protection in accordance with the recommendations set out within the
submitted Arboricultural Impact Assessment and Arboricultural Survey to this
end conditioning the submission of an arboricultural method statement, to
include details of the foundation design of the breakout pavilion would be
necessary.

Sustainable Design and Construction

5.108Policies CC1 and CC2 of the DLP 2018 both seek to promote sustainable
design and construction in new development and promote low carbon energy
generation. The overarching aim of both policies is to promote carbon
reduction. Sustainability is also a key strand of the adopted Minster NHP with
various policies seeking to minimise waste and pollution and reducing the
carbon footprint of the estate. The applicant is also seeking to achieve Eco
Gold Church Status by 2025.

5.109The proposed development will incorporate a number of measures to reduce
its overall carbon footprint. The fact that some of the existing building of the
Deanery garages is to be reused will make a contribution to reducing the
carbon consumption and generation of the site. It is indicated within the
submitted details that the provision of heating and hot water at the premises
would be via Air Source Heat Pump. Other measures will include the provision
of Solar PV Panels on the roof of the proposed scaffold store.

5.110The provision of renewable and low carbon technologies in sensitive heritage
locations is a balancing act. A balance always needs to be struck between
making good use of such technologies whilst also ensuring heritage assets or
historic fabric are suitably sustained. The applicant is keen to make sure
provision within their projects across the Precinct. In this particular case as a
significant proportion of the proposed development is new build it is arguably
easier to incorporate such provision — rather than, as is often the case
elsewhere, having to retrofit solutions to existing situations.

5.111The current requirements set out within Policies CC1 and CC2 have been
surpassed by the latest requirements imposed by Building Regulations. As
such Building Regulations would require a higher level of carbon reduction

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 148
than policies CC1 and CC2. Therefore in this case rather than imposing a
condition to secure the provisions of CC1 and CC2 a higher standard should
be achieved under the Building Regulation regime.
Public Benefits
5.112In support of the application the applicant has submitted a case setting out
what they believe to be the public benefits of the scheme. These are set out in

the following paragraphs.

A Heritage Asset of International Importance

5.113York Minster and its precinct is of international importance housing the Grade |
Listed Minster, a collection of Grade Il and Grade II* Listed properties and one
of a number of Scheduled Ancient Monuments in the immediate vicinity. The
Minster acts as a major tourist attraction in the North of England, but more
importantly is a house of prayer, it is a sensitive and highly complicated area
of the city for which its future must be planned carefully.

Safequarding the Minster in the context of declining Craft Skills

5.1141t costs over £22,000 a day to care for and operate York Minster. The Minster
receives no ongoing Government funding or central Church of England
financial support towards the care of the fabric and relies entirely on the
generosity of our community, paying visitors and funding bodies to sustain its
care and operations. Much of the craftsmanship is undertaken in the shadow
of the Minster, by the Minster craftspeople.

5.115The Chapter of York has a vision to establish the Precinct as an internationally
recognised Centre of Excellence for heritage craft skills focused around a
campus facility. This is a critical programme of reimagining and cementing the
long term sustainability of the craft skills which must endure to safeguard the
care of York Minster for the next century.

5.116Reflecting the current context of declining craft skills, only 10 cathedrals of the
42 Anglican Cathedrals in England continue to have their own dedicated
craftspeople. Nearly all of these ten have stoneyards based in very close
proximity to the cathedral itself. These ten cathedrals form the foundation of
the Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship which have joined together to create a

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 149

new generation of craftspeople capable of caring for the nations cathedrals
and heritage buildings.

5.117Some, like York, have a full range of trades, whereas others are formed of
stonemasons, glaziers, joiners, working closely with plumbers and electricians.
The common factor of all yards is that exist solely because of the cathedral.

5.118The loss of skills through retirement is something the Chapter of York are
keenly aware of with some of their longest serving members of staff
approaching the end of their working careers. Reports from sector led
organisations such as Historic England have also highlighted consistent gaps
in the supply of craftspeople with a specific background in historic building
conservation.

5.119In tandem it is important to consider the future and respond to innovation. The
return of historic techniques such as hot lime mortar and the introduction of
modern processes and working practices such as digital technology, data
scanning and Computer Aided Design have been introduced. Apprentices
already receive the very best heritage training but have little exposure to the
use of new technologies such as CAD and modern saw technology.
Embracing these tools will assist in attracting more apprentices to this
important national heritage.

Meeting Wider Neighbourhood Plan Objectives

5.120Aside from safeguarding the restoration of the Minster there are significant
other public benefits. Including; creating a world class visitor experience to
ensure vital visitor income is sustained. Creating a welcoming precinct.
Supporting the day to day life of the in house Minster functions.

5.1211t is the applicant’s view that the proposals offer a once in a generation
opportunity to create a Centre of Excellence for the Minster which will not only
provide a considerable range of meaningful benefits locally but also nationally
and internationally. The new facilities would solidify York Minster as an
international centre for heritage excellence. Maintaining and enhancing the
facilities also offers opportunities for specialist training which will address the
skills shortage in a unique heritage setting whilst also securing the
conservation of the Minster and its Precinct in the long term.

Economic Benefits

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 150

5.122The economic benefits of the proposals are far reaching, building upon direct
benefits to the Minster and the City of York to solidify York Minster as an
international centre for Heritage Excellence. This would be via the creation of
partnerships with international institutions including Trondheim, Milan, Cologne
and Washington Cathedrals and Singapore University. These will put York on
the national and international stage, acting as a focus for craft skills and
investment. Partnerships are fundamental to this project and we (the
applicant) have already shown that institutions from across the world are
eager to be part of this project for the benefit of heritage sectors
internationally. The potential connections the city will make through this project
are wide ranging. The University of York for example see this as the beginning
of a new heritage sector in the City.

5.123Indirect economic benefits brought about through tourism and the enhanced
interaction between the public and the stonemasons building on the success
of the Masons Lodge on Queens Path. The Minster has a strong track record
of engaging visitors to the process of conservation and sustainable heritage.

5.124The project will create additional commercial opportunities allowing work to be
done for other heritage bodies across the Country in the future.

5.125Digital technology sits at the heart of the project. The Minster will embrace
digital technology as a tool to support the work they do and to train their
apprentices. Work with University of York on a range of digital projects has
already started. The statue of HM The Queen was created using the
technology that will be invested in.

5.126 Ensuring dedicated Minster craftspeople, as well as a training facility for
training the Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship. This will assist with addressing
the national heritage skills shortage — upskilling workers and creating job
opportunities across the heritage skills spectrum.

5.127The provision of state of the art facilities for the stonemasons to allow work to
be better showcased to potential benefactors to encourage donations for the
upkeep of the Minster.

5.128The sustainable reuse of the existing built form will halt any areas of decline

and provide an enduring future which will reduce the need for upkeep allowing
funds to spent on other much needed projects elsewhere in the Precinct.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 151

Social Benefits

5.129Creating The Centre for Excellence for Heritage Craft Skills, leading the way
on an international stage for future partnerships and knowledge sharing
through Research and Development.

5.130 The creation of buildings that represent the upmost design excellence,
reinforcing the precinct’s distinctive character utilising innovative design
through the use of flexible adaptable buildings; and the provision of dedicated
bed spaces for national and international students.

5.131Building upon the success of the York Minster being the first cathedral to have
a Neighbourhood Plan, leading the way in transforming policy and practice in
delivering managed change for a heritage asset. Taking the lead from the
past, where York Mister has had a dedicated works department since the 11"
Century.

5.1320pening up the Minster’s activities to the wider city — the proposals will
increase public access to the work of the stonemasons and glaziers, by subtly
inviting views into the workshops and encouraging public engagement/interest
in the craft. This will enhance the public’s understanding of stonemasonry as a
craft and the key building material of the Minster and its Precinct.

5.133Supporting the Minster’'s ambition to establish the whole of the Precinct as a
national and international centre of excellence for heritage craft skills and
heritage estate management focused around a campus facility in line with
Neighbourhood Plan Objectives.

Environmental Benefits

5.134Conserves and enhances the internationally acclaimed historic and cultural
heritage of York Minster, its Precinct and the Neighbourhood Plan Area. It will
also provide a benchmark for new development striving to achieve Eco Gold
Church Status by taking a lead on driving the new zero agenda in a restrictive
heritage environment.

5.135Creates a truly sustainable development, through the provision of
accommodation on site for apprentices in the heart of the city. Environmental
sustainability sits at the heart of how the Minster is cared for. Meaningful reuse
of materials from the Deanery garages and workshops and the introduction of
solar panels contribute considerably to the sustainability of the scheme —
aligning with endeavours to mitigate the climate crisis.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 152

5.136The reuse of a previously underutilised area within the Minster Precinct
enables these facilities to be places in areas of relatively lower significance —
compared with the remainder of the highly sensitive precinct.

Planning Balance

5.137As has been set out in the earlier sections of this report the application site is
sensitive, with a number of heritage assets within the vicinity. Whilst there
have been objections raised a number of these can be addressed or mitigated
via planning conditions as set out in earlier sections. One matter that is agreed
between the applicant and technical consultees is that the proposals will result
in less than substantial harm being caused to the character, setting and
significance, of various designated heritage assets existing within the
immediate vicinity of the site and the wider Minster Precinct; although the level
of less than substantial harm is viewed differently by different parties.

5.138The significance of the Minster and its Precinct to the City of York cannot be
underestimated. The Minster itself is one of, if not the most significant building
in the city. Its presence over the city centre can be experienced in close
guarters but it is also a prominent feature within the views and approaches to
the city. The City Walls are also a defining feature of the city. The overarching
objective has to be to safeguard these assets. It is these assets that form part
of city’s identity. It is the work of the various craftspeople employed by the
applicant that has maintained the Minster and its precinct to date. The
proposals within this application would put in place the means to facilitate,
grow and sustain this and the associated specialist skills that are required.
That is not to diminish the acknowledged harms that the proposals would have
in terms of impact upon designated heritage assets. However, it is considered
that these harms would in practice be localised and limited to the area of the
precinct within which development is proposed.

5.139Existing views from the City Walls would be altered through the introduction of
the new built form on the site. However, as is set out within the adopted
Minster NHP development was intended to occur here, hence the designation
and inclusion of the site within Policy PA4. Furthermore, whilst the existing
views would be altered, they would not be blocked. The proposed
development would not be taller than the existing. The Minster would still
dominate views from this area of the City Walls and the City Walls would not
be totally obscured by the development.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 153

5.140In considering the Minster Precinct as a whole and the Neighbourhood Plan
Area, one characteristic is that space is a finite resource. The southern side of
the Minster is more densely developed and is the focus for many visitors. In
contrast the Northern side is less densely developed however on the Northern
side much of the open space extends right up to the Minster itself. In this
context it is therefore difficult to conclude that there is a more suitable or
favourable location for the development. The proposals would allow for the
skills and work of the craftspeople to be retained within the Precinct that they
are tasked with caring for — a feature that has existed for centuries and which
itself is a significant characteristic of the overall character and setting of the
Precinct. It is also considered likely that any alternative location to the northern
side of the Minster would have a far greater impact in terms of impact upon or
loss of heritage assets — as it would likely result in development occurring
closer to buildings of higher significance such as the Minster or the Minster
Library.

5.141The proposals within this application and the wider concept of the Centre of
Excellence being promoted by the applicant represent a new way of thinking
for the applicant and they are seeking to take a proactive approach to the
issue of declining skills in this sector. The benefits of this appear clear and
well-made. They will assist with securing the long-term future of the Minster
and the wider precinct. There is also the opportunity to broaden expertise in
this field not just within the City but further afield. It could be argued that such
outcomes would enhance the Precinct through increasing its standing within
the field of Heritage and Craft Skills.

5.142Whilst the proposals do not fully comply with some of the heritage polices
within the 2018 DLP; there are other substantial material considerations that
are relevant in the context of the NPPF and the Minster NHP. The NPPF is
clear that in cases where less than substantial harm is considered to occur the
public benefits of that harm must be considered with the public benefits
weighed against the harms. Furthermore the proposals would deliver one of
the key aspirations set out within the adopted Minster NHP.

5.143lt is considered that on balance the proposals would bring about greater,
longer term public benefits not only to the Precinct and the buildings within it
but also the city and even other significant historic institutions not only in the
UK but also internationally. Having given considerable importance and weight
to the statutory duties in sections 66 and 72 of the 1990 Act, it is considered

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 154

that on balance these public benefits outweigh the harms that would be
caused.

6.0. CONCLUSION

6.1. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
planning decisions to be made in accordance with development plan. The Minster
NHP forms part of the statutory development plan for the City of York; and as is set
out above the proposed development is considered to accord with the provisions of
the Minster NHP. Regard is had to the advice within paragraph 199 of the NPPF that
when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be) and to the legislative requirements to give
considerable importance and weight to the harm to listed buildings and conservation
area. The public benefits are summarised in the earlier sections of this report above.
The proposed development will give rise to varying degrees of harm to various
designated heritage assets and the Conservation Area. It is on balance, considered
that these less than substantial harms would be outweighed by the public benefits
the proposals would bring about even when giving great weight to the conservation
of these assets. The proposals would deliver a very clear objective of the Minster
Neighbourhood Plan. The proposals would also facilitate the delivery of the Centre
of Excellence for Heritage and Craft Skills.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIME2 Development start within three years

2  The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Existing Site Location Plan - Drawing No. 547-Q-000

Tree Survey and Constraints - Drawing No. BA11441TS Rev A
Arboricultural Impact Assessment - Drawing No. BA11441AIA Rev A
Proposed Breakout Pavilion and scaffold store - Drawing No. 547 Q-123
Proposed North West and South East Site Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-122
Proposed North West and South East Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-121
Proposed South West and North East Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-120
Proposed Section E - Drawing No. 547 Q-112

Proposed Section C and D - Drawing No. 547 Q-111

Proposed Section A and B - Drawing No. 547 Q-110

Proposed Ground Floor Demolition - Drawing No. 547 Q-105

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 155

Proposed Roof Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-103
Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-102
Proposed Site Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-101

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

3 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings or
in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used, including the PV roof covering shall be submitted to and
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to their use in the
development. The development shall be carried out using the approved materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if sample
materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in
your approval of details application when the materials will be available for inspection
and where they are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance

4  All demolition and construction works and ancillary operations, including
deliveries to and dispatch from the site shall be confined to the following hours:
Monday to Friday 0800 to 1800 hours

Saturday 0900 to 1300 hours

Not at all on Sundays and Bank Holidays

Reason: To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents

5  Prior to development, an investigation and risk assessment (in addition to any
assessment provided with the planning application) must be undertaken to assess the
nature and extent of any land contamination. The investigation and risk assessment
must be undertaken by competent persons and a written report of the findings must
be produced. The written report is subject to the approval in writing of the Local
Planning Authority. The report of the findings must include:

(i) a survey of the extent, scale and nature of contamination (including ground
gases where appropriate);

(i)  an assessment of the potential risks to:

- human health,

- property (existing or proposed) including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland
and service lines and pipes,

- adjoining land,

- groundwaters and surface waters,

- ecological systems,

- archaeological sites and ancient monuments;

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 156

(i) an appraisal of remedial options, and proposal of the preferred option(s).
This must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's
"Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11’

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

6  Prior to development, a detailed remediation scheme to bring the site to a
condition suitable for the intended use (by removing unacceptable risks to human
health, buildings and other property and the natural and historical environment) must
be prepared and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme
must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives and
remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures. The
scheme must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A
of the Environmental Protection Act 1990 in relation to the intended use of the land
after remediation.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

7  Prior to first occupation or use, the approved remediation scheme must be
carried out in accordance with its terms and a verification report that demonstrates
the effectiveness of the remediation carried out must be produced and is subject to
the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems.

8 Inthe event that unexpected contamination is found at any time when carrying
out the approved development, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken and
where remediation is necessary a remediation scheme must be prepared, which is
subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority. Following completion
of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme a verification report must
be prepared, which is subject to the approval in writing of the Local Planning Authority.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 157

Reason: To ensure that risks from land contamination to the future users of the land
and neighbouring land are minimised, together with those to controlled waters,
property and ecological systems, and to ensure that the development can be carried
out safely without unacceptable risks to workers, neighbours and other offsite
receptors.

9 Notwithstanding any proposed materials specified on the approved drawings or
in the application form submitted with the application, samples of the external
materials to be used shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority prior to their use in the development. The development shall be
carried out using the approved materials.

Note: Because of limited storage space at our offices it would be appreciated if sample
materials could be made available for inspection at the site. Please make it clear in
your approval of details application when the materials will be available for inspection
and where they are located.

Reason: So as to achieve a visually cohesive appearance

10 Notwithstanding what is shown on the approved plans, and prior to the
development coming into first use, details of the design for hard and soft landscaping
including surfacing materials within the site shall be submitted to and approved in
writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in
accordance with the approved details unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the finished
appearance of the development and to safeguard the character and appearance of
the York Central Historic Core Conservation Area and to comply with paragraph 127
of the National Planning Policy Framework as well as Policy D1 and D4 of the City of
York Publication Draft Local Plan (2018).

11 Prior to the development hereby coming into first use a detailed landscaping
scheme which shall illustrate the number, species, height and position of trees and
shrubs shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority,
a minimum of 8.no replacement trees will be proposed to compensate for those
removed as part of this development. The approved scheme shall be implemented no
later than the first planting season after completion of the development. Any trees or
plants which die, are removed or become seriously damaged or diseased shall be
replaced in the next planting season with others of a similar size and species, unless
alternatives are agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: So that the Local Planning Authority may be satisfied with the variety,

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 158

suitability and disposition of species within the site in the interests of the character
and appearance of the conservation area and visual amenity.

12 Before the commencement of development a finalised and detailed
Arboricultural Method Statement and scheme of arboricultural supervision regarding
protection measures for existing trees within and adjacent to the application site
shown to be retained on the approved drawings, shall be submitted to and approved
in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Amongst other information, this statement
shall include details and locations of protective fencing, ground protection, a schedule
of tree works if applicable, site rules and prohibitions, phasing of protection measures,
site access during demolition/construction, types of construction machinery/vehicles
to be used (including delivery and collection lorries and arrangements for loading/off-
loading), specialist construction techniques where applicable, parking arrangements
for site vehicles, locations for stored materials, and means of moving materials around
the site, locations and means of installing utilities, location of site compound. The
document shall also include methodology and construction details and existing and
proposed levels where a change in surface material where development is proposed
within the root protection area of existing trees. A copy of the document as approved
will be available for reference and inspection on site at all times.

Reason: To ensure every effort and reasonable duty of care is exercised during the
development process in the interests of protecting the existing trees shown to be
retained which are considered to make a significant contribution to the public amenity
and/or the amenity and setting of the development.

13 A programme of post-determination archaeological mitigation, specifically an
archaeological watching brief is required on this site. The archaeological scheme
comprises 3 stages of work. Each stage shall be completed and shall be agreed by
the Local Planning Authority before it can be approved.

A) No site investigation, demolition below foundation slab or new development shall
commence until a written scheme of investigation for a watching brief (WSI) has been
submitted to and approved by the local planning authority in writing. For land that is
included within the WSI, no development shall take place other than in accordance
with the agreed WSI. The WSI should conform to standards set by LPA and the
Chartered Institute for Archaeologists.

B) The site investigation and post-investigation assessment shall be completed in
accordance with the programme set out in the Written Scheme of Investigation
approved under condition (A) and the provision made for analysis, publication and
dissemination of results and archive deposition will be secured. This part of the
condition shall not be discharged until these elements have been fulfilled in
accordance with the programme set out in the WSI.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 159

C) A copy of a report (and evidence of publication if required) shall be deposited with
City of York Historic Environment Record to allow public dissemination of results
within 3 months of completion or such other period as may be agreed in writing with
the Local Planning Authority. This condition is imposed in accordance with Section 16
of NPPF.

Reason: The site lies within an Area of Archaeological Importance and the
development may affect important archaeological deposits which must be recorded
prior to destruction.

14 A biodiversity enhancement plan/drawing for the Deanery shall be submitted to,
and be approved in writing by, the local planning authority prior to the commencement
of works. The plan should include, but not be limited to, two roosting boxes for bats,
two boxes for nesting birds and the inclusion of night scented flowers within the
planting scheme. The approved details shall be implemented before the building is
brought into first use.

Reason: To take account of and enhance the biodiversity and wildlife interest of the
area, and to be in accordance with Paragraph 174 d) of the NPPF (2021) to contribute
to and enhance the natural and local environment by minimising impacts on and
providing net gains for biodiversity, including establishing coherent ecological
networks that are more resilient to current and future pressures.

15 Prior to the installation of any new external lighting within the Deanery, a 'lighting
design plan' shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning
authority.

The plan shall:

Demonstrate that required external lighting has been selected in-line with current
guidance - Bat Conservation Trust (2018) Bats and artificial lighting in the UK.
https://cdn.bats.org.uk/pdf/Resources/ilp-guidance-note-8-bats-and-artificiallighting-
compressed.pdf?mtime=20181113114229&focal=none

Demonstrate how and where external lighting will be installed (through the provision
of appropriate lighting contour plans and technical specifications), clearly
demonstrated where light spill will occur.

Reason: To protect the habitats of European Protected Species where there might be
changes on site in accordance with Section 15 of the National Planning Policy
Framework.

16 No vegetation removal, construction or demolition works shall take place

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 160

between 1st March and 31st August inclusive, unless a competent ecologist has
undertaken a careful, detailed check of vegetation and structures for active birds'
nests immediately before the works and provided written confirmation that no birds
will be harmed and/or that there are appropriate measures in place to protect nesting
bird interest on site. Any such written confirmation should be submitted to the local
planning authority.

Reason: To ensure that breeding birds are protected from harm during construction.
All British birds, their nests and eggs (with certain limited exceptions) are protected
by Section 1 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as amended.

17 The apprentice accommodation hereby approved shall be occupied only as
apprentice housing accommodation. No person other than an apprentice registered
with, and engaged in, a course of full time further or higher education or a delegate
registered with and attending a part time educational course or conference within the
City of York administrative boundary shall occupy the residential accommodation at
any time.

The owner, or site operator shall keep an up to date register of the name of each
person in occupation of the accommodation together with course(s) or conference(s)
attended. The register shall be available for inspection by the local planning authority
on demand at all reasonable times.

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and in order to control the future occupancy of
the development, as otherwise the development would involve other requirements in
order to be NPPF compliant.

18 Details of all machinery, plant and equipment to be installed in or located on the
premises, which is audible outside of the premises, shall be submitted to the local
planning authority for approval. These details shall include average sound levels
(LAeq), octave band noise levels and any proposed noise mitigation measures. The
approved machinery, plant or equipment and any approved noise mitigation measures
shall be fully implemented and operational before the proposed use first opens and
shall be appropriately maintained thereafter.

Note: The combined rating level of any building service noise associated with plant or
equipment at the site should not exceed the representative LA90 1 hour during the
hours of 07:00 to 23:00 or representative LA90 15 minutes during the hours of 23:00
to 07:00 at 1 metre from the nearest noise sensitive facades when assessed in
accordance with BS4142: 2014, inclusive of any acoustic feature corrections
associated with tonal, impulsive, distinctive or intermittent characteristics.

Reason: To protect the amenity of nearby properties and the environmental qualities

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 161

of the area.

19 No development shall take place until a detailed scheme of noise insulation
measures for protecting the approved residential accommodation from externally
generated noise has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning
Authority. Upon completion of the insulation scheme works no part of the development
shall be occupied until a noise report demonstrating compliance with the approved
noise insulation scheme has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority.

INFORMATIVE: The building envelope of all residential accommodation shall be
constructed so as to achieve internal noise levels in habitable rooms of no greater
than 35 dB LAeq (16 hour) during the day (07:00-23:00 hrs) and 30 dB LAeq (8 hour)
and LAFMax level during the night (23:00-07:00 hours) should not exceed 45dB(A)
on more than 10 occasions in any night time period in bedrooms and should not
regularly exceed 55dB(A). These noise levels shall be observed with all windows open
in the habitable rooms or if necessary windows closed and other means of ventilation
provided.

Reason: To protect the amenity of people living in the new property from externally
generated noise and in accordance with the National Planning Policy Framework.

20 Prior to the development commencing details of the cycle parking areas with
parking provision for 14.no cycles, including means of enclosure, shall be submitted
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The building shall not be
occupied until the cycle parking areas and means of enclosure have been provided
within the site in accordance with such approved details, and these areas shall not be
used for any purpose other than the parking of cycles.

Reason: To promote use of cycles thereby reducing congestion on the adjacent roads
and in the interests of the amenity of neighbours.

21  The building shall not be occupied until the areas shown on the approved plans
for parking and manoeuvring of vehicles (and cycles, if shown) have been constructed
and laid out in accordance with the approved plans, and thereafter such areas shall
be retained solely for such purposes.

Reason: In the interests of highway safety.

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e



Page 162

8.0 INFORMATIVES:
Notes to Applicant

1. The applicant is reminded that, under the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981, as
amended (section 1), it is an offence to remove, damage or destroy the nest of any
wild bird while that nest is in use or being built. Planning consent for a development
does not provide a defence against prosecution under this act. Suitable habitat is likely
to contain nesting birds between 1st March and 31st August inclusive. As such habitat
IS present on the application site and is to be assumed to contain nesting birds
between the above dates, unless a recent survey has been undertaken by a
competent ecologist to assess the nesting bird activity on site during this period and
has shown it is absolutely certain that nesting birds are not present.

2. Hedgehogs: To ensure hedgehogs can make use of the gardens within the
proposed development the applicant is advised to consider using permeable fencing
or leaving occasional gaps suitable to allow passage of hedgehogs. Any potential
hibernation sites including log piles should be removed outside the hibernation period
(which is between November and March inclusive) in order to avoid killing or injuring
hedgehog. Hedgehogs are of priority conservation concern and are a Species of
Principal Importance under section 41 of the NERC Act (2006). An important factor in
their recent population decline is that fencing and walls are becoming more secure,
reducing their movements and the amount of land available to them. Small gaps of
approximately 13x13cm can be left at the base of fencing to allow hedgehogs to pass
through. Habitat enhancement for hedgehogs can easily be incorporated into
developments, for example through provision of purpose-built hedgehog shelters or
log piles. https://www.britishhedgehogs.org.uk/wp-
content/uploads/2019/05/developers-1.pdf

3. STATEMENT OF THE COUNCIL'S POSITIVE AND PROACTIVE APPROACH

In considering the application, The Local Planning Authority has implemented the
requirements set out within the National Planning Policy Framework (paragraph 38)
and having taken account of all relevant national guidance and local policies,
considers the proposal to be satisfactory. For this reason, no amendments were
sought during the processing of the application, and it was not necessary to work with
the applicant/agent in order to achieve a positive outcome.

Contact details:

Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 22/00803/FUL Item No: 4e


https://www.britishhedgehogs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/developers-1.pdf
https://www.britishhedgehogs.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/developers-1.pdf

Page 163

The Deanery, Minster Yard, YOI 7JQ
22/00803/FUL

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

y Cu Dean's Park
EBVRACVM
y ROMAN LEGIONARY FORTRESS

' 15.2m

= |

Scale: 1:1215
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 19 August 2022

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



“—J"'; CITY OF

YORK

COUNCIL

Planning Committee B

22/00803/FUL and 22/00804/LBC
The Deanery Minster Yard

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

GoT abed



Site Location
Plan

3

B
y I 4
-
‘fd& -
g N &
"J
m i ki
Bl n
e
n
SN
mutery w P y peter's cothcr
mvishons:!
A D804 S FOR FLANNING

»
m ] i
-
- f b A

SR ft@mlin i

o ¢ york mnsier S1oneynd redevsiopment - quad

@ sonta 11758 @83
Torkin L Lid, 5 'Wimingtn Squan, London WC1X0ES | 0207837 6255 | wwaw tonkdrilu oo ulk

99T abed



Google ‘Globe View’ Image

1
-

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022




Site plan

il L, ey

e, nd st

| s ey

revisiona:
A DR T2 FOR PLANNNG

San Beundury

mo: BATG03
w8 propossd root plan

tonkin Iiw

job @ yorkminster soneyard redevelopmen ! - quad

scals : 1200 @ A3

Lowaton WCAX 025 | 0G0 TEST 6255 |

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

89T abed



Existing site plan
And demolition
plan

T —
sk gt

sincual neormandaicn or rmoval
ﬂl.h-uﬂllr s

sl i o o ol g wills
0 v, e o el gt
et e

T bl rtd i v | v
and ground s o medch
- plnmd nk

el s wdr barr v
o | e oy

shruds plnd g b d

il v o i g

s s o
i e e
s i il s j-
dnhialy inwsnd T —

: [

i —4
ey iy chins o s ot pla s - e

st
12 bt et PR

| b
| - o | e
| e IO
iy J J N A
—— =TT
I
h

dosrveny vl ek st sl i i
T rdeeta| or b e Eh

fort !

[
revisions: BTG
R 08,04 2022 FOR L AMNING :m -l'_"_.___ ﬁ@[ﬁ]kﬂ[ﬁ] [mUJ]
&~ o ¢ o minster sioneyard redevelopment - quad
o1 2 10m scals 1 1200 @ A3
Torkin Lis Lad, 5 Wimingon Sgeare, London WGTX 055 | 0207837 6255 |

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022 5

69T obed




Proposed
Ground floor plan

o v | bt .y
ardn and s

b sy

Barnam &

——Tauam -

rubasitur harsing pund :

revisions
A D804 2002 FOR PLANNING

oo tenkin [iu

5 proposed gmund oo plan
S o quaa
o1z 10m ® soals : 1200 8 A3
— LTI 11 T ki Lis Lsd, 5 Wikmington Sqeara London WS 055 | 0G0 TE37 5255 | weew toekinficosk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

0.7 abed



Proposed Roof plan

o
e and s

] b

o
Earp

raaster bty o

ravisions:
A D804 2002 FOR PLANMING n Bourdary

® 1200 @A3
Tonkin Lis Ld, 5 Willsingion Sgaara, London WC1X 0S5 | 060 TEST 6256 |

e tonldin 1iu

b yorkcmingter stoneyard redevelopment - quad

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

T.T obed



Proposed SW and
NE elevations

DEANERY GARDEN PRIVATE ROAD @
@

proposed south west elevation
H
~
N

e
SO
T s ou s T T et e 552
( | E =
PO S— e e o™
A ¥\ Py - :.
propased north east slevation
Fﬂn_ 01 2 1om s iemen e SOTECHND (0
— LI L | S T

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022 8



Proposed
NW and SE
elevations

caywan

proposed south east elevation

o o pubc sconm)

o wasensn ey ucon st

DEANERY CAR PARK

proposed north west elevation

[ Ru—

s e LTI [0

]

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

¢/ T obed



Proposed
Cross-
Sections

. L - [TITTT] i J %

11| e e o m [[TTTTT Q PL__

PPPPPPP GARDEN

:mm:t ’ RS st - - N
EREETERPT ] [ [T [T [ T .0
= = == :—E—\/‘TE ot Mﬁ {'l
1] 0 B e 1 1 e B i [ [ H [T
PRIVATE GARDEN
- m—— 6 % 3 1om e ftonlkin liu

b yosk minstersonoyasd mdemiopment quad
JRR——.

Toekin s L, Wimegion S, London WCIX GES 1 020 TEST625 1 weiektscosk

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022 10

/T abed



Proposed
Cross-sections

proposed section ¢

proposed section d

Nz ror LG

e o~
0 1 2 1om e pepmatsnton st tonkin iy
o
— ekl
o o | i

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

G/ T obed



Proposed Breakout

Pavilion and Scaffold
Store

proposed scatfold store

01 2 1om et nssen COTUITD [0
2 e Ty - =
B e R R i

Planning Committee B Meeting - 1 September 2022

12

9/ T abed



Page 177 Agenda Item 4f

COMMITTEE REPORT

Date: 1 September 2022 Ward: Guildhall

Team: East Area Parish: Guildhall Planning Panel

Reference: 22/00804/LBC

Application at: The Deanery Minster Yard York YO1 7JQ

For: Internal and external alterations to include conversion of existing

garages and erection of new block to create apprentice’s
accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary storage after
demolition of greenhouse, potting shed and garden structures

By: Mr Alexander McCallion
Application Type: Listed Building Consent
Target Date: 7 June 2022

Recommendation: Approve

1.0 PROPOSAL

1.1. Listed Building Consent is sought for the conversion of the existing Deanery
Garages and the erection of a new single storey building to form apprentice
accommodation, stone workshop and ancillary storage following the demolition of an
existing greenhouse, potting shed and garden structures.

1.2. The application site is located on land to the North East of the existing
Deanery and includes land to the rear of No’'s 1 and 2 Minster Court. Access to the
site is via the existing private road known as Minster Yard joining the public highway
at the junction of College Green and Chapter House Street. The application site is
located within the designated York Minster Cathedral Precinct Scheduled
Monument. The site is within the Central Historic Core Conservation Area and a
number of the buildings within the immediate vicinity are listed buildings of varying
grades. The Deanery itself is Grade Il Listed with the existing garages being
considered curtilage listed. The City Walls are located immediately to the rear of the
application site.

1.3. The proposals consist of three component elements. A proposed oblong
scaffold and garden store to be located along the north west flank of the site. this
structure will occupy a footprint of approximately 130m2. The structure will stand to
approximately 2.8m in height and consist of a series of open bays within which
scaffold can be stored. Behind these open bays will be an internal store area. The

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 178

roof is to incorporate solar pv panels which will stand at an angle from the roof
plane, standing approximately 50cm high.

1.4. The main structure within the proposal will sit centrally within the site and be
formed following the partial demolition of parts of the existing garage structure. The
retained elements of the garage will then be extended to form a broadly u-shaped
building arranged around a central courtyard area. This element will have a built
footprint of approximately 600m2. The building will utilise a predominately flat roof
standing 3.5m tall. This will increase to a maximum height of approximately 5.7m
created a by vaulted roof feature which will face North East toward the City Walls. A
range of uses are proposed within this building 6no. bedrooms each consisting of a
bed, desk space and toilet/shower facilities and outdoor terrace. A communal
kitchen living space. A stone workshop consisting of 15.no workstations. General
storage, an office space, welfare facilities and ancillary spaces such as bin store,
plant room and drying room. A further 4.no external mason’s workstations are to be
sited between the main building and the adjacent breakout pavilion.

1.5. The final built element of the scheme comprises of a detached single storey
breakout pavilion located to the South East of the main building; the two will be
linked via a covered walkway. The building will provide a breakout space and
welfare facilities. The structure will be flat roofed standing approximately 3m in
height. This building will cover approximately 60m?2.

1.6. Arelated Full planning application 22/00803/FUL for the proposals are
reported elsewhere on the agenda.

Relevant Planning History

1.7. Also of relevance are applications 22/00788/FUL and 22/00789/LBC which
relate to proposals at the Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate which is located
approximately 250m to the South East of The Deanery. These applications are of
relevance as they include proposals which, along with the proposals contained
within the applications relating to The Deanery form part of the Centre of Excellence
for Heritage Craft Skills and Estate Management concept that the Minster is
pursuing.

1.8. The Centre of Excellence is intended to begin addressing the long-standing

heritage skills shortage, which is not only felt by the Minster but also other

institutions across the country and globally. Whilst the Minsters stoneyard is already

internationally renowned, current facilities are constrained and inadequate for the

long term task of sustaining the skills required to conserve heritage assets. It is the

intention of the applicant to enhance their own in-house skills and capabilities to the
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 179

benefit of their own estate; but also, to introduce a commercial element which will
allow those skills to be traded within similar institutions globally.

1.9. A call-in request was received from the Ward Councillor, Cllr Craghill, citing
the importance of the proposals to the city and level of public interest.

2.0 POLICY CONTEXT

2.1. Planning law requires that applications for planning permission must be
determined in accordance with the development plan unless material considerations
indicate otherwise (section 38(6) Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004).

2.2. Section 16 of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act
1990 states that in considering whether to listed building consent for any works
special regard shall be given to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

2.3. The Statutory Development Plan for the City of York comprises the saved
policies and key diagram of the otherwise revoked Yorkshire and Humber Plan
Regional Spatial Strategy (2008) and any made Neighbourhood Plan.

2.4. Case law has made clear that a finding of harm to a conservation area or
listed building or its setting is a consideration which the decision-maker must give
considerable importance and weight when carrying out the balancing exercise to
give effect to its statutory duties under section 16 of the 1990 Act. There is a “strong
presumption” against the grant of listed building consent in such cases.

National Planning Policy Framework

2.5. The National Planning Policy Framework sets out the Government’s

overarching planning policies and at its heart is a presumption in favour of

sustainable development. For decision making this means; ‘approving development

proposals that accord with an up-to-date development without delay’; or where the

are no relevant development plan policies, or the policies which most important for

determining the application are out of date, granting permission unless:

- The application of policies in this framework that protect areas or assets of

particular importance provides clear reason for refusing the development
proposed; or

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 180

- Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in the NPPF taken
as a whole.

2.6. Paragraph 38 advises that Local Planning Authorities should approach
decisions on proposed development in a positive and creative way and work
proactively with applications to secure developments that will improve the economic,
social, and environmental conditions of the area. Decision-makers at every level
should seek to approve applications for sustainable development where possible.

2.7. Section 16 of the NPPF relates to conserving and enhancing the historic
environment. Paragraph 197 states that in determining applications local planning
authorities should take account of the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the
significance of heritage assets and putting them to viable use. The positive
contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to sustainable
communities and the desirability of new development making a positive contribution
to local character and distinctiveness.

2.8. Paragraph 200 goes on to state that any harm to, or loss of, the significance of
a designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development
within its setting), should require clear and convincing justification. Substantial harm
to or loss of grade Il Listed Buildings, or grade Il registered parks or gardens should
be exceptional. Assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments,
protected wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade |
and II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly
exceptional.

York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood Plan

2.9. The York Minster Precinct Neighbourhood was ‘made’ on 16" June 2022. The
Neighbourhood Plan now forms part of the statutory development plan for the City of
York. Applications must be determined in accordance with the development plan
unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Relevant policies within the
Neighbourhood Plan are:

C2 — Listed Building Consent
2.10. The Minster Neighbourhood Plan also includes a series of defined Project
Areas. These are areas within which a specified set of proposals or aspirations are

intended to be delivered. The application site in this case is located within Project

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 181

Area 4 — Own Use Properties. Policy PA4 requires that proposals should respond
positively to the historic character of the site, including:

- Setting of the City Walls

- Views from the City Walls to the Minster

- The linear land divisions

- The characteristics of the historic roofscape

- The ancillary ‘back of plot’ history and nature of the site.

2.11. Subsections A,B and C of Policy PA4 are also of relevance here. These
subsections relate to demarcated areas within Project Area 4 and set out the
aspirations of what development is intended to be delivered. Subsection A states:
‘Existing garages and rear garden space to be redeveloped to provide storage on the
ground floor and Mister staff housing on the first floor. Redevelopment to be no higher
than the existing ridge line, and its plan, massing, roofscape, materials and details to
respond positively to the character and appearance of the site and the setting of
heritage assets.’

2.12. Subsection B states: ‘A new workshop to house the Minster's masons will be
created as part of the investment in the Stoneyard to establish an international centre
of excellence for heritage skills across the Precinct. The building is to be lightweight,
single storey construction, with green living roof and is to be sensitively designed in
relation to the character of the retained gardens.

2.13. Subsection C states: ‘The display of part of the Minster's lapidarium with
examples of historic stone being able to be viewed from the City Walls.

PUBLICATION DRAFT LOCAL PLAN (DLP 2018)

2.14. The DLP was submitted for examination on 25" May 2018. Phase 1 of the
hearings into the examination of the Local Plan took place in December 2019.
Phase 2 of the hearings concluded in May 2022. Phase 3 of the hearings took
place in July 2022 and Phase 4 is currently scheduled for September 2022. In
accordance with paragraph 48 of the NPPF the Draft Plan policies can be afforded
weight according to:

-The stage of preparation of the emerging plan (the more advanced the preparation
the greater the weight that may be given);

- The extent to which there are unresolved objections to relevant policies (the less
significant the unresolved objections, the greater the weight that may be given); and

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 182

-The degree of consistency of the relevant policies in the emerging plan to the
policies in the previous NPPF published in March 2012. (N.B: Under transitional
arrangements plans submitted for examination before 24 January 2019 will be
assessed against the 2012 NPPF).

2.15. Key relevant DLP 2018 policies are:
D5 — Listed Buildings
DRAFT LOCAL PLAN 2005

2.16. The City of York Draft Local Plan incorporating the Fourth Set of Changes
Development Control Local Plan (April 2005) was approved for Development
Management purposes. The 2005 plan does not form part of the statutory
development plan for the purposes of S38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004. Its policies are however considered capable of being material
considerations in the determination of planning application where policies relevant to
the application are consistent with those in the NPPF although the weight that can
be attached to them is very limited.

2.17. Paragraph 11 of the NPPF states that decisions should apply a presumption in
favour of sustainable development which means, for decision taking:

- Approving development proposals that accord with an up-to-date development
plan without delay; or

- Where there are no relevant development policies, or the policies which are
most important for determining the application are out-of-date, granting
permission unless:

o The application of policies within this framework that protect areas or
assets of particular importance provides a clear reason for refusing the
development proposed; or

o Any adverse impacts of doing so would significantly and demonstrably
outweigh the benefits, when assessed against the policies in this
framework taken as a whole.

2.18. However, the presumption does not apply if the proposal conflicts with policies
within the NPPF intended to protect designated heritage assets in accordance with
footnote 7 of the NPPF.

3.0 CONSULTATIONS

INTERNAL
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 183

Conservation Architect:

3.1. | support the aspirations of the Chapter of York in establishing a Centre of
Excellence for heritage craft skills and do recognise that there will be identifiable
public benefits that stem from such a centre. However we must raise objection to the
proposals as we do not consider the current proposals have sufficiently addressed
the issues raised at pre-application stage, do not meet the requirements of the
Minster Neighbourhood Plan, and would cause high degree of less than substantial
harm to both setting of historic assets and character of the conservation area.

City Archaeologist

3.2. No objections raised but highlights that the site is within the area of the former
Roman fortress. In particular close to a former gateway. The line of the City Walll
follows the boundary of the fortress wall. It is anticipated that archaeological features
and deposits survive at this location from all periods. It will therefore be necessary to
condition an archaeological watching brief on all ground works at the site.

EXTERNAL

Guildhall Planning Panel

3.3. No comments received in respect of the LBC application. However the panel
commented in support of the Planning Application noting ‘an interesting and
imaginative scheme’.

Historic England

3.4. The precinct is one of the defining features of a medieval English cathedral.
York Minster Precinct encompasses a rich array of buildings and spaces with a
markedly different character north and south of the minster.

3.5. The character of the north part has retained much of its historic seclusion, with
high-status historic houses set within mature gardens, partially enclosed by one of
the best preserved and picturesque sections of the city walls. Views between the
minster and the city walls here contribute considerably to their settings, as well as to
the character of the conservation area.

3.6. The development of two rear garden plots on this part of the precinct — the
former Deanery Garages and Workshops site and the gardens of no.2 Minster Court
— are a key element of the vision of the Chapter of York to establish the Precinct as
an internationally recognised Centre of Excellence for heritage craft skills and estate
management.

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 184

3.7. Historic England is strongly supportive of the aims and ambitions behind the
proposals and welcomes its positive evolution from the proposals discussed at pre-
application stage. However, we consider there is scope in the proposals to introduce
adjustments that would help better mitigate impact and improve the positive
contribution the building can make to this sensitive site of the precinct and
outstanding views towards the minster. We therefore recommend amendments to
the proposals are pursued, in line with statutory and policy requirements.

Six National Amenity Societies
3.8. No comments have been received.

4.0 REPRESENTATIONS

4.1. The application has been advertised via Site Notice and local Press Notice.
No representations or comments have been received from members of the public.

5.0 APPRAISAL

Key Issues

5.1. The key issues are as follows:
- Impact Upon Heritage Assets

Impact upon heritage assets

5.2. Given the location of the proposed development there are number of heritage
assets which are within the immediate and general vicinity of the site. These include
various listed buildings of varying grades. The site also sits within a scheduled
monument and designated Conservation Area. Assets such as the City Walls and
York Minster are some of the most significant heritage assets within the city.

5.3. The Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 places
several obligations upon the LPA. Section 16 requires that in considering whether to
grant Listed Building Consent for any works the LPA shall have special regard to the
desirability of preserving listed buildings or their setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which they possess.

5.4. Policy D5 of the DLP 2018 both have the overarching objective or seeking to
ensure that development proposals preserve or enhance the areas or buildings
which contribute to the overall historic significance of the city. Policy C1 of the
Minster NHP also requires that development proposals should protect, conserve and

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 185

seek opportunities to enhance the internationally important historic environment of
the Minster Precinct.

5.5. Paragraph 189 of the NPPF states; Heritage assets range from sites and
buildings of local historic value to those of the highest significance, such as World
Heritage Sites which are internationally recognised to be of Outstanding Universal
Value. These assets are an irreplaceable resource, and should be conserved in a
manner appropriate to their significance, so that they can be enjoyed for their
contribution to the quality of life of existing and future generations.’

5.6. In support of the application a Heritage Impact Assessment has been
submitted. This document identifies the various historic assets within the precinct
which may be affected by the proposed development and identifies their
significance. Existing features such as the Deanery Garages and Workshop have
been identified as being a low significance. At the opposite end of the scale features
such as the Minster and City Walls have been identified as being of exceptional
significance.

5.7. Within the context of the buildings proposed within this application the HIA
notes that there is an established hierarchy of spaces within this area of the precinct
with the City Walls forming the defined boundary to the North and West, generous
rear gardens and ancillary buildings, the principal residences and at the centre the
Minster. This creates a distinct layering culminating in the Minster.

5.8. The HIA states that the garden of 2 Minster Court has no landscape value but
considers there to be historic and some aesthetic value in the plot shape. It
acknowledges that development in this location will be clearly visible in the
foreground of views from the City Walls towards the Minster but that it may also be
visible from the Central Tower of the Minster. The HIA then sets out a series of
principles which could be used in the design to mitigate these impacts. These
include:

- Keeping the building height to single storey and below that of the boundary
wall;

- Minimising any new penetrations through the garden wall for access;

- Oritentating the building to emphasise the linearity of the plot.

- Retaining a full-length strip of garden;

- Using green roofs or similar approaches to maintain the garden character of
the site and enhance its biodiversity.

- Employing materials appropriate for a back of plot site, such as local York brick
and/or timber.

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 186

- Using raft foundations or other techniques to avoid disturbing below ground
archaeology by structure and services.

5.9. The HIA states that development proceeding according to these measures will
meet the four widely-recognised tests for the impact of development on important
views of the historic environment; it will not break the skyline, it will not visually
obstruct significant elements, it will not visually compete with the significant
elements, and it will not change the character of the view.

5.10. The HIA then goes on to summarise the impacts of the proposed
development. It concludes that the proposals would result in the loss of a small
portion of the 18™ Century curtilage listed boundary wall and the loss of the 19"
Century potting shed, which would overall cause only very minor harm to the
significance of the Grade II* listed Minster Court.

5.11. The proposals would result in the loss of the roof and late-20" Century
portions of the curtilage listed Garages and Workshops, however their significance
and contribution to the setting of the nearby listed buildings and to the character of
the conservation area is limited and therefore this harm would therefore be minimal.
It would result in very minor harm to the significance of the Grade Il listed Deanery
largely through the loss of historic association. The lost of the 20" Century portions
of the complex — although following the original design — would cause no harm.

5.12. The HIA assesses that the proposals would result in a moderate degree of
less than substantial harm to Minster Court (Grade [I*) and the Deanery (Grade II)
through the:

- The development of part of the garden plot, which would result in the loss of
part of the buildings garden setting — causing moderate harm. This change was
established through the designation of this plot for development in the York
Minster NHP, and would be mitigated through the use of lightweight linear
buildings of appropriate scale and materials and the retention and replanting of
a sizeable portion of the garden.

- Partial loss of distinction between the two plots brought about by spanning
them within one roof, which has been mitigated through the retention of the
majority of the boundary wall and its emphasis within the courtyard and the
accommodation range — overall this would cause moderate harm;

- The loss of the curtilage listed potting shed would cause minor harm to the
significance of Minster Court;

- The lost of the Garages and Workshops as associated ancillary structures and
physically the loss of roofs which read alongside those of the Deanery, would
cause minor harm to the significance of the Deanery.

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 187

5.13. The workshops would invite views through its clerestory windows and could
potentially be considered to cause harm to the character and appearance of the
conservation area and setting of the listed buildings by disrupting some of the
layered views of the Minster from the City Walls, they would however form a subtle
new visual connection which links the craft of stonemasonry directly to the primary
heritage asset within the Precinct — the Minster. They would not obscure views of
any nearby heritage assets and given the buildings low scale and landscaping
proposals they would in some views enhance the character of the conservation area
and setting of the listed buildings.

5.14. The proposals would slightly change the visual character of the site by
introducing a unique roof form to this portion of the Precinct, which may be
considered by some to cause harm, however, this contrasting form subtly reflects
the form of the ramparts and its finish would match the colour of nearby tiled roofs —
which would ensure it reads as an appropriate new layer within the Conservation
Area.

5.15. The use of the site for stonemasonry would change the use of this site —
introducing new sounds through the actions of stone carving and the movements
associated with vehicles. The western plot is currently used as garages, gardener’s
and scaffold stores therefore the change here would not be dissimilar nor would it be
more intrusive, whilst the garden of Minster Court would be used as a quiet space
thereby largely retaining its domestic garden character. The impact associated to
this use would therefore have limited impact on the setting of the listed buildings and
the character of the conservation area.

5.16. The HIA concludes that the ‘Cumulative impact of these proposals is that they
would result in a moderate degree of less than substantial harm to the significance
of the heritage assets.

5.17. As part of the assessment of the proposals the Councils Conservation
Architect has reviewed the submitted details. As is set out earlier in this report they
have raised objections to the proposals. In their comments a series of areas of
objection are raised.

- They note that ‘the setting of the City Walls is in part defined by a hierarchy of
spaces, the more open garden space setting immediately adjacent, the mix of
domestic scale properties as you look toward the Minster (generally increasing
In scale toward the Minster, the buildings closest to the wall both small scale
and low key); and finally the Minster itself with its scale and grandeur
dominating the whole. The proposal interrupts this hierarchy (reducing the

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 188

dominance of the Minster) by introducing a very large footprint building where
there currently aren’t any’.

- This site (particularly to the rear of Minster Court) provides a largely empty,
quiet, undeveloped, and spacious setting for both Minster Court, but also the
Minster itself. The spaces are domestic in character, lean-to greenhouses and
the curtilage listed workshops and garages have a very strong ‘back of house’
character which contribute to the significance of this part of the conservation
area and setting of listed buildings and structures. The new building will be far
larger than any other ancillary buildings in this location with no sense of
domestic scale or character.

- The Conservation Area Appraisal (Minster Precinct) describes the character of
the proposed sites, North of the Minster, and states: ‘“Today, the character of
the Precinct splits into two contrasting parts. North of the Minster it retains
much of its historic seclusion and is marked by broad green openness, and an
almost complete absence of roads.

- Itis important to recognise the importance of how tranquil and secluded the
site feels and contributes to the setting of various assets. The setting of
heritage assets is defined as how the asset is appreciated but this isn’t just
visual device.

- The approach to opening up the full upper elevation of the new elevation of the
new building towards the wall to create a ‘public front’ to the building promoting
the uncharacteristic activity within this quiet, domestic setting is wrong and
views into active workspace should be limited to glimpses to minimise the
negative impact on the current ‘quiet’ character the sites currently hold.

- The proposed building will be far more distracting than the current development
within the garden space is, and this will harm the setting of the walls, listed
buildings and Minster.

- The linear plot divisions are particularly distinctive in this location and
contribute strongly to the aesthetic and historic heritage values of the site. It
was an important consideration during the pre-application process that this was
a proposal for two sites and not one. The current proposal will obliterate and
appreciation of the historic plot separation.

- The proposed architectural language of the building is also very alien in its
context. Combined with the roof and scale results in a building that lacks any
domestic character and will appear strikingly discordant in this location.

5.18. The Conservation Architect concludes their comments by stating that, in their

view, the setting of the walls, Minster and Listed Buildings will be harmed by the

introduction of a building substantially larger than any that currently exist in this

location, that obscures any understanding of the historic plot boundaries, and

existing spacious garden and ancillary back of house character in an architectural

language of building that does not relate positively to existing character. They close
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 189

their comments stating that they do not consider the proposals to have ‘sufficiently
addressed the issues raised at pre-application stage, do not meet the requirements
of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan, and would cause a high degree of less than
substantial harm to both setting of historic assets, and character of the conservation
area’.

5.19. Given the significance of the application site and the extent of the proposals
Historic England have also been consulted on the proposals. They too have
identified that, in their view, the proposals would give rise to a medium level of harm
being caused to the character of the Conservation Area and the contribution setting
makes to the significance of the City Walls. They also conclude that a low level of
harm would be caused to the Minster by affecting the contribution setting makes to
its significance.

5.20. Historic England then go on to make a series of suggestions to mitigate their
concerns:

- Strongly encourage the single roof unifying the complex is revised in favour of
it being read as a collection of buildings around a verity of open spaces. We
consider disaggregating the roof form of the main building into different
components would help better integrate the structure within the grain and
roofscape of the surrounding residential buildings.

- Areduction in the eaves extension on the external elevations would reduce the
expanse of the building. This would in turn help reduce its disrupting impact on
the setting of the City Walls and surrounding designated assets.

5.21. The applicant has provided a response to these concerns raised by both
Historic England, these are covered in greater detail in the design section of this
report. Despite the concerns highlighted by both the Councils Conservation Architect
and Historic England the applicant has not advanced any revisions to the proposals.
The applicant maintains that the proposals stand and, in their view, provides clear
justification for the scheme.

5.22. The proposals would result in a degree of harm being caused to the character
and setting of various heritage assets that existing within the vicinity of the site. As is
set out above the extent of this harm is graded by differing parties at slightly different
levels of extent. However, all have stated that the consider the impact to be less
than substantial harm. The submitted Heritage Impact Assessment concludes that a
moderate degree of less than substantial harm to the significance of heritage assets
will occur.

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 190

5.23. The proposed development would give rise to a degree of harm being caused.
Paragraph 200 of the NPPF states: ‘Any harm to, or loss of, the significance of a
designated heritage asset (from its alteration or destruction, or from development
within its setting) should require clear and convincing justification, Substantial harm
to or loss of: grade Il listed buildings or grade Il registered park or gardens, should
be exceptional; assets of the highest significance, notably scheduled monuments,
protected wreck sites, registered battlefields, grade | and II* listed buildings, grade |
and II* registered parks and gardens, and World Heritage Sites, should be wholly
exceptional.

5.24. It is also important to quantify the impact upon designated heritage assets.
Paragraph 201 of the NPPF is clear, subject to a series of defined exceptions, that
in cases where substantial harm would occur local planning authorities should
refuse consent. The level of harm that could arise in this case has been categorised
as being less than substantial.

5.25. In cases where the level of harm is assessed as being less than substantial
paragraph 202 of the NPPF is of relevance; this states ‘Where a development will
lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset,
this harm should be weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including,
where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.’

5.26. The possible public benefits are considered later in this report.

5.27. The proposals would be considered to cause a degree of harm to elements of
the Listed Building, contrary to Policy D5 of the DLP and C2 of the NHP.

Public Benefits
5.28. In support of the application the applicant has presented a case setting out

what they believe to be the public benefits of the scheme.

A Heritage Asset of International Importance

5.29. York Minster and its precinct is of international importance housing the Grade |
Listed Minster, a collection of Grade Il and Grade II* Listed properties and one of a
number of Scheduled Ancient Monuments in the immediate vicinity. The Minster
acts as a major tourist attraction in the North of England, but more importantly is a
house of prayer, it is a sensitive and highly complicated are of the city for which its
future must be planned carefully.

Safequarding the Minster in the context of declining Craft Skills

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 191

5.30. It costs over £22,000 a day to care for and operate York Minster. The Minster
receives no ongoing Government funding or central Church of England financial
support towards the care of the fabric and relies entirely on the generosity of our
community, paying visitors and funding bodies to sustain its care and operations.
Much of the craftsmanship is undertaken in the shadow of the Minster, by the
Minster craftspeople.

5.31. The Chapter of York has a vision to establish the Precinct as an internationally
recognised Centre of Excellence for heritage craft skills focused around a campus
facility. This is a critical programme of reimagining and cementing the long term
sustainability of the craft skills which must endure to safeguard the care of York
Minster for the next century.

5.32. Reflecting the current context of declining craft skills, only 10 cathedrals of the
42 Anglican Cathedrals in England continue to have their own dedicated
craftspeople. Nearly all of these ten have stoneyards based in very close proximity
to the cathedral itself. These ten cathedrals form the foundation of the Cathedrals
Workshop Fellowship which have joined together to create a new generation of
craftspeople capable of caring for the nations cathedrals and heritage buildings.

5.33. Some, like York, have a full range of trades, whereas others are formed of
stonemasons, glaziers, joiners, working closely with plumbers and electricians. The
common factor of all yards is that exist solely because of the cathedral.

5.34. The loss of skills through retirement is something the Chapter of York are
keenly aware of with some of their longest serving members of staff approaching the
end of their working careers. Reports from sector led organisations such as Historic
England have also highlighted consistent gaps in the supply of craftspeople with a
specific background in historic building conservation.

5.35. In tandem it is important to thing about the future and respond to innovation.
The return of historic techniques such as hot lime mortar and the introduction of
modern processes and working practices such as digital technology, data scanning
and Computer Aided Design have been introduced. Apprentices already receive the
very best heritage training but have little exposure to the use of new technologies
such as CAD and modern saw technology. Embracing these tools will assist in
attracting more apprentices to this important national heritage.

Meeting Wider Neighbourhood Plan Objectives

5.36. Aside from safeguarding the restoration of the Minster there are significant
other public benefits. Including; creating a world class visitor experience to ensure
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 192

vital visitor income is sustained. Creating a welcoming precinct. Supporting the day
to day life of the in house Minster functions.

5.37. It is the applicants view that the proposals offer a once in a generation
opportunity to create a Centre of Excellence for the Minster which will not only
provide a considerable range of meaningful benefits locally but also nationally and
internationally. The new facilities would solidify York Minster as an international
centre for heritage excellence. Maintaining an enhancing the facilities also offers
opportunities for specialist training which will address the skills shortage in a unique
heritage setting whilst also securing the conservation of the Minster and its Precinct
in the long term.

Economic Benefits

5.38. The economic benefits of the proposals are far reaching, building upon direct
benefits to the Minster and the City of York to solidify York Minster as an
international centre for Heritage Excellence. This would be via the creation of
partnerships with international institutions including Trondheim, Milan, Cologne and
Washington Cathedrals and Singapore University. These will put York on the
national and international stage, acting as a focus for craft skills and investment.
Partnerships are fundamental to this project and we (the applicant) have already
shown that institutions from across the world are eager to be part of this project for
the benefit of heritage sectors internationally. The potential connections the city will
make through this project are wide ranging. The University of York for example see
this as the beginning of a new heritage sector in the City.

5.39. Indirect economic benefits brought about through tourism and the enhanced
interaction between the public and the stonemasons building on the success of the
Masons Lodge on Queens Path. The Minster has a strong track record of engaging
visitors to the process of conservation and sustainable heritage.

5.40. The project will create additional commercial opportunities allowing work to be
done for other heritage bodies across the Country in the future.

5.41. Digital technology sits at the heart of the project. The Minster will embrace
digital technology as a tool to support the work they do and to train their apprentices.
Work with University of York on a range of digital projects has already started. The
statue of HM The Queen was created using the technology that will be invested in.

5.42. Ensuring dedicated Minster craftspeople, as well as a training facility for
training the Cathedrals Workshop Fellowship. This will assist with addressing the

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 193

national heritage skills shortage — upskilling workers and creating job opportunities
across the heritage skills spectrum.

5.43. The provision of state of the art facilities for the stonemasons to allow work to
be better showcased to potential benefactors to encourage donations for the upkeep
of the Minster.

5.44. The sustainable reuse of the existing built form will halt any areas of decline
and provide an enduring future which will reduce the need for upkeep allowing funds
to spent on other much needed projects elsewhere in the Precinct.

Social Benefits

5.45. Creating The Centre for Excellence for Heritage Craft Skills, leading the way
on an international stage for future partnerships and knowledge sharing through
Research and Development.

5.46. The creation of buildings that represent the upmost design excellence,
reinforcing the precinct’s distinctive character utilising innovative design through the
use of flexible adaptable buildings; and the provision of dedicated bed spaces for
national and international students.

5.47. Building upon the success of the York Minster being the first cathedral to have
a Neighbourhood Plan, leading the way in transforming policy and practice in
delivering managed change for a heritage asset. Taking the lead from the past,
where York Mister has had a dedicated works department since the 11" Century.

5.48. Opening up the Minster’s activities to the wider city — the proposals will
increase public access to the work of the stonemasons and glaziers, by subtly
inviting views into the workshops and encouraging public engagement/interest in the
craft. This will enhance the public’s understanding of stonemasonry as a craft and
the key building material of the Minster and its Precinct.

5.49. Supporting the Minster’'s ambition to establish the whole of the Precinct as a
national and international centre of excellence for heritage craft skills and heritage
estate management focused around a campus facility in line with Neighbourhood
Plan Objectives.

Environmental Benefits

5.50. Conserves and enhances the internationally acclaimed historic and cultural
heritage of York Minster, its Precinct and the Neighbourhood Area. It will also
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 194

provide a benchmark for new development striving to achieve Eco Gold Church
Status by taking a lead on driving the new zero agenda in a restrictive heritage
environment.

5.51. Creates a truly sustainable development, through the provision of
accommodation on site for apprentices in the heart of the city. Environmental
sustainability sits at the heart of how the Minster is cared for. Meaningful reuse of
materials from the Deanery garages and workshops and the introduction of solar
panels contribute considerably to the sustainability of the scheme — aligning with
endeavours to mitigate the climate crisis.

5.52. The reuse of a previously underutilised area within the Minster Precinct
enables these facilities to be places in areas of relatively lower significance —
compared with the remainder of the highly sensitive precinct.

Planning Balance

5.53. As has been set out in the earlier sections of this report the application site is
sensitive, with a number of heritage assets within the vicinity. One matter that is
agreed between the applicant and technical consultees is that the proposals will
result in a degree of less than substantial harm being caused the character, setting
and significance; including an element of total loss (potting shed and greenhouse),
of various designated heritage assets existing within the immediate vicinity of the
site and the wider Minster Precinct; although the severity of that harm is view
differently by different parties.

5.54. The significance of the Minster and its Precinct to the City of York cannot be
underestimated. The Minster itself is one of, if not the most significant building in the
city. Its presence over the city centre can be experienced in close quarters but it is
also a prominent feature within the views and approaches to the city. The City Walls
are also a defining feature of the city. The overarching objective has to be to
safeguard these assets. It is these assets that form part of city’s identity. The
proposals within this application would put in place the means to facilitate, grow and
sustain this. That is not to diminish the acknowledged harms that the proposals
would have in terms of impact upon designated heritage assets. However, it is
considered that these harms would in practice be localised and limited to the area of
the precinct within which development is proposed.

5.55. Existing views from the City Walls would be altered through the introduction of

the new built form on the site. However, as is set out within the adopted Minster

NHP development was intended to occur here, hence the designation and inclusion

of the site within Policy PA4. Furthermore, whilst the existing views would be
Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 195

altered, they would not be blocked. The proposed development would not be taller
than the existing. The Minster would still dominate views from this area of the City
Walls and the City Walls would not be totally obscured by the development.

5.56. In considering the Minster Precinct as a whole and the Neighbourhood Plan
Area. One characteristic is that space is a finite resource. The southern side of the
Minster is more densely developed and is the focus for many visitors. In contrast the
Northern side is less densely developed however on the Northern side much of the
open space extends right up to the Minster itself. In this context it therefore difficult
to conclude that there is a more suitable or favourable location for the development.
The proposals would allow for the skills and work of the craftspeople to be retained
within the Precinct that they are tasked with caring for — a feature that has existed
for centuries and which itself is a significant characteristic of the overall character
and setting of the Precinct. It is also considered likely that any alternative location to
the northern side of the Minster would have a far greater impact in terms of impact
upon or loss of heritage assets — as it would likely be closer to buildings of higher
significance such as the Minster or the Minster Library.

5.57. The proposals within this application and the wider concept of the Centre of
Excellence being promoted by the applicant represent a new way of thinking for the
applicant and they are seeking to take a proactive approach to the issue of declining
skills in this sector. The proposals will assist with securing the long-term future of the
Minster and the wider precinct. There is also the opportunity to broaden expertise in
this field not just within the City but further afield. It could be argued that such
outcomes would enhance the Precinct through increasing its standing within the field
of Heritage and Craft Skills.

5.58. Whilst the proposals do not comply with policy D5 the 2018 DLP and C2 of the
NHP; there are other substantial material considerations that are relevant in the
context of the NPPF and the Minster NHP. The NPPF is clear that in cases where
less than substantial harm is considered to occur the public benefits of that harm
must be considered with the public benefits weighed against the harms.
Furthermore the proposals would deliver one of the key aspirations set out within the
adopted Minster NHP.

5.59. Itis considered that on balance the proposals would bring about greater,
longer term public benefits not only to the Precinct and the buildings within it but
also the city and even other significant historic institutions not only in the UK but also
internationally. These on balance outweigh the harms that would be caused.

6.0. CONCLUSION

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 196

6.1. Section 38 (6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires
planning decisions to be made in accordance with development plan. The Minster
NHP forms part of the statutory development plan for the City of York; and as is set
out above the proposed development is considered to accord with the provisions of
the Minster NHP. Regard is had to the advice within paragraph 199 of the NPPF that
when considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset’s conservation (and the more important the asset, the
greater the weight should be) and to the statutory duty to give considerable
importance and weight to the harm to listed buildings and conservation area. The
public benefits are summarised in the earlier sections of this report above. Whilst it
is acknowledged the proposed development will give rise to varying degrees of harm
various designated heritage assets and therefore the Conservation Area. It is on
balance, considered that these less than substantial harms would be outweighed by
the public benefits the proposals would bring about even when giving great weight to
the conservation of these assets. The proposals would deliver a very clear objective
of the Minster Neighbourhood Plan. The proposals would also facilitate the delivery
of the Centre of Excellence for Heritage and Craft Skills.

6.2. Itis therefore recommended that Listed Building Consent be granted; subject
to any conditions outlined below. However, it should be noted that a number of
matters relating to the eventual operation of the site, the implementation of any
development and relevant protection measures to mitigate the impacts of
development are covered by conditions attached to the associated application for
planning permission therefore they do not require repeating in the granting of Listed
Building Consent.

7.0 RECOMMENDATION: Approve

1 TIMEL2  Development start within 3 yrs (LBC/CAC)

2 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the
following plans:-

Existing Site Location Plan - Drawing No. 547-Q-000

Tree Survey and Constraints - Drawing No. BA11441TS Rev A

Arboricultural Impact Assessment - Drawing No. BA11441AIA Rev A
Proposed Breakout Pavilion and scaffold store - Drawing No. 547 Q-123
Proposed North West and South East Site Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-122
Proposed North West and South East Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-121
Proposed South West and North East Elevation - Drawing No. 547 Q-120
Proposed Section E - Drawing No. 547 Q-112

Proposed Section C and D - Drawing No. 547 Q-111

Proposed Section A and B - Drawing No. 547 Q-110

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



Page 197

Proposed Ground Floor Demolition - Drawing No. 547 Q-105
Proposed Roof Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-103

Proposed Ground Floor Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-102
Proposed Site Plan - Drawing No. 547 Q-101

Reason: For the avoidance of doubt and to ensure that the development is carried out
only as approved by the Local Planning Authority.

8.0 INFORMATIVES:

Contact details:
Case Officer:  Mark Baldry
Tel No: 01904 552877

Application Reference Number: 22/00804/LBC Item No: 4f



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 199

The Deanery, Minster Yard, YOI 7JQ
22/00804/LBC

GIS by ESRI (UK) |§

y Cu Dean's Park
EBVRACVM
y ROMAN LEGIONARY FORTRESS

' 15.2m

= |

Scale: 1:1215
Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with the permission Organisation |City of York Council
of the Controller of Her Majesty's Stationery Office © Crown
Copyright 2000. Department |Directorate of Place

Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may

lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Comments Site Location Plan

Date 19 August 2022

SLA Number [Not Set

Produced using ESRI (UK)'s MapExplorer 2.0 - http://www.esriuk.com




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Minutes

	4a Former Storage Facility Site, Derwent Valley Industrial Estate, Dunnington, York [21/02601/FULM]
	Former Storage Facility Site, Derwent Valley Industrial Estate, Dunnington  [21/02601/FULM] Plan
	Former Storage Facility Site, Derwent Valley Industrial Estate, Dunnington  [21/02601/FULM] Presentation

	4b Northminster Business Park, Harwood Road, Upper Poppleton, York  [22/00794/FUL]
	Northminster Business Park, Upper Poppleton [22/00794/FUL] Plan
	Northminster Business Park, Upper Poppleton [22/00794/FUL] Presentation

	4c Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA  [22/00788/FUL]
	Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA  [22/00788/FUL] Plan
	Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA [22-00788-FUL] and [22/00789/LBC] Presentation

	4d Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA  [22/00789/LBC]
	Minster Stoneyard, 4 Deangate, York, YO1 7JA  [22/00789/LBC] Plan

	4e The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ  [22/00803/FUL]
	The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ  [22/00803/FUL] Plan
	The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ [22-00803-FUL] and [22/00804/LBC] Presentation

	4f The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ [22/00804/LBC]
	The Deanery, Minster Yard, York, YO1 7JQ [22/00804/LBC] Plan


